& HEBINR

EEEEEEEEEEEE ONMENT

AENRRBEEREAEGR A F
Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited
(REAESEHEAMRIMNER 2 A )
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
BZ431X3% Stock Code: 1845

al Report




CONTENTS
B &

COMPANY PROFILE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

GLOSSARY

!
|
o
=

M=

EERHMEE

ERE R RO

EENEREEE

TEERAMRS

BRI HEREREHE

EFEEWE

BB AR E

B RIS ImR MR

Ex

27

36

52

72

87

97

233

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%



COMPANY PROFILE
NG

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration turnkey
solution provider in China. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has
20 completed hazardous waste incineration projects with aggregate
designed disposal capacity of 435,000 tonnes per annum, and 18
outstanding hazardous waste incineration projects with aggregate

designed disposal capacity of 458,000 tonnes per annum.

The shares of the Company had been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 3 January 2019.

Leveraging its experience and expertise in hazardous waste
incineration, the Group has expanded its offerings to other areas
of solid waste treatment, such as thermal desorption of oil sludge,
pyrolysis treatment of solid waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-
treatment. As at 31 December 2019, the Group already successfully

entered into aforementioned business areas with some customers.

The Group will continue to focus on the technology innovation
to maintain its advanced technology and strong R&D capability.
To capture the opportunities brought by the policies for the
development of the environmental protection industry and the huge
demand of industrial enterprise to comply with increasingly tighter
environmental protection policies, the Group will leverage on its
technology advantage to expanding its business into more and
more new areas, and devote itself to become a leading solid waste

treatment solutions provider in China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Zhuhua (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Honghui
Mr. Deng Zhaoshan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ren Jingfeng

Mr. Yang Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Zhifeng
Mr. Jiang Guoliang
Mr. Feng Tao

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Feng Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Zhifeng
Mr. Jiang Guoliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Feng Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Honghui
Mr. Jiang Guoliang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cai Zhuhua (Chairman)
Mr. Feng Tao
Mr. Jiang Guoliang

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Gu Chunbin
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~E & #

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cai Zhuhua
Mr. Gu Chunbin

LEGAL ADVISERS TO OUR COMPANY

As to Hong Kong law:

Miao & Co.

(in Association with Han Kun Law Offices)
Rooms 3901-05, 39/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law:
Walkers (Hong Kong)

15th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

DeHeng Law Offices (Guangzhou)

17/F, the North Tower of Guangzhou Media Centre
370 Yuejiang West Road

Haizhu District

Guangzhou 510335

PRC

AUDITORS AND REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
2/F, 625 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QXA EH

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Altus Capital Limited
21 Wing Wo Street
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cayman Corporate Centre

27 Hospital Road, George Town
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

14-15/F, Block A4

No. 181 Science Boulevard
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province
China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3507, 35/F, AIA Tower
183 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Centre
27 Hospital Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL BANK

Bank of Guangzhou

Science City Branch

3/F, Science and Technology
Innovation Base Complex

80 Lanyue Road

Science City, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

China

China Merchants Bank

Hong Kong Branch

31/F, Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place, Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1845

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.gzweigang.com/

DATE OF LISTING

3 January 2019
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB537.5 million, representing an increase of 12.0%
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit of the
Group amounted to RMB144.2 million and the gross profit margin of
the Group was 26.8%, representing an increase of 15.6% and 0.8
percentage points as compared with the year ended 31 December
2018, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net profit of the Group
amounted to RMB78.0 million, and the net profit margin of the
Group was 14.5%, representing an increase of 35.9% and 2.5
percentage points as compared with the year ended 31 December
2018 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB67.0 million, representing
an increase of 34.5% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMBO0.050, as
compared to RMBO0.049 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

HZE2019F 12 A1 BIEFE  AEEHBABA
R¥B37T5BHET ' RKEE2018F 12 A31HIEF
EEM12.0% °

HE2019F12A31BLFE A& E/NEF
BAREI1442BE T MASENENXA A
26.8% ' D RIEEZE20184F 12 A 31 H IEFE N
15.6% &% 0.8 EE D% °

HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE - AEEMEFAA
RIE78.0BE MAEENFHEAA14.5% -
DRREZE 20184 12 A 31 B IEFEEHN135.9% K
25MRBEDE -

HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE  ARAHEHB AEWN
MEAAREG7T.0HE L BREZ=20184F 12 A 31
HIEFEIN34.5% °

HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE - ARRHEHE AL
BRERBINABARK0.0507T  MEE 20184
12 A31AEFEAAARE0.0497T ©

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

2019 F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHF AREFT AREFr ARETT AR#TFT

Revenue ['ON 537,509 480,091 189,407 88,971 74,883

Gross profit EM 144,236 124,663 62,104 28,840 26,713

Profit before income tax B TS B A0 91,122 67,970 36,379 22,880 20,720

Income tax expense FrgmiMAE (13,091) (10,559) (6,620) (3,357) (5,105)

Profit for the year FRAE 78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523 15,615
Profit attributable to: UT&HELFE

Owners of the Company ZI/NETE 2 =N 66,984 49,799 30,195 19,523 15,615

Non-controlling interests FEE AR 11,047 7,612 (436) = ==

As at 31 December
RW12A31H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

2019 F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR AREFT AREFr AREFr AEBTFT

Total Assets BEHLE 802,027 469,735 253,053 90,842 63,904

Total liabilities BELERE 227,886 310,445 218,356 38,443 31,028

Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 57,326 27,220 (436) — —

Equity attributable to the RARIEA ANEL
owners of the Company i 516,815 132,070 35,133 52,399 32,876
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWBES

On behalf of the Board, | am hereby pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
future outlook of 2020.

2019 REVIEW

2019 has been a year of significant milestone for the Group. The
Group was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange on 3 January 2019. This is yet another breakthrough in
the development of the Group and a new starting point for the Group
to achieve leapfrog development. In 2019, in view of a complex
and volatile market environment, the Group upheld the principle of
being steady and proactive, seized the opportunity following the
successful listing on the Stock Exchange and actively explored
and expand market potentials and coverage, with “industry and
capital” as its aim. The mutual integration and promotion of capital
and industry has opened the path of gradual progress towards
becoming a leading solid waste treatment solutions provider in
China.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2020, the Group will continue to capture the
opportunities brought by the policies for the development of the
environmental protection industry, and actively seize more business
opportunities from solid waste treatment by commercialising its
advanced solid waste treatment technologies to market with the
resources from strategic shareholders, the capital market network,
and its strong R&D capabilities. The Group will still continue to
focus on the technology innovation to further expand the Group’s
business scope, maintain the Group’s leading position in the market,
maximize shareholder returns and optimize the Group’s commitment
of becoming a leading solid waste treatment solutions provider in
China.

CAl Zhuhua

Chairman

27 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution provider in China focused on
the research, design, integration and commissioning of solid
waste treatment systems, particularly for hazardous waste
incineration. Leveraging its experience and expertise in
hazardous waste incineration, the Group has expanded its
offerings to other areas of solid waste treatment, such as
thermal desorption of oil sludge, pyrolysis treatment of solid
waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment. The Group
conducts research and development of technologies related
to these new areas and have successfully applied some of

them to its new solid waste treatment projects.

In 2019, the Group primarily engaged in and generated a
substantial portion of the revenue from the design, integration
and commissioning of hazardous waste incineration systems

in China.
Provision of Hazardous Waste Incineration Solutions

Before 2019, the Group has 12 completed hazardous waste
incineration projects with aggregate designed disposal
capacity of 215,000 tonnes per annum which were passed
to the Group’s customers in normal operation. In 2019, the
Group completed 8 more hazardous waste incineration
projects with an aggregate designed disposal capacity of
approximately 220,000 tonnes per annum. As at 31 December
2019, the Group took 18 outstanding hazardous waste
incineration projects on hand, covering 18 cities in China with
an aggregate designed disposal capacity of approximately
458,000 tonnes per annum. The table below sets out the
summary of the completed hazardous waste incineration
projects in 2019 and the outstanding hazardous waste

incineration projects as at 31 December 2019:

E 3 3E1]

AEERTEBENG A BREMRIER
ERBFRNTREMHRE  FINEERED
RBRERG(LEETERENRELRE ZR)
MBI - REF - KRR - BEAKE
ERREYMRERE T MALREERA
B ARECDBEHEREEREYREE
B ELAD BRI - AR EABLA - B RS EE MY
A R AR R IR ROKOR B & AT % R B
E o AREFREZ S RN
e WEKIN RS HEKRERR
HHEREREYIRRIERE -

R2019%F  AEBETEEPEREHERE
MRERERFOR - ERRAR - I
BEPELERA—FOUWA -

RUCRBURBEERRTR

20194 AT - AEE TR T 1218 & I
BEYMREREEEBTERERELE T8
RFAEENEF R RTESHN
/215,000 4 - PA2019%F A& H
BINTER T 8EERENRELEEE -

M20194 12 A31H A% EF L H18
BERENRERERE MATT - B
FEISMEMT  RARATREENNA
458,0008, 4 o TR#FIH2019F & T
EREDREREEB KR2019F 12 A
31HMART BRI EERSEE O
E:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

Completed hazardous waste incineration projects in 2019: R2019F R THREREYREREER :

Designed Disposal/
Treatment Capacity

No. Project (tonnes per annum)

R RE/REED

/% EE (W, %)

1 Shandong Weifang hazardous waste incineration project LRSS EEREREEE 50,000

2 Taixing economic development area hazardous waste REKERERGCENERE 30,000
incineration project JHE

3 Shanghai hazardous waste incineration project LEEBEREREERE 25,000

4 Jiangxi Ganzhou hazardous waste incineration project IEEMNCETIEEREEEE 20,000

5] Nantong hazardous waste incineration project HRCRENREREER 25,000

6 Fuzhou hazardous waste incineration project BMmERENRERERE 20,000

7 Suzhou industry park hazardous waste incineration project ENIZEEREDRERE 30,000
EH

8 Tangshan hazardous waste incineration project BlERENTERERE 20,000

Total @zt 220,000

* Completed project is defined as which the system functionality * B8 TIHEF SUE BT RN R T 156918

evaluation is completed. &l e

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E KRR IEBRERER A T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

Outstanding hazardous waste incineration projects as at 31

December 2019:

No.

Ehid

oo O B W N

Project

5H

Yantai hazardous waste incineration project

Xiamen hazardous waste incineration project

Shaoxing hazardous waste incineration project

Guizhou hazardous waste incineration project

North Bay hazardous waste incineration project

Jiangsu Changging Nonghua Nantong hazardous waste
incineration project

Hangzhou 3rd solid waste treatment center
project |

Xinjiang Bazhou hazardous waste and solid waste treatment
center project

Jilin hazardous waste incineration project

Guangzhou hazardous waste incineration project

Hubei Yaojiagang industrial waste treatment and utilisation
project |

Zhuhai hazardous waste incineration project

Sichuan Chengdu hazardous waste incineration project I

Jiangsu Nanjing hazardous waste incineration Project

Foshan hazardous waste incineration project

Dongguan hazardous wasteincineration project

Henan Puyang hazardous waste incineration project

Sichuan Zigong industry hazardous waste treatment project

Total

EarBEREREER
EfEhEnRERERR
RELREYRERERR
BEMEREDEREER
tEErRENERERR
THRERICERERERYD
RERERR

MME=EREEEH L —HRE

HECMNEEERRERED O
ER
EMERENIERERA
EMNERBENRIEREER
IR B TRBENEE R AR
HE—H
KEsEREMRGREER
EKEERENEE SR8
IHERERENNGERERR
BLEEREREAR
RERBEREREER
MEEGEERRREER
m)IIBET#ERENEEHER

)

R 20194 12 A 31 H AT IR EREEY
REEREEE ¢

Designed Disposal/
Treatment Capacity
(tonnes per annum)
RIRE/REEN

(/%)

30,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
16,500
22,500

60,000

20,000

20,000
33,000
30,000

20,000
30,000
21,000
30,000
20,000
15,000
30,000

458,000
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WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMIT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

(i)  General increase in market demand

There was a general increase in market demand driven
by various factors such as the increasing hazardous
waste suitable for incineration, the increasing number of
centralised incineration facilities as well as favourable

government policy support.
(ii)  Increased customer recognition

The Group has been focusing on hazardous waste
incineration treatment solutions to the facility operators
and other customers with large solid waste output and
environmental compliance needs. With many years
of experience, the Group has gradually accumulated
an extensive knowledge pool and has built its brand
recognition among hazardous waste treatment facility
operators in China. The increased customer recognition
facilitates the Group’s exploration of new customers and
it is able to obtain more projects through customers’

referral.
Provision of Oil Sludge Thermal Desorption Solution

In 2019, the second thermal desorption project of the Group
which located in Karamay, Xinjiang, has already commenced

operation.

In 2019, the thermal desorption projects of the Group

generated revenue amounted to RMB45.4 million.
Provision of Pyrolysis Treatment of Solid Waste Solution

In 2019, the Group continued to explore the demand of market
by developing and commercializing solutions for a number of

new solid waste treatment applications.

Provision of Cement Plant Co-treatment of Hazardous
Waste Solution

In 2019, we had entered into a formal contract with a well-
known cement producer for the co-treatment project which
located in Guangdong province, and we expect the project

will commence operation in 2020.

(i) TEFEREEER

MEHERZEHRAZ M B EIE
R WERRRENBREDE
I SRR IR R BUE 0 R BT
BHBERXF o

(i) EFRBAEEH
AEB-—EHEITRAREEEH R
BEEREEEEVELEERIIRES
BERKNEMEFPRERBREDR
BREMRIE  BREZFLH
REBERFPBEREZHMBE
N7 72 P B AT B R ) B TR R R B A S
FPREVEMODREBRANEE TP R
AEMRARFEAEEERET R
FrmMEXREEBENRARFEN
ENESEZIEE -

REUHTE R ARIR T =R

R2019F » AEEUNH B MIHKEEH
—EZBLHIE B B RmEE

R20194F » AEBEMABIHIEEEE TR
AANRBEAS ABETT ©

RUEEREYNESRBEBRBERT FE

#2019% - AREREBBREREEI
SEFEBRENEEEDBATE NP
RAHSES. -

TR ALKTE R 175 () BE 22 fE B BE WD R IR T R
R2019% » RFE BAMBIOREERLL
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I FEHATE B #5574 2020 FHH 1A =58
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®E D

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The overall operating results of the Group for 2019 has
grown substantially as compared with 2018; and the financial
conditions of the Group for 2019 maintained steady which
strongly supported the Group’s strategic development.
The operating revenue continued to increase as the Group
successfully seized strategic opportunities under the
enhanced environmental management in the PRC, which
leads to that the profit increased substantially as compared to
that of 2018. The Group continued to maintain sufficient cash
resources, which in turn, helps to lay a solid foundation for the

Group’s future development.
Revenue

Revenue increased by 12.0% from RMB480.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB537.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. This increase was
mainly attributable to: 1) the growth of our hazardous waste
incineration treatment business; and 2) the Group successfully
tapped into the oil sludge thermal desorption solution market

and pyrolysis solid waste treatment solution market.

The Group derived the majority of its revenue from provision
of hazardous waste incineration solutions and the remainder
from provision of oil sludge thermal desorption solution,
pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions and other services

including technical upgrading and maintenance services.

Revenue from hazardous waste incineration solutions
increased by 1.8% from RMB444.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB453.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. This increase was mainly driven by a
combination of favourable factors: 1) general increase in
market demand; and 2) increased customer recognition of the

Group.

BARR R AEEHEE

L2018 AL - NEBEMN2019F MR8
KEEERISARBER - MAKER2019
FHOMBRRERET - AN B BE
BEREHRRMAINEZF - REBELEF
B 058 3R 3R B ER T 7 R MO BRBS M B - AL
WA B MBS - EHAEER 2018 F K
BER AKBEREEFEHESER
EPAAEENAREREE TRENE

i o

I'ON
WAREZ2018F 12 31 HIEFEMA

R 4801 BEITLIEN12.0% EH ZE 2019
F12A3BIEFEHARKESI7SEE
T ZERITERERER - 1)BREVRE
BEXEBER - R2)ANEEKIFHRERE
AP R RIS REAREEEED
BRERRTRTS
REEBNRIBOBAKRERBEEREDR
BEERAFTR - FHKRAREREHEE
HEEMEARTR BENRELEEVEREE
R T R R H A AR TS (R BRI AR I e v
AR5 ) ©

ERENRERERATRNBRAREZE
2018F 12 A31HILFEM AR 4448
BEITIEIMN1.8% EE E£2019F 12 A 31
ALEFEMARKAB0EET 2R
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o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

The Group’s revenue generated from the provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to RMB45.4 million (2018: RMB10.7
million), which were attributable to the Group’s first oil sludge
thermal desorption project commenced operation in 2018
and the Group’s second oil sludge thermal desorption project
commenced operation in 2019.

The Group recognized revenue from the provision of pyrolysis
treatment of solid waste solution for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to RMB22.8 million (2018: RMB4.1
million) due to the Group’s pyrolysis treatment project of waste

new energy batteries progress in 2019.

Revenue from other services (including technical upgrading
services and maintenance services) decreased by 20.5%
from RMB20.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB16.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
This decrease was attributable to the revenue from technical
upgrading services decreased as customers’ demand is

occasional.
Cost of Services

Cost of services increased by 10.7% from RMB355.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB393.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. This increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in cost of services for the Group’s
hazardous waste incineration treatment business, provision
of oil sludge thermal desorption solution and provision of

pyrolysis treatment of solid waste solution.

Cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste incineration
treatment business consists primarily of (i) cost of equipment
and materials; (ii) direct labour costs; (iii) sub-contracting

costs; and (iv) others.

The cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste
incineration treatment business increased by 6.8% from
RMB331.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB353.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
This increase was mainly due to the Group’s expansion in

hazardous waste incineration business.

HE2019F 12 A1 B ILFE » KEBE K
BRI EATROBRABAR
#4545 BL(2018F : ARB10.7EE
7)  BERAEEE EREANMKIERE B
M 2018 FHtA & E - MANEEE —(E)he
AFiHIIEE B R 2019 FHRIIAEIE -

HRAEEFEREE DN ESNFERE
HH R 2019 F IS ER « ANEE B HRE
£2019F 12 A1 HILFEREIRHE
FEMEEANBEIRMATRNBAAR
028 EBIIL(2018F : ARBA41EE
JT) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

The Group’s cost of services generated for provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to RMB14.8 million (2018: RMB2.8
million), which were attributable to the Group’s first oil sludge
thermal desorption project commenced operation in 2018
and the Group’s second oil sludge thermal desorption project
commenced operation in 2019. The cost of services for
provision of oil sludge thermal desorption solution primarily
consist of energy consumption, depreciation, staff cost and

other miscellaneous expenses.

The Group’s cost of services generated for provision of
pyrolysis treatment of solid waste solution for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to RMB12.5 million (2018:
RMB2.9 million) due to the Group’s pyrolysis treatment project

of waste new energy batteries progress in 2019.

Cost of services for other services decreased by 33.0% from
RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB12.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. This
decrease was in line with the Group’s other services revenue,

which decreased in 2019 compared with 2018.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by 15.6% from RMB124.7
million for the year 2018 to RMB144.2 million for the year
2019, while the gross profit margin increase from 26.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to 26.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and
gross profit margin for each of the business segments for the

periods stated.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

TREHIRATAMEARE SR D AR
EMREMNE -

Gross profit GP margin
] Ef%

2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 2018% 20195 18%

RMB million RMB million

AREEET ANEBEET
Hazardous waste incineration solutions ERENNERERAFE 99.4 1136 21.9% 25.5%
Pyrolysis solid waste treaiment solutions EELREABENRERANR 103 12 45.2% 29.3%
Qil sludge thermal desorption treatment services 2 MR B R 30.6 79 67.4% 73.8%
Technical upgrading services AT R 0.3 0.6 7.3% 5.4%
Maintenance services #ERE 3.6 14 29.5% 14.9%
Total ait 144.2 124.7 26.8% 26.0%

The gross profit of hazardous waste incineration solutions
decreased by 12.5% from RMB113.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB99.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. This decrease was mainly attributable to
the gross profit margin decreased. The gross profit margin of
hazardous waste incineration solutions decreased from 25.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 21.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 primarily due to (i) the Company
has adjusted the project price of the hazardous waste
incineration solutions in view of the intense competition in the
market and in order to maintain our leading market share; and
(ii) the Company has procured equipment and materials with
higher cost for installation of certain hazardous incineration
systems so as to improve the quality of our systems, enhance
our corporate brand and maintain better relationship with our

customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

The gross profit of provision of pyrolysis treatment of solid
waste solution for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB10.3 million (2018: RMB1.2 million), which
were attributable to the Group’s pyrolysis treatment project of
waste new energy batteries progress in 2019. The gross profit
margin of pyrolysis treatment of solid waste solution increased
from 29.3% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 45.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2019 primarily due to the
gross profit margin of pyrolysis treatment project of waste
new energy batteries progress in 2019 was higher than the

pyrolysis treatment project progress in 2018.

The gross profit of provision of oil sludge thermal desorption
solution for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB30.6 million (2018: RMB7.9 million), which were
attributable to the Group’s first oil sludge thermal desorption
project commenced operation in 2018 and the Group’s
second oil sludge thermal desorption project commenced
operation in 2019. The gross profit margin of provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution decreased from 73.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 67.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 primarily due to the treatment fee
of the Group’s second oil sludge thermal desorption project

was lower than the first one.

The gross profit of other services increased by 95% from
RMB2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. This
increase was attributable to the customers’ demand for
maintenance of hazardous waste incineration projects increase,
which is in line with the Group’s expansion in hazardous waste
incineration business. The gross profit margin of other services
increased from 9.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018
to 23.9% for the year ended 31 December 2019 primarily due
to the proportion of the maintenance services in the total other
services increase, which had higher gross profit margin than

the technical upgrading services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

Other Income, Gains and Losses

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 46.9%
from RMB8.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB11.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
primarily attributable to government grants received for Listing

amounted to RMB8.1 million.
Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 42.7%
from RMB27.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB39.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
primarily attributable to (i) an increase in staff salaries and
benefits of RMB5.0 million as the Group has hired more staff
for role of management, finance and administration for the
business growth; (ii) an increase in professional fees of RMB2.6
million as more professionals has been engaged to provide
consultancy services in relation to the business operations,
financial management, strategic development and post listing
compliance matters; (iii) an increase in director fee of RMB1.8
million as the director fee only incurred after the Listing since 3
January 2019; (iv) an increase in entertainment fee of RMB1.1
million as the Group intended to explore the new market; and
(v) an increase in depreciation fee of RMB1.0 million as the
Group’s first thermal desorption project commenced operation
in 2018Q4 and the second project commenced operation in
2019.

Other Expenses

Other expenses include (i) listing expenses; and (ii) research
and development expenses, including staff costs, material
and other related costs mainly in connection with the research

and development of solid waste treatment applications.

The listing expenses of the Company was nil for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as the Listing completed on 3
January 2019 (2018: RMB12.3 million).

The Group’s research and development expenses increased
by 25.6% from RMB16.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB21.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, primarily attributable to the Group continued
our focus of research and development on hazardous waste

incineration solutions and new area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 81.7% from RMB6.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB1.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily
attributable to the interest on obligation arising from a put
option amounted to RMB5.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

On 4 April 2018, the Group entered into two joint venture
agreements with Orient Landscape Group Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd. (“Orient Landscape”) for the investment
in Guangzhou Weigang. Pursuant to such agreements, the
Group granted Orient Landscape a put option, which if the
Listing does not take place on or before 3 April 2020, Orient
Landscape is entitled to require the Group to purchase all
of the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient
Landscape at a price equal to the sum of (i) the Subscription
Price plus an interest of 8% per annum and (ii) any declared

but unpaid dividends.

Pursuant to the put option aforementioned, the investment
from Orient Landscape is recognised as obligation arising
from a put option, and the corresponding interest of 8% per
annum during 2018 is recognised in obligation arising from
a put option and profit or loss. Pursuant to such agreements
aforementioned, as the Listing of the Company already
succeeded, the put option lapsed and all the previously
recognised interest expenses had been reversed through
equity at the Listing date of the Company in 2019 without any
payment to Orient Landscape.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists of current tax and deferred tax

for PRC enterprise income tax.

The Company operated business principally through its PRC
subsidiaries which were subject to the PRC enterprise income
tax at a statutory rate of 25% on its estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 25%).
Guangzhou Weigang was recognised as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” in 2019 again and was entitled to a
preferential PRC income tax rate of 15% for each of 2019,
2020 and 2021 and such recognition can be applied for

renewal every three years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

The Group’s effective tax rate decreased from 15.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to 14.5% for the year ended
31 December 2019, primarily due to the Group had super-
deduction on R&D expenses for income tax amounted to
RMB3.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year increased by 35.9% from RMB57.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB78.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the Group’s
rapid growth in business. The net profit margin increased from
12.0% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 14.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase of

gross profit margin and no Listing expenses incurred in 2019.

Trade and note receivables

The increase in trade and note receivables from RMB142.8
million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB143.9 million as at 31
December 2019 was primarily due to an increase in the total

number of ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.

The average trade receivables turnover days increased from
67.1 days in 2018 to 83.6 days in 2019 as the management
allowed relatively longer turnover days for the receivables for
oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services, which is also

a common practice to deal with the oil production entity.
Trade payables

The increase in trade payables from RMB84.1 million as at
31 December 2018 to RMB119.6 million as at 31 December
2019 was primarily due to an increase in the procurement of
equipment and materials, as well as sub-contracting services
which was generally in line with the expanded business
and number of outstanding projects of hazardous waste

incineration at the end of 2019.

The average trade payables turnover days increased from
60.1 days in 2018 to 94.5 days in 2019 as the Group intended
to better manage liquidity and cash flow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

Contract assets

The increase in contract assets from RMB177.0 million as at
31 December 2018 to RMB274.4 million as at 31 December
2019 was primarily due to an increase in our total number of

ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.
Contract liabilities

The decrease in contract liabilities from RMB72.9 million as
at 31 December 2018 to RMB44.2 million as at 31 December
2019 was primarily due to the Group speed up the progress
of ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.

Bank Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB26.6 million provided by two commercial banks in China
with personal guarantees provided by the Group’s controlling
shareholder, Mr. Cai Zhuhua, and his spouse, Ms. Huang Ying
(2018: RMB10.0 million).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s material
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB73.8
million (2018: RMB11.7 million), mainly used for (1) the
purchase of oil sludge treatment facility for the Group’s
second thermal desorption project in Karamay; (2) the
purchase of Cement Plant Co-treatment facility for a project
in Guangdong; (3) the purchase of pyrolysis solid waste
treatment facility for a project in Sichuan and another project
in Shandong; and (4) the remaining payment amount of
patents for pyrolysis solid waste treatment methods, which

was purchased in 2018.
Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitment
amounted to RMB13.0 million (2018: RMB4.6 million) which
consisted mainly of payments to be made for (1) the Cement
Plant Co-treatment project in Guangdong; (2) the pyrolysis

solid waste treatment project in Sichuan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged deposits of
RMB53.0 million (2018: RMB43.9 million) mainly for (1) deposit
for bank acceptance which the Group issued to its suppliers;
and (2) deposit for bank guarantee given to several customers

for performance obligation fulfilment.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.
Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the current assets of the Group
were approximately RMB651.1 million, total assets were
approximately RMB802.0 million, current liabilities were
approximately RMB223.9 million and total liabilities were
approximately RMB227.9 million. The gearing ratio (total
liabilities/total assets) of the Group was approximately 28.4%
(2018: 66.1%).

PROSPECTS

In recent years, the PRC government has over time introduced
a series of policies that have far-reaching impact on the
development of the environmental protection industry,
and promoted the sustained and rapid development of
environmental protection. The realisation of “Beautiful China
initiative” and “Ecological Civilization” has been written
into the PRC Constitution, highlighting the importance of
ecological civilization construction in the overall layout of the
country, and the construction of ecological civilization has
risen to the level of national will. With a strong support from
national policies, the demand for solid waste treatment will
continue to grow. The Group will seize these development
opportunities by virtue of its own strength and a leading solid

waste treatment solutions provider in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

The novel coronaries outbreak in early 2020, which has
caused disruption to businesses and market uncertainties in
the affected regions, may further impose a negative impact
on the economy. Taking into account the challenge for
epidemic prevention presented by the Group’s geographically
dispersed business presence and staff deployment, the
Group has also swiftly set up a epidemic prevention regime
comprising the head office and the project companies,
with specific duties, tasks and guidelines for epidemic
prevention allocated to ensure that there would be no blind
spots in epidemic prevention. The impact of the epidemic of
coronavirus on the operation status of the Group has been
controllable as a result of the adoption of the plans mentioned
above, and whether the Group will be further impacted is

subject to the evolution of the epidemic in China.

The Group will continue to capture the opportunities brought
by the policies for the development of the environmental
protection industry, and actively seize more business
opportunities from solid waste treatment by commercialising
its advanced solid waste treatment technologies to market
with the resources from strategic shareholders, the capital
market network, and its strong R&D capabilities. The Group
will still continue to focus on the technology innovation to
further expand the Group’s business scope, maintain the
Group’s leading position in the market, maximize shareholder
returns. Looking forward, the Group will carry out the following

tasks with its existing advantages:

Continue to consolidate the leading market position and

expand the market share on hazardous waste incineration

The Group will focus on: (1) further improving technics
on hazardous waste incineration treatments; (2) continue
to cultivate customer relationships as well as explore
new customers in both China and oversea markets; (3)
facilitate more frequent communications and provide more
comprehensive value-add services with industry participants;
and (4) further investment on other area of hazardous waste
treatment, including applying the facilities of oil sludge
thermal desorption technology, upgrading cement production
facilities to implement hazardous waste cooperative disposal

system and etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

Grasp more business opportunities on solid waste

treatment through industrialization of pyrolysis technology

The Group will explore the demand of market by developing
and commercializing solutions for a number of new solid
waste treatment applications such as with respect to waste

new energy batteries and waste paper residues.

Further enhance our competitiveness and risk

management with the adoption of more project models

The Group will continue to seek opportunities to participate
in solid waste treatment projects by exploring different
project models, such as the first operation and maintenance
services project, an oil sludge treatment facility designed
and commissioned in Karamay. In future, the Group may also
consider investing in and/or operating its own solid waste
treatment projects as primary or joint project owner in other

new area of solid waste treatment industry.

Utilize capital market platform to realize enterprise value

appreciation

While developing business and expanding the markets, the
Group will leverage its strong capital strength to enter the
fields of solid waste treatment through various approaches,
such as technology cooperation, investment, mergers and
acquisitions, so as to build an integrated environmental

industry group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market practices.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 230 employees
(2018: 200 employees), among which approximately 150 were
personnel conducting R&D, project management and execution for

our business.

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject to

the approval by the shareholders in the general meeting.

ERREERARBEM IR BEESK
B E YRR A

AEEFRBREREE R CEZEHE
REREY) R B R AR DT = (DI RE B 3T e TR
BHORERERES)  UBEMSHEX -

EMSRAEZWEERSN - E—HRFA
S 303 L B i I

AEBBEBERBEWTRERER - I
SR2EEREYEERB OKE - fim
BEE S R RF IR B A RR 7 A 3K
RET MR IR R A o AR - AR
BAAREEE BAHE TERBAHEE A
MENERERHELBENEBEYE
IR B W R A FTEE o

EREATEVFERRMREE

REREBLRBERT SR  AEEKERE
HAHEABEEBEEE(RMAE
RE - G EABREYEIZASY - M
Y — AR ERRITESE -

BE R FHMEER

FMZE S EMY IR AR B EBR
NERBEERAEETREEEREHHORE -
HREZRIAKENEERE EFRALE
BEMEATIERBRARBETSED -

R2019F12A31H ASEBEEE230%EE
(20184 : 200% BB ) EFH150%EE B
ERMEFOWE - BEEERINIT

EENFMIRERSOBRERBBLL2ER
M RRBRFBER FIRITTAREE - A
TR A S LHETTATER -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B INRZRIHIZEREHABR A T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®E D

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 January 2019.

The net proceeds raised from the global offering were approximately

HK$259.4 million (approximately equivalent to RMB227.2 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change

in the intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in

the prospectus of the Company dated 19 December 2018 (the

“prospectus”).

Unit: RMB million

By - A\REBET

Utilisation of the pyrolysis technology
for the treatment of various types of

solid waste

PRI R E R EY RN EAHER

Bl

Establishment of a research and
engineering centre

FYER A FE R TAZ R oLy

Commercialisation of oil sludge thermal

desorption technology

RYEmER B B A M EA

Invest in and operate the business
of cement plant parallel kiln co-

treatment solutions

REREREEKEDBEETTHREE

R RE

Working capital and general corporate

use
BEEEE S R—RAR AR

Total
@it

Net proceeds
from the global
offering

2R

BEFRS
REFE

90.9

45.4

34.1

22.7

Utilisation up to
31 December
2019
HZE20195
12A31H
EBHAEH

63.1

8.6

13.1

22.7

FEREAR

ANABR2019F1 A3SEEBIF LT - 25
BESENMEREFHEANR2594888E T
(HENARME2272HETT) - HZE 20195 12
R31BIEFER - £RE20185F 12 A 198 &Y
AARBRER(BRER ) RENMEHIBF
BT RS EZS -

Unutilised Expected timeline
amount of the unutilised amount

RBRAEH
RBAEHE FErHEREHE

27.8 The unutilised amount is
expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
RE B EBIER 2023 F N+
AIEEER TR

45.4  The unutilised amount is
expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
REMERIBR 2023 F T+ F
AEHERTE

25.5 The unutilised amount is
expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
ABAERIBR 2023 F T+ F
AEEERTE

21.0 The unutilised amount is
expected to be fully utilised
by the second half of 2023
APAEREFE2023F T +5F
REEER TR

— N/A

TER

227.2

107.5

119.7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

OTHER INFORMATION
Adoption of Dividend Policy

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 26
March 2019 (“Dividend Policy”) that aims to set out the principles
and guidelines of the Company in relation to the declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should
be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
When considering dividend declaration recommendation, the Board

shall take into account of the following factors:
(i) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(i)  capital requirement for the Group’s existing/ potential project

or investment;

(iii)  earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable

reserves of the Company and the Group; and
(iv) other factors that the Board deem relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
provisions of the Articles of the Company, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to
recommend final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and
to declare or not to declare any other dividends, including but
not limited to interim and/or special dividends, after taking into

consideration the factors as stated in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended and modified from

time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

DIRECTORS

Name
]

Mr. CAl Zhuhua
BIREESE

Mr. DONG Honghui
B E

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BKELEE

Mr. REN Jingfeng
EREESE

Mr. YANG Zhigiang
BEREE

Mr. YANG Zhifeng
HEIELE

Mr. FENG Tao
BERE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang
BER KL

=

Age
FiR

56
56 5%

49
49 5%

53
53 5%

77
775

59
59 5%

56
56 5%

45
45 5%

44
44 5%

Date of appointment

BREAH

18 May 2017
201745 H 18 H

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27 B

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27 B

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27 A

8 November 2018
2018411 A8 H

3 January 2019
20194 1HA3H

3 January 2019
201941 A3H

3 January 2019
201941 HA3H

Position

B

Executive Director

HITES

Executive Director

HITESE

Executive Director

WITESE

Non-executive Director

FHITE=S

Non-executive Director

FHITEF

Independent non-executive Director

B TES

Independent non-executive Director

BUIFNTES

Independent non-executive Director

BUIFNTES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREERE

Mr. CAl Zhuhua, aged 56, is an executive Director and the
chairman of our Board since 27 April 2018. Mr. CAl is responsible
for the management of the Board and the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr.
CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG, who is a member of our senior
management. Mr. CAl is also the chairman of the nomination

committee of the Board.

Mr. CAIl has over 20 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions and in particular for hazardous waste

incineration.

Mr. CAl was awarded a bachelor’'s degree in welding engineering
by South China University of Technology* (¥ T AZ) (then
known as South China Engineering College* (¥ F T £t )) in
the PRC in July 1984. Mr. CAl was certified as an engineer by
Guangzhou Science and Technology Committee* (&N Rl 2RI E
&%) in March 1993.

Mr. DONG Honghui, aged 49, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DONG is responsible for the daily operation of our
Group.

Mr. DONG has over 13 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. Mr. DONG joined the Group in 2009 and has
been the general manager of Guangzhou Weigang Environmental
Protection Technology Limited* (B /M # B REREBHEER A7)
(“Guangzhou Weigang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. DONG obtained a bachelor's degree in material science and
engineering from Northwestern Polytechnical University* (7 1t
T K2) in China in July 1993. Mr. DONG was certified as a
mechanical engineer by Guangzhou Personnel Bureau* (E/MHASE
/&) in January 2003.

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan, aged 53, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DENG is responsible for the project management,
technical supervision and research and development for our

Group’s business.

BWIRERL 5655 0 H20184F 4 27 H AHIT
EEHREFR -FARLEEBEEFTEEEUREKE
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGSREERE

Mr. DENG has over 12 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. He joined our Group in 2009 and has been
the chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Guangzhou
Weigang. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. DENG received a bachelor's degree in Cementitious Material
Science from South China University of Technology* (#ERFIET A
&) in China in July 1988. Mr. DENG was certified as a cement
production process engineer by Guangdong International Trust &
Investment Co., Ltd.* (ERBEE5EE A R]) in November 1995.

Mr. REN Jingfeng, aged 77, was appointed as the non-executive
Director in April 2018. Mr. REN is responsible for supervising and

providing engineering technology advice to the Board.

Mr. REN Jingfeng graduated from the PRC Military Institute of
Engineering for People’s Liberation Army* (B A RENEEZTSE T2
27 ) in March 1966. He was awarded a certificate for completion
of national technological contract law training course* (2B
BRVEZEEIRIT4EZEFEZE) by the State Science and Technology
Commission* (BIREIE#iTZ E€) and the Legal Affairs Bureau
of the State Council* (B#FtAHI/S) in October 1987. Mr. REN
Jingfeng also received a certificate of qualification for senior
S TF2E0) by the Aviation Industry Department* (#iz=
T %B) of Shaanxi Job Title Reform Leading Committee* (PR7E% B
TEERESBE /) in June 1988.

engineer*

Mr. REN Jingfeng is the father of Mr. REN Yunan, one of our
substantial Shareholders until 27 September 2019.

Mr. YANG Zhiqiang, aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive

Director in November 2018.

Mr. YANG served as the chief legal officer of China Everbright
International Limited (FREI¥ KEBEBRAF) (“CEIL),
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 257), from

the shares

July 2012 to March 2016, and as a non-executive director of China
Everbright Water Limited (B KK AR A7), a subsidiary
of CEIL and listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (stock code: U9E.SG), from December
2014 to February 2017.

Mr. YANG has been serving as the executive director and vice
president of China Everbright Greentech Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1257), since
May 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREERE

Mr. YANG obtained a bachelor's degree from the Medical Science
Department of Beijing Medical University* (JtRERIKXE) in the
PRC and a postgraduate diploma in law from the College of Law of
England and Wales. Mr. YANG has the qualification of an attending

doctor and is a qualified lawyer in the PRC.

Mr. YANG Zhifeng, aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. YANG has over 23 years of experience in research and
education in the environmental science field. Since October
1995, Mr. YANG has been working as a professor at the School
of Environment of Beijing Normal University* (1L REI&IAE). Mr.
YANG served as the head of the Institute of Environmental Science*
(BRIFBRIEBITFT) of Beijing Normal University* (1t A& AE) from
November 1999 to September 2003. From October 2003 to January
2016, Mr. YANG served as the dean of School of Environment of
Beijing Normal University* (1t 5iAI&IAE) .

Mr. YANG obtained the degree of doctor in philosophy in
engineering from Tsinghua University (& # KX £ ) in China in
December 1989. Mr. YANG has been a fellow member of the
Chinese Academy of Engineering* (FFE L#2Ft) since November
2015.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 45, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. FENG has over 14 years’ experience in providing financial
management services to listed companies. Mr. FENG served as
the chief financial officer, from September 2013 to November 2017,
and an executive director, from December 2013 to October 2017,
of Peace Map Holding Limited (K NEERBBRAF]), the shares of

which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 402).

Mr. FENG obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting from Central
University of Finance and Economics (FR R Bf & K ) in China
in June 1997 and a master’s degree in business administration
from Peking University (1£5K&) in China in January 2010. Mr.
FENG obtained a professional technology qualification in business
administration and economics (intermediate level)* (L& B
(AR BERMTER) from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC* (3 AR HFE A N &R ERIEE)
in November 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang, aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. JIANG has served as a partner of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* (4
ST A EREMEEFT) since October 2012. Prior to that, Mr. JIANG was
a vice president of BOCGI Zheshang Capital Co. Ltd.* (FiR#&RE
HEEXESEEEMRAF]) from August 2010 to September 2012,
a partner of the Hangzhou branch of King & Wood Mallesons (4t
et EMEBRIMNAFT) from August 2008 to July 2010 and an
associate of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* CIT AMEEIEHFT) from
April 1999 to July 2008.

Mr. JIANG has been an independent director of Zhejiang
Communications Technology Co., Ltd.* G I X @B EEHD AR
‘Ad]) since December 2013, the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 002061), and an
independent non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings
Limited (BRI Z8#Eit AR A7) (Formerly known as Leap Holdings
Group Limited) since 31 August 2018, the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499).

Mr. JIANG obtained his bachelor's degree in laws from Peking
University* (465X KE) in the PRC in July 1997, and is a practising
PRC lawyer.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Name Age

#H& FiR

Dr. WANG Zhicheng 55

FEKIET 55 3%
Ms. HUANG Ying 52
BB T 52 5%
Mr. CUI Jinhong 46
BRI EE 46 5%,
Mr. LI Zhouxin 35)
FRAMESE 3573%
Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan 35
BRRETT 355%
Mr. GU Chunbin 30
ZEWEE 30%%

EREERE

Date of joining
the Group
MAZEEH B H

1 May 2018
201845818

15 July 2009
20094 7 A 158

1 February 2017
201746 2H1H

24 February 2017
201742 H24H

2 March 2018
201843 H2H

1 December 2016
2016 F 12 A1 H

Position

B

Chief scientist and a
deputy general manager
BRI ERRE EsE

Deputy general manager
Bl IR

Assistant to Cheif
Executive Officer

FEginpid

Chief financial officer

BERUHE

Financial Controller
=

Joint company secretary
and head of corporate
investment and
financing

R ARIMERDE
R AP

Responsibility

BE

Overseeing the research
and development of our
Group in relation to solid
waste treatment solutions

BN E R AR BRI R
7RI R

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group
EEASERTEL

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group
EEASHEBRES

Overseeing the financial and
accounting affairs of our
Group

EBAEEVBLREHER

Responsible for the financial
and accounting affairs of
our Group

BEAKEUNBREFES

Handling handling corporate
governance, corporate
investment, corporate
finance, investor
relations and corporate
administrative matters of
our Group

BRIEBEEER  BRIEHE
BEEBELANEE QT
THRES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Dr. WANG Zhicheng, aged 55, joined our Group in May 2018 as
the chief scientist and a deputy general manager of our Group.
Dr. WANG is mainly responsible for overseeing the research and
development of our Group in providing solutions for solid waste
treatment. Prior to joining our Group, Dr. WANG had been providing
technical support in relation to solid waste treatment to our Group

since January 2017.

Dr. WANG has over 18 years of experience in the environmental
protection industry. Dr. WANG is the inventor, or designer of,
various patents registered, or pending registration, in the PRC in the

field of pyrolysis technology.

Dr. WANG received a bachelor’'s degree in chemistry from Sichuan
University (P9)I|K&) in China in July 1986, and a master’'s degree
in chemical engineering from Sinopec Research Institute of
Petroleum Processing* (R EIA{LHFEFL) in China in January 1991,
and the degree of doctor in philosophy in materials science from the
Clark Atlanta University in the U.S. in May 1999.

Ms. HUANG Ying, aged 52, joined our Group in July 2009 as a
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang and is mainly
responsible for overseeing our daily operations. She is a director of

Guangzhou Weigang.

Ms. HUANG received a college diploma in architectural studies
from the Guangdong Architectural Engineering Technical College*
(BEREZETEEREZR) in June 1990, and was awarded an
architectural design engineer qualification by the Guangzhou First
Evaluation Committee of Architectural Engineering Technology
Engineer* (BMMEETRRFITTIRME—FEZEE) in November
1998.

Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAl, who is an executive Director

and a Controlling Shareholder.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREERE

Mr. CUI Jinhong, aged 46, joined our Group in February 2017 as a
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang. Mr. CUI currently
serves as the assistant to the Chief Executive Officer and is mainly
responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our Group.

Mr. CUl has over 19 years of experience in the environmental

protection industry.

Mr. CUl obtained a bachelor's degree in chemical machinery and
equipment from the South China University of Technology* (Z
FIE T KEZ) in the PRC in July 1995 and a master's degree in
environmental engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
(WBEEIEAZ) in the PRC in January 2008. Mr. CUIl was certified
as an Environmental Protection Technology Engineer* (3RIE(REH i
T72f0) by Shenzhen Job Title Management Office* (R YIIB% T & 12 3%
‘AZ) in December 2002.

Mr. LI Zhouxin, aged 35, joined our Group as a consultant in
February 2017 to provide advice on financial matters and strategic
development of our Group; and since February 2018, he has been
the chief financial officer of our Group. Mr. LI is mainly responsible

for overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of our Group.

Mr. LI has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance,
investment management and strategic planning. From November
2015 to April 2017, Mr. LI served as the chief financial officer
of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited (CRAKZEEIERBER A &)
(formerly known as Future Development Holdings Limited, China
Child Care Corporation Limited and Prince Frog International
Holdings Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1259). He has also been a non-executive
director of China Child Care Corporation Limited since June
2017 and was one of its executive directors from January 2016 to
June 2017. From November 2017, Mr. LI has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings
Limited (BIRIEZ§#IER AR AR]) (Formerly known as Leap Holdings
Group Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1499). Mr. LI is currently the vice chairman
of the 8th Executive Committee of the Youth Business Association of
Fujian Province* (BEEEFFED).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGSREERE

Mr. LI received a bachelor’'s degree in finance from Fuzhou
University in China in July 2007, and received an EMBA degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in June 2019.
Mr. LI is a PRC certified public accountant (non-practising) and a
certified management accountant recognised by the U.S. Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. LI was qualified as an intermediate
economist* (FFARLLERT) by Zhangzhou Profession Reform Office*
CEMHBLLHE) in January 2016. Mr. LI also holds a Certification in
Risk Management Assurance accredited by the Institute of Internal
Auditors.

Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan, aged 35, joined our Group in March 2018
as the financial controller. He is responsible for the financial and

accounting affairs of our Group.
Mr. ZHENG has over 10 years of experience in finance and auditing.

Mr. ZHENG obtained his bachelor’s degree in finance from
Shenzhen University* OFIJIIKE) in the PRC in June 2008. He was
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant* (3Fft&5t6f) in the PRC
in February 2012.

Mr. GU Chunbin, aged 30, joined our Group in December 2016 as
a consultant to provide advice on financial matters and strategic
development of our Group and currently is one of the joint company
secretary of the Company as well as head of corporate investment
and financing. Mr. GU is mainly responsible for handling corporate
governance, corporate investment, corporate finance, investor

relations and corporate administrative matters.

Mr. GU received a bachelor’'s degree in logistics management from
Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade* (L/E¥4MNE 5 EME) in China
in July 2012 and concurrently, a bachelor’s degree in business
(logistics and supply chain management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Australia in June 2012. He also obtained a
master’s degree in media management from the Hong Kong Baptist

University in Hong Kong in November 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Directors the Company has fully complied
with  the CG Code during the Period except from the deviation
from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices

to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have strictly complied with the required standards set out in the

Model Code during the period.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all
dealings by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
securities in the Company as referred to in code provision A.6.4 of
the CG Code. No incident of non- compliance with the Model Code
by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted during the

Reporting Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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EXERRSE

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board Committees including the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee. The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the

success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control

and risk management systems are in place.
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Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors. Members of the Board are

listed below:
Members of the Board Position
EEERE B4

Executive Directors

BITES
Mr. CAl Zhuhua

BIRELL

Mr. DONG Honghui
BB E

Executive Director

MITES

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BIkBIEE

Executive Director

HITE=S

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. REN Jinfeng
EREEE

Non-executive Director

FRITES

Non-executive Director

FRTES

Mr.YANG Zhigiang
BEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BAFHTES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

EEamER

ExeRiBmN\REFTEN  BR=-2HTE
= MEFRTESR=2BUIFNTEE - E

EeREREWNT ¢

Chairman of the Board, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
BER  BITESRITERAEH

Independent Non-executive Directors

T % & BUIERITES
Mr. FENG Tao Independent Non-executive Directors
Vet BN IEHITES

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

BEREE BUIFNITESF

Independent Non-executive Directors

Date of appointment

ZERH

18 May 2017
201745 H18H

27 April 2018

20184 4 A 27 H

27 April 2018
20184 4 27 H

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27H

8 November 2018
2018 11 A8 H

3 January 2019
201941 A3 H

3 January 2019
201941 A 3H

3 January 2019
201941 A3 H
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. All Directors have carried
out duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and the

Shareholders at all times.

Biography of each Director is set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or

other material/relevant relationship(s)) between the Directors.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cai Zhuhua serves as
chairman as well as chief executive officer of the Company and this
dual role leadership has been in practice by the Company since
2009. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered
to be more efficient to have one single person to be chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of
a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals, with half of them being
non-executive directors of the Company. The Company will review

the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Period, the Company has three independent non-
executive Directors in compliance with the Rules 3.10(1) and Rules
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors accounts for more than one-third of the number

of the Board members.
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According to the Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have made confirmations to the
Company regarding their independence during the Period. Based
on the confirmations of the independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers each of them to be independent during the
Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall

be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Memorandum and Articles

of Association.

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service contract
with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date or until the third annual general meeting of the Company since
the Listing Date (whichever ends earlier). Either party has the right
to give not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the

agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter on 10 December 2018 with the Company with an
initial term for three years or until the third annual general meeting
of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier,
subject to re-election as and when required under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party

giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company on 10 December 2018
with an initial term for three years or until the third annual general
meeting of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends
earlier, subject to re-election as and when required under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association unless terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the appointment letter
or by either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior

notice in writing.
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In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment. Any director appointed as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.
Training and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their

contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. As at 31 December 2019, each of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
has read the training materials provided by the company secretary
of the Company or attended training courses and lectures. The
content of such training related to risk management and internal
control, the latest company regulations, public governance

guidelines and corporate governance guidelines.

All the Directors have been updated with the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors will be arranged

whenever necessary.
Directors’ Responsibility on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring
that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied
with.
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The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an

informed assessment for approving the financial statements.
Board Meetings and General Meeting

Up to the year ended 31 December 2019, seven Board meetings
and one General Meeting were held for reviewing and approving
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
and other matters. The attendance records of Board Meetings and
General Meeting for all Directors are set out in the table below. In
addition to Board meetings, the Chairman held one meeting with
independent non-executive directors annually without the presence

of executive directors.

Name of Directors
EEnE

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. CAl Zhuhua
BRI A

Mr. DONG Honghui
BAE S

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BkESLE

Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. REN Jingfeng
ERERE

Mr. YANG Zhigiang

B AE

EFRCUERAEEERHEERD - LEH
WHBRER - AEEFERIEL RS EH
AR -

EsggBrRRAE

HZE2019F12A31IBLEE L AEEZES S
ER—RBREREERT UEHRIEEZR
mmﬁmﬂmaiiﬁ%%ﬁi&ﬁ@%
c PREEHFEESZSEZRBRIEAG LR
WT%°%§$§Q%%'I%EﬁE#%ﬁ§
ERITT - RPTEFTHENEE

Meetings attended/ Meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

meetings held in 2019 meetings held in 2019

R2019 HiE R2019 HiE
BIIRRAGARH BTETENY
11 7/7

1/1 7/7

1/1 7/7

1/1 7/7

1/1 717
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Name of Directors
EEnE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BAFHTES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

HEE R E

Mr. FENG Tao

R E

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

BERTE

Notices for all regular Board meeting and the agenda and
accompanying Board paper will be given to all Directors at least
3 days before the meetings in order that they have sufficient time
to review the papers. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors or Board
Committee members for information and records. Directors who
have conflicts of interest in a board resolution have abstained from

voting for that resolution.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Tao, Mr. YANG Zhifeng
and Mr. JIANG Guoliang. Mr. FENG, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, serves as the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include examining
independently the financial positions of the Company, overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system, the audit process and proposals of internal
management, communicating independently with, monitoring and

verifying the work of internal audit and external auditors.

Meetings attended/ Meetings attended/

Number of general Number of Board

meetings held in 2019 meetings held in 2019

R2019 HifE M2019 HfE
BIIRRASARH BTETENY
1/1 5/7

1/1 7/7

1/1 7/7
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Up to the year ended 31 December 2019, three meetings were
held by the Audit Committee to review the annual/interim financial
results and report and major internal audit issues, re-appointment
of external auditors and relevant scope of works and continuing

connected transactions.

Name of committee member ZEENENSR
Mr. FENG Tao (chairman) BB E(EE)
Mr. YANG Zhifeng ol it
Mr. JIANG Guoliang BERSE

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function), risk management systems and processes and the
reappointment of the external auditor and fulfilled duties as required
aforesaid. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation
given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor. They also reviewed final
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit. There
are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
FENG Tao (chairman), Mr. DONG Honghui and Mr. JIANG Guoliang,
the majority of them are independent non-executive Directors. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to recommend
the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior

management.

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE  EXEET
BIT=Re  UEHFE/TFHUKEERSE
RANIEIZEE ~ BENEEINEZEED A X AE
TSR RIFERERS -

Attended/number of meeting(s) held
HESBRY BIEBRH

3/3
3/3
3/3
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Up to the year ended 31 December 2019, one meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee on 26 March 2019 for
considering and recommending to the Board the remuneration
and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors and senior
management and other related matters. The table below sets forth

the details of the attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member ZEERENA
Mr. FENG Tao (chairman) BREE(EE)
Mr. DONG Honghui BAIE A
Mr. JIANG Guoliang BRR LA

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the
Company, made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management

and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
Remuneration of senior management

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company (who are not the Directors) is shown in the following table
by band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z % 1,000,000 #7T
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. CAl Zhuhua (chairman), Mr. FENG Tao and Mr. JIANG
Guoliang, the majority of them are independent non-executive

Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, to make
recommendation to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or in the management, and to assess the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

REZES

RELZEEH=BREAR - BIEIRELE(E
B)  BEEERBERELE  ABOKERE
MIFMITES -

REZBEENIERBRELESFRIEZEN
RE - RERARK  YHEEESEAARRRN
ERBEELAEMZREBIRMER - SR
HEFER HEBEERONEMNESGRH
B WAHE B IFRITEFTAE L

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%

45



46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to

the Board for decision.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2019, one meeting was
held by the Nomination Committee on 26 March 2019 to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the retiring
Directors. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at

the meeting:

Name of committee member ZEENENS
Mr. CAl Zhuhua (chairman) BIRESE(EE)
Mr. FENG Tao BERE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang BERKE

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, considered the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment
required from the non-executive Director and fulfilled duties as

required aforesaid.

NOMINATION POLICY
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “BD Policy”)
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules with
effect from 26 March 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the BD Policy and will from
time to time review the BD Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the

effectiveness of the BD Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the

collective responsibility of Directors which include:

o to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Period, the joint company secretaries of the Company
are Mr. GU Chunbin and Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty. The primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. GU Chunbin, one of the joint company

secretaries of the Company.

AUDITOR

Financial statements contained in this report have been audited by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited. Service fees which shall be paid
by the Company to Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited for the year

amounted to RMB1.7 million.

Service rendered

EHEAMEE
EXER/EXERNESNARELT €5
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BB B

RREPEMEMRE BRBEE SN EE A
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FBERARNRBERARE17TEET °

Fees Payable

Fri M AR % ERERA
(RMB)

(ARM)

Audit service EZ RIS 1,600,000
Non-audit services IEEZIRTE 104,000
Total et 1,704,000
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

is set out in the Auditor’s Report on page 94 to 96.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of
such systems on an annual basis. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group utilises an integrated risk management system to
minimise and protect against a range of strategic, business,
financial and legal risks. Through our risk management system,
we seek to manage and reduce risks, encourage effective and
reliable communication, maintain legal compliance and improve the

efficiency of our business and management.

Our risk management system is implemented on three levels. Its
implementation starts with the manager of each department who
is responsible for organising the daily work in accordance with the
relevant policies. The second level involves the active role of the
internal audit department which centralises our risk management
policies and supervises the individual departments through periodic
audits. The Group has also engaged external consultants to perform
a review of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. Finally, the highest level involves decision-making by the
board of directors regarding certain risk management decisions.
The relevant personnel at these three levels are in frequent
communication in order to ensure accurate information is shared

between all parties.

In order to formulate and implement effective policies, our risk
management system emphasises continuous information gathering.
Our risk management system collects data on a variety of business,
financial and legal risks such as market demand, technological
trends and innovations, comparisons with our competitors, our
financial performance and results of operation, costs of services,
changes in intellectual property law, company laws and possible

legal disputes.
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The information gathered is used for risk assessment. Our risk
assessment procedures take into account our Company’s overall
risk philosophy and seek to accurately evaluate how a potential risk
may affect our objective in the strategic, business, compliance and
financial reporting areas. We seek to identify both internal risks,
such as employee ethics, our financial condition or product quality,
as well as external risks, such as economic and legal developments,
technology advances and environmental factors. Identified risks are
assessed on the basis of likelihood of occurrence and the degree of
influence it may have on our business. Risks with a high probability
of occurring are more closely examined in order to ensure accurate
results. We then determine what countermeasures should be
implemented in order to avoid, absorb or reduce such risks and any

negative consequences.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control and risk
management weaknesses nor significant breach of limits or risk
management policies, and considers that the current monitoring
systems of the Company are effective and that the qualifications
and experience of the staff, performing accounting and financial
reporting functions and the training programmes of the Company
as well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget
of the Company are adequate. The Company has complied with
the requirements under C.2.1 to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the CG Code

relating to risk management and internal control.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any two or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other
than a Director for election as a Director at the Company’s general
meeting (“Proposal”), he/she should lodge a written notice setting
out the Proposal and his/her contact details at the principal place of
business of the Company or the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. The Proposal should
include the biographical details of the proposed Director and a
written notice signed by the proposed Director confirming his/her
willingness to be elected, the accuracy and completeness of his/her

biographical details.
Shareholders’ inquires

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings, please
write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor

Investor Services Limited, at:

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066

Fax: (852) 2262 7584

Website: www.tricorglobal.com
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Investor relations and communications

The Company has set up a website at www.gzwigang.com as a
channel to promote communication, publishing announcements,
financial information and other relevant information of the Company.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate

manner.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company have

been amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (*WG”)
(Stock Code: 1845) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as
the “Group” or “We”) are pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and express commitment of the Group
to corporate social responsibility. The Group would like to take this
opportunity to present the ESG performance to all stakeholders,
and put forward the commitments and contributions on social

responsibility.

The Report is prepared both in English and Chinese. In case
of inconsistency, the English version shall prevail. Electronic
version of this ESG Report is available for downloading from the
website of HKEx at www.hkexnews.hk. If you have any enquiries or
suggestions regarding this ESG Report, please feel free to contact

us at gzwg@gzweigang.com.
Report Scope

The Report details the operations of the Group’s core business for
the financial year from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 (this
“Year” or the “Reporting Period”). The reporting scope of the Report
covers the ESG performance of the comprehensive hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution segment in mainland China and Hong

Kong.
Reporting Principles

The Report has been prepared according to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange. The Report is based on the four report
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.
To ensure the accuracy of key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
at the environmental level, the Group commissioned independent
professional consultants to conduct the carbon assessment to
quantify the greenhouse gas emissions generated in the course of
operations. The index is available in the last chapter of the Report

for readers.
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Confirmation and approval

The Group has established internal controls and formal review
procedures to ensure that all information presented in the
Report is as accurate and reliable as possible. The Company’s
board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the
measurement and KPI setting and disclosure. To ensure that the
Report covers environmental and social issues that are important
to the Group, this report has been reviewed by the Board and
approved by the Board on 27 March 2020.

Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in the Report were prepared
based on internal statistics, internal policy documents and other
internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or
misleading statements were made in the Report.

The Report contains forward-looking statements that are based on
several assumptions and expectations at the time of its publication.
Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to be reliable
after internal reviewing process. The statements consist of known
and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that actual
results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and conclusions
made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the accuracy of
the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any liability for
and assume no responsibility to correct or update those forward-
looking statements in the event that any of the statements does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

Contact Us

For more information on the Group’s sustainable development,
please refer to the Group’s official website and the annual report.
The Group values the stakeholders’ views on the Report. Should you
have any query or feedback on the Report, please contact us via
the following channels:

Tel: 020-3221-1246

Email: gzwg@gzweigang.com

Official website: www.gzweigang.com
ESG governance

We believe that the excellent principles and practices of corporate
can enhance the trust of stakeholders in the Group and the Group
can fulfill its social responsibility and create long-term value. In
order to enhance and protect the interests of stakeholders, the
Group plans to gradually improve corporate governance standards
and develop transparent, proactive and value-driven management
practices in the future.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to create sustainable growth and long-term
value for its stakeholders. In order to establish a close relationship
with stakeholders, the Group has established a transparent, honest
and accurate communication mechanism, including the Company’s

website, Annual General Meeting and staff meetings, etc., to

KirENS R

ARBBAORKNERETHERRLEHNE
B> REFNERLZETNEE  AKEDEY
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ensure timely response to stakeholders. In the future, the Group will

continue to strengthen its interaction with stakeholders and establish

a mutually beneficial and win-win relationship.

Stakeholder group
K0 EER

Concerns and expectations
BERHE

BE) BYBMNERMNBRE -

Communication channel

BERE

Shareholders and investors

Return on investment; avoid operational

risks; long-term development of the

General meeting; corporate

communication; visiting activities;

business announcements; regularly publish annual
report and ESG report
ARER IR E & KREM@®R : e ERR  EBRREER IRRARE « hEBA K AE - EHT
BERMERE  HERERRE
Employees Work-life balance; clear and feasible Employee meetings; employee activities;
system and process information; Intranet; performance appraisal and
promotion and development interviews; conferences
(== TAEEAE T - R MR &R EM A BESZ  EEEY  ABHE RRAHR

g ETTHEER

2
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Suppliers and business

partners

{3 R R T B

Clear and comprehensive procurement
information description; smooth
communication channels

RBARHDBM T8  BRRESA

Conferences, supplier management

system; site visits

B HEREERG REER

Government departments and

regulatory authorities

Conform with the requirements of the
environment and safety related laws and
regulations; tax accordingly to law; timely

update of policies and regulations

Supervision and assessment; meeting in

relation; information disclosure

BT & BB P R B B e B HFEBRBERLZ2EBERTEROEF K BERAME - HESH EHHE
ERIR MR ZESTBER AR

Customers Products and services conform with Comprehensive feedback system; daily
requirements of related laws and operations, communications
regulations to guarantee the qualities
of products and services; smooth
communication channels

zF EmERBHEHBEERERNER R TEORERS  AREERER
FEMMREESE  BREEGA

Community Protect the community’s environment; Community communication; charitable
support local economic development events
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Materiality Assessment

The Group commissioned independent third-party consultants
to conduct management interviews to formulate the Group’s
sustainable strategy and direction, and to identify environmental and
social issues that are important to the Group and the stakeholders.
The Group selected the following three aspects from the eleven
environmental and social aspects of the ESG reporting guidelines

as the material aspects to be carefully discussed in the Report:

Use of
Resource

BIREM

EEMM
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Health
and
Safety

L

Product
Responsibility
EmuE

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Health and safety

The Group focused on providing customers with healthy and
safety products and services, and continuously to improve and

perfectionate on this basis.

As a leading hazardous waste incineration turnkey solution provider
in China, the Group places great emphasis on quality assurance and
related internal control, we have obtained the 1SO9001, 1ISO14001
and OHSAS18001 accreditations for the quality, environmental,
and occupational health and safety management respectively.
Furthermore, the Group has dedicated quality control staffs to carry

out the quality control procedures based on the ISO9001 standards.
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Advertising and label

The Group complies with the laws and regulations related to
advertising in Mainland China and Hong Kong to ensure the
compliance, accuracy and authenticity of all published materials

(such as press releases, labels, articles and web content).
Privacy

In addition, we comply with privacy laws and regulations in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, and attach great importance to the privacy
protection of our customers. In the future, the Group will strengthen
the follow-up improvement of customer complaint maintenance and
privacy protection to ensure that customers have better privacy and

security.

During the Reporting Period, the Group found no significant non-

compliance with product liability.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group believes that good supply chain management will not
only enhance the Group’s risk management effectiveness, but also
enable the Group to contribute to sustainable development during
the life cycle of the project. Hence, the Group is actively working
with its suppliers to develop a sustainable supply chain that meets
the Group’s business ethics, environmental, health and safety

standards.

During the Reporting Period, our main suppliers are contract
manufacturers and equipment and materials vendors. We have
established on-going business relationships and co-operations with
our largest suppliers during the Reporting Period for approximately

five years on average.

The Group has formulated standard procedures for the selection
of suppliers of raw materials in accordance with the 1SO9001
standards. We also have a standard approval form for selection
of suppliers and a list of approved suppliers were available from
the internal records for reference. There is also an assessment for
the management to review the supplier’s standards. Moreover, the
Group has engaged quality control personnel conducting standard
quality control procedures and monitoring the production of the
relevant application-specific equipment at the suppliers’ production

facilities.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group does not tolerate any improper conduct to affect
business activities, and is committed to upholding the core values
of honesty, responsibility and fairness in the daily operation. We
have formulated the Anti-fraud System which requires our directors
and employees to avoid the conflict between personal and
financial interest and their professional official duties in our Group.
Communications were made to the employees, so they understand
that using their positions in our Group or using our Group’ s
resources, properties and information to pursue opportunities
by exercising positioning power to influence decisions or gain
access to valuable information when dealing with third parties with
his profession to achieve financial and personal gain is strictly
prohibited. In addition, our audit committees supervise, from time
to time, the anti-fraud procedures to prevent frauds and corruptions

from happening.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not monitor any cases
involving bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that did not

comply with relevant laws and regulations.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards talents as one of the core competitiveness, and
has formulated internal human resources management policies and
procedures on the premise of complying with laws and regulations

on employment in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group has formulated the staff handbook which contains
polices in regards to recruitment, promotion, discipline, working
hours and leave. The human resources department has been
responsible for ensuring all employees have fully understood the

contents of the handbook.

The management regularly reviews the Group’s remuneration
and benefits policies in reference to the market standards and is
committed to safeguarding the rights and interests of the staff.
Remuneration and benefits have been adjusted on an annual
basis in accordance with the employees’ individual performance,

contribution and market conditions.
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The Group’s remuneration to employees is largely based on
common industrial practice, wages of our employees, in any
circumstances, may not be lower than the local minimum wage.
In addition to the statutory benefits such as five insurance and
one Housing Fund and the national statutory holidays, the Group
also provides additional paid holidays such as annual leave,
bereavement leave, marriage leave, maternity and sick leave, as
well as extra subsidies such as accident insurance for employees

on a overseas business trip.

Our Group is committed to maintaining a diverse workforce that
includes age, gender, family status, sexual orientation, disability,

ethnicity, religion and equal opportunities.

In the Reporting Period, our Group employs a total of approximately
228 employees with the majority in the PRC. The amount of total
workforce increased 15.7% in 2019. Across our diversified business
portfolio, female employees accounted for approximately 22% of
total labor force and this percentage increased 3% compare with
that of 2018. As for employees’ distribution by age for the Reporting
Period, aged 31 to 40 accounted for approximately 41%. Based
on the two-year age data comparison, the age distribution of
employees in 2019 is more decentralized. For occupation side, the

general percentage of employees increased to 76%.
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GENDER #£5| AGE Fi
Aged above 50 5055 A £
Female 2z 1% 2
22%
Aged 41 to 50
41-50%% Aged 30
19% or below
305 AT
32%
Male 5511 Aged 31 10 40
78% 31-405%
41%
OCCUPATION i GEOGRAPHY ithig
C-Management 1z E 12 E Others
3% Senior- Hith
Management 15%
9%
Middle-
Management
PRERE
Geﬁe;al 12%
—MRETL Guangzhou
76% Province
BEIME
85%

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find any significant

non-compliance with laws and regulations on human resources.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is devoted to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to the employees. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations on occupational health and safety of
mainland China and Hong Kong, and formulated the internal system
for labour safety and sanitation. To ensure the compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements and to minimize the risk of injury
of employees, the Group has implemented safety measures on both
the in-house operation sites and project sites such as providing
safety training courses to new employees. And we also conduct
regular inspections to ensure that our operations are in compliance

with existing laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find significant non-
compliance with laws and regulations on health and safety.

RBEME  ARBEYEBRREFATETANE
RERRERNEKNER °

RERZE

AEBHNREBR‘Z2EFENTIFERE - K
SEDETPERNBMEENBEEFEREL M
RERNER - YO HIRI RSB T2 R4
B RERFNAEANEEREREREZERA
RREHE  ARECERFNABLE LI R
HEWHERL 2R - WA ARESRMHL
EFIIERE - RAITFEMBREAER LI EE
HABITERER

RmEHE  AREYEFRTETREER S
ERFOERHERBER ©

2019 ANNUAL REPORT %)

59



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERBHRS

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group treasures talents and encourages the employees to
enhance their personal growth both intellectually and professionally.
The Group has formulated training plans and provides various
training programmes to the employees. Training programmes are
classified into two types according to the objective and purpose:
internal training and external training. In addition, our Group
organizes value-added activities regularly including seminar and

workshop, and supports staff training programmes by granting time

B R
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and reimbursement. During the Reporting Period, the Group has

organized three core trainings listed as below:

Training subject Hours Training purpose and content
EAERE N EIENRAR
Waste Battery Disposal 4 1. Discussion and improvement of the used battery feeding plan;
Technology Seminar Ak EESHMESTE
BEEEMRE RS 2. Discussion and improvement suggestions on waste battery
disposal technology;
A R B AR B R e B
&, Discussion and improvement of the discharge plan after the
disposal of waste batteries.
A R E R B R E SR B AT -
Risk and Feasibility Analysis of 6 1. Hazard analysis of waste battery disposal project;
Waste Battery Disposal Projects BEBHREREENEEDN
BEEEMEEIRA R RAITE 2. Important notes during the operation of the used battery disposal
DT project.
ETnEE A EEYRNERIESHE -
Operation Project Safety Training 4 1. Standard procedures for project thermal load debugging and trial
EEIEE 225 operation;
BB AAFEAARRETHRERF
2. Emergency response measures for project system emergency
situations;
HEEZRERBRANESE
3. Other project safety related issues.
HipHIE H 22 28 BH=RE -
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is aware that child and forced labour violate fundamental
human rights and international labour conventions and pose a threat
to social development. The Group prohibits any form of mandatory
labour to ensure that the voluntary employment relationship and
the working hours and overtime of employees comply with legal

standards and regulations.

The Group has formulated labour rights and working condition
management rules, which lists out the following: checking
candidates identification during interview process to prevent
employing child labour; all labour must voluntarily complete job
application form to prevent forced labour. The employees can early
terminate employment contract in accordance with the service
contract and can apply for sick leave with doctor’s certificate. In
case our Group discovers forced labour or child labour, our Group
would terminate such practices and put forward the following

remedies: report to local authorities and record the situation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recognize any
material irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to

employees and labour standards.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to building a harmonious, safe and
prosperous relationship between enterprise and community. The
Group regards giving back to the society as a responsibility, it is
also the shaping of its values, and it is also the transmission of

positive energy in society.

In the future, the Group plan to encourage employees to contribute
their time and skills to community volunteer works to benefit local
communities by giving them opportunities to learn more about social
and environmental issues and enhance the corporate value of the

Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable
development. In the daily operation process, it also actively fulfills
the Group’s management responsibilities in terms of emissions,
resource use and environment and natural resources. The Group
shall comply with the environmental laws and regulations at the
place of operation and ensures the implementation of relevant
measures to achieve the Group’s commitment to sustainable

development.
Emissions

The Group has always adhered to the principle of environmental
friendliness and formulated a series of environmental protection
measures, covering the entire process of business operations,
implementing green development and promote ecological progress.
Due to the nature of the business, the main emissions from the
Group include air and greenhouse gases (“GHGs”) emissions, non-

hazardous solid waste, and non-hazardous wastewater.
Air and Greenhouse Gases Emission

Air emissions emitted by the Group mainly includes nitrogen oxides
and sulphur oxides (sulfur dioxide) emitted during the consumption
of oil sludge and vehicles. To ensure those air emissions do no
harm to the environment, we use alkaline solution to absorb sulfur
dioxide while we spray urea solution to absorb nitrogen oxides.
To reduce the air emission, the Group continuously improves the

process.

The following charts set out the categories and relevant statistics of

air emissions in 2019:
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g

Indicators Unit Total
~E B &5t
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg Approximately #] 1,784.26
A&y T
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg Approximately £) 144.97
malty T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg Approximately 47 19.30
BF R F5=
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The Group is well aware of the impact of greenhouse gases
(*GHG”) on the environment, and inspects our daily operation to
further improve energy efficiency and reduce emissions from the
source. The GHG generated by the Group mainly comes from
the GHG produced by the combustion of natural gas in the stove
and combustion of gasoline in vehicles (Scope 1), indirect GHG
emissions from the generation of purchased electricity (Scope 2).

The calculation guidelines for GHG emissions are based on
guidelines prepared by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection
Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department,
guidelines issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC, ISO 14064-1 and the GHG Protocol and

other international standards.

Indicators
~ME

AEEZFMAZRE(REREDHERESENY
gymﬂ&ﬁwa gLﬁ’ﬁéuﬁ wiem
BEIR R WAL IR D HE - ANEEEARRE
REFZREELMERAR R BRI ETVHE
ERBERE(EEN)ANRREFMBEE HEHER
MEREREIH R (HEE2) -

AEREBHRANGERSI DIRBEBRERES
EHMETEZBERMIES - PEBERERMEE
ZEEHEMMWIES| - 1ISO 14064-1 ROR =T 58
RE B RO H A BIAR2E o

Unit Total
By a5t

Total GHG Emissions
BERBERES

Tonnes of CO.e
—aikiREE

Approximately 4 6,001.25

Scope 1 Direct
(& TE R PR EHIR G P B AR = RS BERR

Emissions

GHG emissions from stationary combustion sources

Tonnes of CO,e | Approximately 4] 4,536.38

—RitmER

GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources

T EDIIR BV RR IR 5 P B 0B = SR BB BE IR

#E 1 BEEBER

Tonnes of CO,e Approximately 4 177.75

—RtiREE

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions
&[22 B HE A

Tonnes of CO,e | Approximately 4] 1,287.12

—“RtiES

Solid Waste Emission

Due to our business nature, there is no hazardous solid waste
emission from our daily operation. The main non-hazardous solid
wastes generated by the Group include sludge residue GER 1)
resulting from the treatment of oily sludge and domestic solid waste

generated in the operation sites and offices.

During the Reporting Period, our Group produced 129,373 tonnes of
sludge residue. To cycle the sludge residue and reduce resources
waste, we cooperated with companies who use the sludge residue
for road construction or landfill since that the sludge residue has
satisfied the requirements on disposal of oily sludge of Xinjiang
Autonomous Region. As for the domestic solid waste, there is an
emission of around 30 tonnes during the Reporting Period. They are
collected and handled by the local waste disposal company up to
the Administration Measures for Urban Living Garbage ({3 H 4 &7
IKEEHEE)) . To reduce domestic solid waste emission, the Group
has taken some measures which will be further explained in the “Use

of Resources” section.
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Wastewater Emission

The wastewater discharged by the Group mainly includes non-
hazardous wastewater generated from offices and operation sites.
The amount is relatively small and around 5,900 tonnes during the
Reporting Period. The Group strictly discharges the wastewater into
municipal sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in accordance
with the “Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers” (57K HE AW EE T /KE/KEIZX#E)). The Group also calls
on employees to conserve water resources and take proactive
measures to save water. The specific measures will be further

explained in the “Use of Resources” section.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-
compliance in emissions with the relevant environmental laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on our Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group earnestly implements relevant laws and regulations such
as “the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(FEARAMBE X EETEE)), reduces resource consumption
and improves economic efficiency, and has formulated relevant
management regulations and implementation measures, hoping
to maximize resource conservation, protect the environment and
reduce pollution. The resources consumed by the Group mainly
include electricity, water resources, natural gas, gasoline and paper.
Due to the nature of business, the Group’s daily operations do not

involve the application of finished product packaging materials.

The following table shows the figures of resource consumption in

our business operations:
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The Group Unit Total

rEE B &st

Electricity consumption kWh Approximately #49 1,949,592.0
B8 T R

Water consumption tonnes Approximately #) 102,266.3

k& ]

Natural gas consumption Nm?® Approximately £) 2,167,961.0

RARHE EAEL 7oK

Gasoline consumption liter Approximately ) 65,669.00

FUBRFERAE nH

Paper consumption kg Approximately 47 310.0

R#EE T
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Electricity

The use of electricity by the Group is mainly derived from the daily
operation of the office and operation site. The Group has adopted a

series of energy saving measures, including:

o Adopt lighting system or electric appliances with high energy
efficiency;

o Encourage staff to turn off electronic appliances when
possible;

o Maintain the air-conditioned room temperature of offices at

around 25°C.
Water

The water used by the Group is mainly derived from the daily
operation of the office and the operation site. To save water, the

Group has adopted the following water-saving measures:

o Check the water supply equipment frequently and replace

broken faucets in time;

3 Promote water reuse and post water conservation posters in

office.
Fossil fuels

The main fossil fuels consumed by the Group includes natural gas
used in the combustion of oily sludge and gasoline used in the
vehicles. In order to reduce waste of resources, the Group requires

relevant staff to take the following measures:

o Replace high fuel cost vehicle by hybrid vehicle;

o Reasonably allocate combustion according to temperature;
o Adjust process flow;

o Encourages employees to use public transportation as much

as possible.
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Paper

To promote the effective use of paper, the Group has implemented

the following suggestions to the employees:

o Receive incoming faxes through e-fax system, and make

copies only when necessary;

o Promote use of electronic communications such as

disseminating notices through the intranet;

o Equip printers with used paper to encourage employees to

print on both sides;

o Installed video-conference system to reduce business travels

and increase communication efficiency.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has always regarded environmental protection as one
of its key tasks. We abide by relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations and actively promote the use of sustainable

material.

In our daily operation, the Group exerts limited bad influence on
the environment. Besides, we have taken various of measures to
save energy and reduce emission, including setting up solar energy

system for heating purpose.

The Group has received ISO14001 environmental management
system certification. And we will continue to communicate with
the stakeholders and optimize its management on environmental

protection in the future.

The Group plans to formulated written policies on environment
and resources management procedures to list out the current

environment protection measures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Index

BE - 4@ REARERS

Aspects
EBm

Summary
A

Page Index/Notes

BIBRD| M=

A. Environmental

RE

A1 Emission

292 €7)

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste:
BRAERIORERBYN - MAKRTES  EERERESE
REYEE
(a) the policies; and
BE Rk
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETARBERYENEBERERNE -

For more details, please refer
to Page 62
BHE %5 F2HFE2E

A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. For more details, please refer
PER IR AR AR R BE R BUE - to Page 62
BT 215 F2HE2E
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 62
per facility). EHAEZFHIE - F2HE6e2H
BERBANNE(ABAE) R(NER)BE(NASESSE
i ~ FIERMTE) °
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 63
per facility). ERAELZHIE E2H%E63E
FEEXEEREMAE CAETE) M(ER)RE(MUESEE
B - FEREAE) ©
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | For more details, please refer
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, to Page 63
per facility). BAEZHIE  B2HE63E
ELAESERYES(UBFE) X(NER)BE(MAGES
B - JEREAE) -
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigates emissions and results For more details, please refer
achieved. to Page 62
MR E BB B b PR S R - EREZHIE  F2H%6258
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes For more details, please refer

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIlEEEEREZEEMN L  RIEEELESENEKELAE
KR

to Page 63
BEAEZHE  F2H%E63R
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes

EBm AR BHWR5| M

A2 Use of Resources

ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, For more details, please refer

—RREE water and other raw materials. to Page 64
BRERER(BIEEIR - KREAMFEME)KBER BT 215 F2HFE64E

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. For more details, please refer
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity to Page 64
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). FHREZHE  F2KMEFE64H
REREISMEER SEEER(NE - Raoh) BFEE (AT
BFRRAE) RBE(WABEEEN - §BREE) °

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of For more details, please refer
production volume, per facility). to Page 64
BFEKERTE(WMUEES SN - BHERHEE) ERAE %5 - F2HF64 8

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results For more details, please refer
achieved. to Page 65
B IR AR R 5T &l RS AR © EHE %515 - F2HFE65E

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water For more details, please refer
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results | to Page 65
achieved. EHE 215 F2HESE
it SREGE A KR E Rl B AIERE - DA RIRF KR8 &
FTISAR ©

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in For more details, please refer

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

X RTAREMHNAE (ANEE) R (ER) S EEEM
e -

to Page 65
BHEZHE  F2H%658

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

RERRXARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the For more details, please refer
—MREE environment and natural resources. to Page 66
REBTAHRERRAERERNERNTEBHIBE - EHE 215 F2HF66 R
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the For more details, please refer

environment and natural resources and actions taken to
manage them.
HLEBEHHRFERRARAERNEATERERNEEEH
FEHITE -

to Page 66
EHE %15 F2H% 668
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Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm AR BEWR5| M
Social

k-

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

EEREIER

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Following information on:

AN B BB R e - BIEREI - TIERE - RE - 5K

g ik - RIBR A REA RS R AR F 8

(a) the policies; and
BUER &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABERZENHBEAR AR

Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits welfare.

BERS -

For more details, please refer
to Page 57
EHEZHE  F2HE7H

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region.
ZIER - BIEEE - FRRAR KRR S DMIESBE -

For more details, please refer
to Page 59
EAESZHE  B2HE9H

B2 Health and Safety
BEREZ2

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Information on:

FARMLZEIFEREMREREEBEBELEEN

(a) the policies; and
B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABERZENHBERIER

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BB R -

For more details, please refer
to Page 59
BT 215 F2HEE

B2.3

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

R PR AN RO B S R FR B 22 24 B - A RARRE T REERUOE o

For more details, please refer
to Page 59
BHEZHE  H2HEE

B3 Development and Training

R R g

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRTHEEETT TIERE M A MR MR - JEsIE
) o

For more details, please refer
to Page 60
ERAEZHIE  F2HF6058
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EBm AR BHWR5| M
B4 Labour Standards

BT A

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

BRAPI IEE Tekaa bl g5 TH)

(a) the policies; and
HE Rk

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHBETABEATZENEBER AR

BWEH -

For more details, please refer
to Page 61
BHREZHE  F2ME61H

B4.1

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
AR R RIS HI M e AR 2 B T R KIS T

For more details, please refer
to Page 61
EHEZE  F2H%E61 8

B5 Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHERENRIE R S RBREE -

For more details, please refer
to Page 56
BHEZE  F2H%E568H

B6 Product Responsibility

EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress:
BEMRHEERNMREHRERLZ S -
AR AR ITER -
(a) the policies; and

HE Rk
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

EE - BRELEEE

have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATZENEBER AR
AR} o

For more details, please refer
to Page 55
EHEZFIE  F2MHE5R

B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
FlUE B B ERHRIE RFLBIR - ARABRBMIT RERTE o

For more details, please refer
to Page 56
BEHEZ5  F2H%E56H
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AR

Page Index/Notes
BRES| M

B7 Anti-corruption
RES

General Disclosure

—RIBE

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering:

BRI IR - $1R - MEFROERER

(a) the policies; and
B« &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATZENEBERER

EVE R o

For more details, please refer
to Page 57
FREZHE  F2MESTH

B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
Ry EAE e KR RIR T - A RABRERAT REE R 0% o

For more details, please refer
to Page 57
EHEEZHIE  B2HFE57H

B8 Community Investment

General Disclosure
—RIE T

Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.
BRANGRSERTHBETALENTLREEMBREES
EEEERMENEOBUR

For more details, please refer
to Page 61
FHREZHE  F2ME61H
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May
2017 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Shares of
the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the 3 January 2019 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration
turnkey solution provider in China focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste treatment systems,

particularly for hazardous waste incineration.

A list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2019 and their particulars are set out in note 40 of the consolidated

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided on page 8 of this annual report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year are provided in note 45 of the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided on pages
13 to 22 of this annual report. Details of the capital structure of the
Company is provided on page 22 of this annual report. Details of
the significant capital investment of the Group is provided on page

21 of this annual report.

In addition, information of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in environmental, social and governance
report of this annual report. The Company’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are provided in the section headed “Compliance with Laws

and Regulations” of this directors’ report.

EEeMAREAFHRERAEBEE 2019F
12 A 31 H It FERKEEZYERE ©

EREE

NAFR2017FE5 A 18BEH S B S MR
BERRHR AT - ARAMKMDIN2019F 1 A3
BT EWBEEDEBIAERLET -

FEEBRED

AR ERREEENRARRENIRER S
BOAT RIBHE - ENERENEERACE
HRERENEEE R MR - R &
BB -

RNRATR2019F 12 31 B = 2 B A 75
REEFBER AV ERERMFEL0 -

E 3 3C1)

ERARBFAEBNEENEREERKED
EROBAHNANFRFESH - BV RFELEE
FEEREHAKEENTENERZHFBEH
WG M BRKRNL46 - ERPBEIERRIE
BHAEBFARBETOOTERNERSE
13EEF 228 - AAARAEARBOFHIBEH
RAFHF22E - FRAEBEEREAREN
AIERNAFRE21H -

AN - BEAARRIRERRRKRENEHN T2
REFIRE  HEREBWE - NARAETHA
SEBEAFENRBERERNBERENA
ERGREETERRER 8 -
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RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out on pages 97 to 231 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the
Company in general meeting may declare dividends in any currency
but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out
of the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve
or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies
or for paying off any loan capital or for equalizing dividends or for
any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied, and pending such application may, at the like
discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or
be invested in such investments (including in the repurchase by
the Company of its own securities or the giving of any financial
assistance for the acquisition of its own securities) as the Board
may from time to time think fit, and so that it shall not be necessary
to keep any investments constituting the reserve or reserves
separate or distinct from any other investments of the Company. The
Board may also without placing the same to reserve, carry forward
any profits which it may think prudent not to distribute by way of
dividend.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved that no final dividend was declared for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

ES

REEEHEZ2019F 12 A1 HILFEMN4LEA
BHNARERFEITAEFE 2318 -

% S BUR

ERERE(RRDE) RA R BB ERE XM N A
AMRRT - ARBARBERAEHAMEMEE
TS ERETSBAEESRENEHE

EEZEMBRE 2 EFSARARR RN P
BEARSRENFRIESHE  EFTAUBIE
HAERFEEREINAARERENSRE &
B HEEE  ABEEEEAMEREERNAMH
B BB B R AR L b R E B B A AN 2 R]ias A e A
7w BEBMEBAZH - REAREHERRA
NAEBREZTSTHRRRENKE(BER
AREEEESRFIMBMEEE S ERREHR
EMPHEED) Rt EZE I ESEREME
R RENIRE BARBEMEMKESI DK -
EES i ABTAER/TEURE IR
A MAGEEE AR

RERE

EECFRHE2019F12A31HIEFERE
EIRAERE o
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
5 June 2020 to Wednesday, 10 June 2020, both days inclusive
and during which during which period no transfer of share will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Thursday,
4 June 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2019, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$200,000,000, divided into 4,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.05 each. Details of movements in the share capital of
the Company during the year 2019 are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year 2019 are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 231 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out on page 231

and page 101 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its

subsidiaries made no external donations.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ZEnERMBFEER

RRBIMKHBFEELENR2020F6 A5H(E
HR)E2020F6 A10R(EH=)(BEEEM
BEME R HERTSETROBEERL - A
REBEBRHERRBFASLNE LIRS - BH
RRAFRECROFFE ARRE RGBS
HERMEERZEAEN 202056 A4 (EHM)
TFME =+ RRR AR BNRG B ELE
BEBLHECLARAR MU ABFEEFAER
1835 A TR 5418 - UPMIBBEELFE -

[N

R2019F12A31H " AR AIMZEERKX A
200,000,0007% 7t * 9 4 4,000,000,000 A% & i%
HEE0.05B TR, - BRI R IRAR 2019
FRNBBHFBEHNGE P BRERME29 -

(G
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customers and the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 24.1% and 61.5% respectively of the

Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total amount of
purchases made by the Group from the its five largest suppliers
amounted to RMB101.6 million, and accounted for 23.8% of the
total purchases for the year. The amount of the purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to RMB33.8 million, and accounted for

7.9% of the total purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates, or
Shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares
of the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company

are set out in note 13 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following eight Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Zhuhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. DONG Honghui

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. REN Jingfeng

Mr. YANG Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

Mr. FENG Tao

FTERFRHER

AEBZAEERARBFE D AMEAREERE
£2019F 128318 IE F X WA £241% &
61.5% °

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE A5ERER
AEEEIEENRBRSEAARK 1016 B8
I (ENIREREE23.8% - FRRRARER
EHNKBEESBEAARKI8EET ' hiR
HE1BRET7.9% ©

BREXHEEES  BESHAN - HEES H
ETBBEAXARARR(BEEMAHEER
ARBS%AEEETRNBE)IRAFEER
SEAAHERAXELTHEAEE -

M BERRE

ERARTYME  BERRBNHNEHFHEHNY
BHRMEE13 -

=
EXgRNANATNARERAK
BITES
BIRER L (BEFRFITHA)
EAIESELE

HkESRLE

FUITES

(Bl

HEmEL

BYFHITES
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L
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises of eight Directors in total. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Directors” above. There are six senior
management in total, including Dr. WANG Zhicheng, Ms. HUANG
Ying, Mr. CUI Jinhong, Mr. LI Zhouxin, Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan and Mr.
GU Chunbin.

Information about the details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with all Directors
for a term of three years following each Director’s respective
appointment date or until the third annual general meeting of
the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, or
which shall be terminated pursuant to relevant terms of respective

contracts or letters of appointment.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which was not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

EEREABEEBNERES

EX20 X B/ \2EFEK - AHEFFE - F2H
IX[EE|—f - SREBBEABRA L B
BESKEL  BEBLL - EHRBEE  FTAM
T BETEERZZWEL -

EREERARASREREABNERER
[EERSRERE | -

BYHNTESH
B HRRAE
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts and the Contractual Arrangements,
there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which none of the Directors of the
Company or its connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN BUSINESSES
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors,
confirming that other than business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short
position in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

EERNRS THREHNERER

RERSMEBREAERE - RRESHRELD
ZHIN - ARF - HERAQR - HEAHE AR
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Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares KRB REBROTHNETR
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number the Company’s
Note of ordinary of underlying issued share
Name of Director Nature of interest Kt shares held shares held capital
PN
FEEER FriEiEE EBRITREMN
EEgE ERME A RD BB R S
Mr. CAl Zhuhua Interest in controlled corporation 677,420,000 — 50.81%
BURELE RREEE S R
Interest of spouse 1 — 3,933,338 0.295%
fofdtEs
Mr. DONG Honghui Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.295%
BAELE ERBEAA
Mr. DENG Zhaoshan  Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.295%
Bk ERBEAA
Note: Bzt -
1. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG Ying. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. 1. BEAEBEBELTTHRE - BE(BEAERBEIER
CAl is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG ) B EWR AN EE LT HEARSNNAR
Ying is interested. PAEAREZS o

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at B P FREEL - MEERL  RRBERET
Latest Practicable Date, f the Direct hief ti = . e = T e
atest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executives SHE BERESTRASRES S Qe

ABERAR B S EBREE (& A(BHF Y

and their respective associates had any interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) BIRGIDEXVER) B A - 1ERIRL (9 R EHE & T+
(i) which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be BO)BREB(GEFLBEKRAIDEI2EABERLRRN

recorded in the register kept by the Company, or (ii) which will be RARIFMEEELHAOTAERSOAE 3 (i)
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock B EGEAEST BI VB M@ AN A 7] 8 5 R BT 84
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. AT AR

SR °
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at Latest Practicable Date, the
following person (other than the Directors and chief executives) had
interest or short positions in the shares of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company:

Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares

FTERRER

BEFAA REREERAITES - U TAL
(BEFEXRFTRABRINR AR BB HHEE
ARB(EF RPERGDBEXVEF2R37#8
RS T AR BR SR AR B 7 I B {6k 19 ) 58 336 fi&
AR AB RGP E L MR M SORR T -

Name of Director Nature of interest Notes
EEpE EatE Hat
WeiGang Technology Beneficial owner 1
HERI ERBEAA
Weigang Green Interest in controlled corporation 1
LR E REEB R R
Mr. CAl Interest in controlled corporation 1
BEE REEE R R
Interest of spouse 2
[T
Ms. HUANG Interest of spouse 3
BXL [
Beneficial owner &)
EnlEBA
DHW Holdings Beneficial owner 4
KA EFERY EnlBA
Mr. ZHANG Weiyang Interest in controlled corporation 4
RS E REEEER R
Beneficial owner 4
EnlBA
Ms. ZHOU Wenying Interest of spouse 5

AXELZ L+

fommas

RIROREERGHNETR
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number the Company’s
of ordinary of underlying issued share
shares held shares held capital
PN
FEERR FR¥EHEER BBRITREMN
B R BB BRBEDL
677,420,000 — 50.81%
677,420,000 — 50.81%
677,420,000 — 50.81%
— 3,933,338 0.295%
677,420,000 — 50.81%
— 3,933,338 0.295%
191,671,000 — 14.38%
191,671,000 — 14.38%
46,710,000 — 3.5%
238,381,000 — 17.88%
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Notes:

1. WeiGang Technology is wholly owned by Weigang Green which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. CAl. Mr. CAl and Weigang Green are
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by WeiGang Technology
under the SFO.

2. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. CAl
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG is
interested.

3. Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAl. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. HUANG
is deemed to interested in all the Shares in the Shares in which Mr. CAl
is interested.

4. DHW Holdings is wholly owned by Mr. ZHANG Weiyang (“Mr. ZHANG").
Mr. ZHANG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by DHW
Holdings under the SFO.

5. Ms. ZHOU Wenying is the spouse of Mr. ZHANG. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. ZHOU Wenying is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Mr. ZHANG is interested.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate for the Reporting
Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors and senior management. The permitted indemnity

provisions are set out in such liability insurance.
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ERERA o RECESRIEGD) - SRS
BRERESNEENBERENRERNTHEE

5o

2. BERAERELLINERS - REGEZRBAEED) -
BERARAARERTHEAEGHMERNTHES

sy

T o

3. BELTAREENRR - BREGESRAEEH) -
B TWERANRE A ERA RN ARG R ES
M o

4. RO ERRARGEMNEE(TREE]NZ2EHES - B
BCES REEEH]) - 3R 58 £ WAR B A & A%
FHENMAERGD A ER

5, ANELZTAREENRS - RIEB(ESHRBE K
Bl) AXELZTHRARREEREEZNE
B&1D PR S o

EERERDUEEZHER

BARFERZEREN  BEATMNEFTHESTSE
BENEBHIBEATHFLARILEBBEAR
A7 ok (A i T ER IS A ss MR TR FIREAT
EERIBEERN - kAR R REA(E R IR
BRIV EAZH  REEFIRESTENEMBHL
18 BRIA T B F 22 A 3 & B N BRAS 0 A ] E )%
AEBHBRER -

RFRERX
ARREREEZERSRERBHIBEENER
R - BRABTRIRET A2 FFRER -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B AR IZREF G R N 7



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to incentivize the Directors, senior management, connected
persons and other grantees for their contribution to the Group and
to attract and retain suitable personnel to the Group, the Company
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 10 December 2018.
Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period
commencing on the 10 December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”) and
ending on the tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date. The term of
this scheme are not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules as this scheme will not involve the grant of options by
the Company to subscribe for shares subsequent to the Listing of

the Company.

Details of the Options Granted under the pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

As at the 31 December 2019, the total number of outstanding share
options was 44,453,389, representing approximately 3.3% of the
issued share capital of the Company. No such provision regarding
maximum entitlement of each participant under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The details below set out the movement of the Share options
granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

During the reporting period

RBEHE
Balance as at
Grantee 01/01/2019 Exercised Cancelled
R2019F
ARA 181 BMEe 217 B
Directors
=
DONG Honghui 3,933,338 — —
BAE
DENG Zhaoshan 3,933,338 — —

HikE

BRAMABERERETE

AREBHES  aREEE  BEALTREMEE
AEAREEELNER - WAREERS| REE
EHEMAT ARFER2018F 12 A 10H K
MERAAEERERETE - BN ERAR
BEMBRESTENGR  BXAFABREAE
MR EIB2018F 12 10 B ([ HR4 B & |) 2
ERMABETAFILHRARRER - BRI
FTEINE TP RAR R HEREAR AR T EH
BRERD - BULF BB ERAETE EMRRIE
17 & ZAEFTER -

REEXAHABENBRES R ENBRES
(]

M2019F 12 4318 » WARTHEBERERE
744,453,389 1% + HE R AR BB EHITRAL
3.3% c BERARBENBRETEVERETR
S A ERE R R TE LR

REIA - REERRFAEENBREASRHN
BREZZEHHEFINT

Balance as at Exercise price Option
Lapsed 31/12/2019 per share period
R2019%
BAX 12 A31 B4 BRITEE BRERR
(HKS)
(1)
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
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During the reporting period

RIFEHE
Balance as at
Grantee 01/01/2019 Exercised Cancelled
R20195
ABA 18 1B M4 [SEx;d 2
Employees
E&
HUANG Ying 3,933,338 — —
(wife of Mr. CAl
Zhuhua)
R (BRELEN
ZF)
30 other employees 32,653,375 — —
0EHEMES
Total 44,453,389 — —
M5t

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at the
date of this annual report, which was in line with the requirement

under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any member of the Group has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the period

under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands that
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

Balance as at Exercise price Option
Lapsed 31/12/2019 per share period
R20195
BAM 12 A 31 BH&ER BRITEE BRELR
(HK$)
(&)
— 3,933,338 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
— 32,653,375 0.23 03/01/2021-
29/04/2027
- 44,453,389
ZREARKERE

REARBMBARERNMRESEIA - RAF
HBEH AARIEHFERTRMOADRN25%
MARTIRE - FACLETRADKRE -

REEHA - AARSANEBERKE R RLE
BE  HELBERARREMKRD -

BrRBEER
ABERAARANXHSHEERLESHTE
RELEERNE - REARRBERLLHIRR
BRIRBEEMBL
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EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance of the Directors
and senior management and comparable market practices. The
Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share
based payments, pensions, and other social insurance benefits.
Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors
receive compensation according to their duties (including serving
as members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject
to the approval of the shareholders general meeting. Details of
remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 10 to
the Financial Statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

BE - #H KR K5

HINEE D EKIL - Uigaf AEBRBEBUR
NEBEERAEEGREEEREBHMORRE -
HPEERIAKENKERE EERSRE
BENEATERBARBETISED - RAE
BEREFE - RBL - BWREN - ERIELA - RO
R BREREMHEREEBNET AR S RE
BENBTESTRSRETERBREFT - JEATT
EERBUFNTESREBEERE(BRELE
SRR eRENETE)WEFH B -

EENFHORBEESOBERBETL2ET
F ARRRRIEBECE RIBITTREETE - A
FREABRERS EHESEE - BREEER
RABAERSFHIA TR RE BANFIER
BRI 10 ©

EERABREHALHHH

FHREERAERSFATHMESF BN LGS
R HREMIFE10 -

NEEE
R2019F12A31H  XEFBWESEAKEE
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. CAl, Weigang
Green and WeiGang Technology, has executed a deed of non-
competition on 10 December 2018 pursuant to which they have
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for the
Company itself and on behalf of the members of the Group) that,
during the period that the Non-Competition Deed remains effective,
he/it/she shall not, and shall procure that his/its/her close associates
(other than any member of the Company) shall not, directly or
indirectly, develop, acquire, participate in, hold any right or interest
or invest in or engage in, render any services for or otherwise
be involved in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activities of the Company
in the PRC or any other area in which the Company carries on
business. The Company shall seek opinion and decision from
the independent non-executive Directors who are responsible for
reviewing and determining whether to accept or decline such new
business opportunity provided by Controlling Shareholders or its
associates. The details of the Deed of Non-competition have been
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship

with Controlling Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-
Competition Deed and had determined that neither Mr. CAI,
Weigang Green and WeiGang Technology has been in breach of

the Non-Competition Deed during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures,
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and
integrity in all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and
operations are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and to enhance the transparency and accountability of

the Board to all shareholders.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period except
from the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

55T

TRRAR R (BNER e & -~ BB REAR) & B
MR2018F 12 A10B B THFRE « Bt
BEE DA HE REGREMAARRB(ABERAT
RNERREANEBMEE AR ARH  ERNGHER
BHBEHE A (KNARMEMK B A RIBRIN TF
R FRBEASANAEEESEELS - K
iE - 2HEEARQRANPESARFEITEROHE
] E = At W IR A R R B A B kAT Bk
BRGHRFMEMER - IRREEBPREEA
RER LRI E IR FHIRE ARG HIAE
b NS HEZEER - AARIERBEERELE
ERDEMIIBRIEIRR RSB E AFTRED
BEFARNBYIERTESSRKERRIREK -
BATHFEBENFERBRER B EZERRR
MRAR | — B iR R -

BYHATESCENTHIRE  YOBEE
K - BB REBRHEN RSB mE R
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Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cai Zhuhua serves as
chairman as well as chief executive officer of the Company and this
dual role leadership has been in practice by the Company since
2009. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered
to be more efficient to have one single person to be chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of
a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals, with half of them being
non-executive directors of the Company. The Company will review

the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct

regarding Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, each Director
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the reporting period. The Board has
also established written guidelines to regulate dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred

to in code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

AUDITORS

Upon the conclusion of the previous annual general meeting of the
Company on 5 June 2019, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company to fill the vacancy from
the retirement of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. Details of the change of auditors were
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 April 2019
and 9 May 2019. This financial statements have been audited by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, who are proposed by the Board for

reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group did not enter into any other connected transactions
which should comply with the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For certain material related party transactions disclosed in note 37
to the Financial Statements which were also connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Company, the
Company had made disclosure as required under the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has allocated system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain
well relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year, the Group has complied, to the
best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Company.

By order of the Board

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited

CAl Zhuhua

Chairman

PRC

27 March 2020
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 97 to 231, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another independent
auditor whose report dated 26 March 2019 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

MEEFEE

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers

for hazardous waste incineration solutions services
BREEFEREY I EEBRERT ERBEETLEHE
HA

We identified the recognition of revenue on contracts
with customers for hazardous waste incineration
solutions services as key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the
significant estimations made by the management in the

determining the stage of completion of contracts.

BMEEEFHERENREEERATRRFATLEHN
%Wk%%%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁmEE&EM%
mhEEAEEATE EBHTEREBE S RERED
BAME o

As set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has recognised revenue from
hazardous waste incineration solutions services
amounting to approximately RMB452,990,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

BN A M RAM S FrEal - BE 2019412 A31 B 1k

FE . BSECHERARACREVRERER RS RRIEN
W AZ AR ¥ 452 990,000 TT ©

BEESEHG)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RANEF NSRRI HETEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue on contracts with customers for hazardous

waste incineration solutions services included:

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@wiﬁi%}f‘ MR RE MR R B BRR T RIRTE FTR]
BRINBANETIZF B

° Obtaining an understanding of the revenue
business process and the key controls
over revenue recognition performed by the
management, including the estimation of the
total contract costs and recording of cost in

determining the stage of completion of contracts;

TR A ZERS IR AR I B R [ B W AR AR T 1T O R SR 4R
#l - BIEMETEE TR E AR ERFAE KA R K
N

o On a sample selection basis, agreeing the

contract sum to signed contracts;
BMERAEERBERTSOREENTRE |

° On a sample selection basis, agreeing the
estimated total contract costs to signed
contracts, visiting selected construction sites
and interviewing project managers for the
progress of the construction work and evaluating
the reasonableness of estimated total contract
costs prepared by management by performing
gross margin analysis and comparing the
actual outcome of completed projects against

management’s estimation of total contract costs;
* ZJS%/E$EFEEER;I

12 PR i 5 BRZEMETES K
AN ERBITEN - WETHIBACEHHEETRN
EE - UREBETENDIT RSB TRIRR NER S
REEEEHEAORANEEETHBUNEEEE
FRfmEO AT B AR AN S IR

2019 ANNUAL REPORT 43k

89



90

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % BED | E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

BERETER

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers
for hazardous waste incineration solutions services
(continued)

EREE B REFY RIRE B RT FIRBFTa] L&A
WA (&)

The accounting policies and estimation uncertainty in
relation to revenue from hazardous waste incineration
solutions services are set out in Notes 3 and 4
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group recognised revenue from hazardous waste
incineration solutions services over time by using
the input method, which is measured by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
end of the reporting period, as measured based on
the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs. The estimated contract revenue is determined
in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contract. The estimated total contract costs are based
on contracted amount of suppliers’ contracts, and in
respect of amounts not contracted for, management
estimates by taking into consideration of historical
trends for the amounts incurred and adjusted for any

price fluctuation during the year, where applicable.

AR B BRENIGERE R RREORAN S EER
RAEFI AR R BR AU B HRERMEIR 4 BEEHE
ERRAZR —BREFHARERREBREDRER SRR
ERIEHUA - WIS RI|E RS LG E) 2 TR T A
B MREERBEBAMARIRELANS HKRANG
EEHRA R AMLL DI E - [EFa R ATIREERE L
PRELIRREERT © rTRANRATNENHRER AN O
BOHRATONSE EEEHMELSENMBIEZEE
ZESRNELBY  YHRFABKRREETHEME
A e

BEEEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BANESNASAEETSHETER

Tracing, on a sample selection basis, the contract
costs incurred for work performed during the year

to supporting documents;

BERAEEEEFAMET TIREL | KRN E
AR

Arranging confirmations to selected customers
by agreeing the contract amount, the progress
billings issued to customers, and relevant balance
of trade and note receivables, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contracts based on the

confirmed information;

MEEERPRRRAEZERIEGNEE NEPH
B A MEERASENE S RUGRIR K BRI RE AR
i URBREERRERFHEBESONTRE D
Lo & BB T LART AL

Performing alternative procedures for the
unreturned confirmation by tracing to the relevant
supporting documents, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contract based on the

supporting documents; and

FREEHBEATUERERENRRENTER
BF - TREFEAXGHEESONTIADLNAE
T ARHE - &

Recalculating the percentage of completion based
on the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the estimated

total contract costs.

REBZBHMARIEEENSHRAE[REH
RARLLEA] - EFFETTAALL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

BERETER
Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets

BZERFARSNEENERE

We identified the estimated impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit
matter due to their significance to the consolidated
statement of financial position and the involvement of
management judgement in evaluating the expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables and contract
assets at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had trade receivables and
contract assets with carrying amount of approximately
RMB119,210,000 and RMB274,408,000 in Notes 20 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements respectively,
amounting to approximately RMB393,618,000 in
aggregate.

B8 S EERIBRENEENTEREZRR A BRET
FH REAREUGKEMBHRAREEEATERRTER
EHANBE SRR SERENEENTEREESERIRE
EEHE - R2019F 128318 BE£EEKAENINE
AR 119,210,000 7T & A R # 274,408,000 7T 0y & 5 & IR
FIEREHNEE(REEUBHRRNT20R22)EHANRBAR
# 393,618,000 T °

BEESEHG)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BANEFNAHAEETSHETER

Our audit procedures in relation to the estimated
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

included:

BMERESREFERENEENEIRENETEFE
&

. Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of assessing the ECL of trade receivables
and contract assets;

THREREFEEIRERBERENEENTEREES
1BH)BIZ

° Assessing management’s basis and judgement,
including their identification of any credit-impaired
trade receivables and contract assets and the
basis of expected loss rates applied individually
(with reference to historical observed default rates
and forward-looking information), in determining
the ECL of trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 December 2019;

FEEREREER S EMHER S WEER 20195
12431 ANBREEBRZ ERRA - BERIIE
15 BORIE R 5 BB R A 0 B 7 WA R B B A
HHERENEE(ELEELMEROERAIE LS
B
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B M % BED | E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter

BERETER
Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets (continued)

ESEWHEARSNEENEREE)

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets based on credit risk of the respective
counterparty. Expected loss rates are assessed
individually based on each customer’s credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed default rates

adjusted by forward-looking estimates.

IR A M HERMEANKRE X ESEEREREAHY
FINEERRGEBRSRUREARSNEENEEFEDR
BHEEEESR BHBAXRETFZENEERRE
B A AR A AT S B B [ L BB R 40 SR 1 4 H (B B RF A o

As disclosed in Notes 20 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements, the impairment loss of the
Group on trade receivables and contract assets as
at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB3,798,000 and RMB4,040,000 respectively.

FANAR A B FS IR FE20 22 FF IR EE © BB 20194
12A31 BNESERFIBERENEENREBIEDNAA
R# 3,798,000 7t X A R¥& 4,040,000 7T °

B FEITEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BANESNASAEETSHETER

Checking the subsequent settlements of any
credit-impaired trade receivables, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of
the current reporting period and challenging
management regarding their reasons for not
considering a provision against any unsettled

past-due balances; and

BEEMEEREREZERFENRREEBR - LE
AR ERERREZERE S BB AR SUKHNERX
o WHEDE B ER R EE BB AR R BN E
HEREERE &

Evaluating the appropriateness of the disclosures
in respect of the credit risk and impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract

assets in the consolidated financial statements.

HERAMBRRTEREZIRRRBERANEENT
SRR R EF G RESD

PAR
(=l==1
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Y 12 BUED R &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group'’s financial reporting process.

HfER
EXFHHEMES AR - R ESRBIIENEF
BANGEE  EFERGEEMHRERRMANZ
BN E o

BMAYGEAMBRRANBEL PREEMESR -
BRI HZEEMERBEREMEANEZS

N
A ©

BABMBRAMBHRRNET  RANEER

BB L AT EMER - FULBRET - T8
HitEERE BEAMBHMRALMEREER
R TROBEAFEEARBREUTFEEX
R ER

ClIH

ERRAERITHIIE - IRBEFRBR/EMESR
FEEA#HRRL HMFEBREZEE - €&
I RFPREEARSE ©

i

EBERAEEMRES
B

MBHmRBAEEN

EXAARREBERETERIESSMBMD
(BB B @S £ R EB(R RGP ESR
KEBEEMAFORAMBERE  YHERS
755';1;*;@/\%?@&%%9’]3‘%%1%?@&&?\ RFF K R
BHRMBRERBLPAFNAGZFHEE -

TERBGRAMBRER  EF85TE &5H
FEKEMERE ) - WEERER THREEBFER
EHEMNEE  URFERARELCE RS ER
BRIEBEEEER BEEBFBRIELLE L5
BmEMEBEONERTER -

REEAAREE BEENMBREBE -

]
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B2 BERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

BB EFT FEMBRRAENER

BANER  REGEMBREAEBESIHFHE
HRRFF R ME RN BB REULES AR
RiE - WIERREPIBENRBERERADERR
HEABREMAEENZBE RS « FRILA - &
IR E A AIEE M AR - L TR ARE
Z AR EHERE A A T AN ] B E S E A
Bff -

EEREZFHKFNRE  BTERERB(E
BB EIDETHE AR -EAERRA
TFER ABRE IR o $HARMRAL T A IR X $B AR 5
B mREERATHEBRERLERTEZE
RAMBHRRERERBEAMBHRRMELH
KEORTE - BIB BN RRABAREE K -

ERB(EABNENDETERINBRES K
PIER T EXRAME - R TEXEEEE - R
Ip -

o RBRIMFFEARAFFRBERMEBERS M
BHRRFEEABRBANER - Rt K
MITEAEF AL LR - A RER
FEMEENEEE  ERKRMERN
Eif o ANEGFAIRE S RBR - & &
BER - EREL - EERARESZ
£ FREEHIRNEAMGF M SR E A
AR R R B R BE R R R SR T G 2
R B AR AR o

o THRERFHEBMARRES - LR
MEZT EEMILIFYE BEXREAM
ZHIMBREHRER -

s HEEEMRASHERERNREMEREL
SRR MEAREN SR -
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M A% B A R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BB REMBRRABENTRRE

(AR /

s EERARKERKLESTERMNREEAEL
i o RBAIERWBRITEE  EERE
FHEESEXBRAAEENENTHEEN
femA e EEY BERENFELEERD
EEBARRE - MREMBA/FEEAT
MEM  ABEMEEXBEBREPIRBRE
REIZHEMBRRTOEBEE - &
ERBNEETR  AIRMEEERIFE
REER - HAINERRERNRBERE
BIEFTEVSHIRETRE - A RRFER
HENATREEH BERETESELE -

s FESAMBHMROERIEBLN  EB
MAR  BRKE  AREEHERRE
BRAFRBZZMEIR -

e i EEERERAXRBEADNIBEE
EERRR  EENRTRE  NHEaH
BHERBEXRER - ZMEE BEEEF
TR - BBMEIT - HFIRETER &
EzEEE-

BREfhSRIRSN - HMIESRIE BB R T A A E R
£E - HRZH  EXEFERS - BEEMAE
BT AP AR BRI B Y (R =R ERFA

BMERGEERRER  HARMEREEH
B MEREEERERESR  WEEFBEAA
AR R A BRI IR P B R
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BYRBERS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lo Wing See.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

Lo Wing See

Practising certificate number P04607

BB EFT FEMBRRAENER

(43 )

(A8 /

WERE BB EIRT - RIFIEEWLEIRE
AR BRENETRRER - AMEKE
REFFFE HMEZBEIREFHAELS
B BIFERERTATARKEELER =L
ERmERNBERT - MRABEMERMBE
TRBRXFRERNAERRBBELHNDRF
i@ BPYRETRAERSHEBZER -

RS 7 A BED 5 M) AT IR B AR B R AR K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERmkAMtERRa R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z= 20194 12 A 31 HILFE

P{ ) 2018
2019 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT AREFor
Revenue A 5 537,509 480,091
Cost of services PR 75 B 2 (393,273) (355,428)
Gross profit EF 144,236 124,663
Other income, gains and losses HEalA - W K EE 6 11,862 8,110
Administrative expenses THHAX (39,764) (27,854)
Distribution and selling expenses DI REERY (2,280) (951)
Other expenses HebFX (21,825) (29,967)
Share of results of associates FE(RE R EREE (13) —
Finance costs S Ip®N 7 (1,094) (6,031)
Profit before tax 756 A A1) E 9 91,122 67,970
Income tax expense Frig iR 8 (13,091) (10,559)
Profit for the year FRFHE 78,031 57,411
Other comprehensive income/ Hih2mEkz(BxX)
(expense)
Items that will not be reclassified TEEFHEZEmAE -
to profit or loss:
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity BEAREEFEWFT AR
instrument at fair value through 2HBEMRATAED
other comprehensive income AREEKE (EE) 1,795 (604)
Income tax relating to items that will BEAEEHFHEEIBZENEB
not be reclassified to profit BRARFEE
or loss (449) (870)
1,346 (974)
Total comprehensive income FREEKRZEBEE
for the year 79,377 56,437

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%k 97



98

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEaRkAEMERRE X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z= 20194 12 A 31 HILFE

PLORE 2018
2019 2018 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT ARHFT
Profit for the year UAT&FELEER
attributable to: F3E :
— Owners of the Company — RRARHEA A 66,984 49,799
— Non-controlling interests — FEEAR S 11,047 7,612
78,031 57,411
Total comprehensive income ATEFELEER
for the year EHEHREARE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RRRIHEA A 67,753 48,825
— Non-controlling interests — FEERR R 11,624 7,612
79,377 56,437
Earnings per share SREF
— Basic (RMB) — ER(ARKTT) 11 0.050 0.049
— Diluted (RMB) — #E(AR%T) 11 0.049 0.048

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR TR

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
H ot ARMFT ARHFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &k 13 81,065 23,531
Intangible assets B EE 14 15,765 16,683
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 6,310 =
Interests in associates B AR 15 581 —
Equity instrument at fair value through &2 # BEFFEILETA
other comprehensive income HihzmEka=rRATA 17 4,775 2,980
Deposits for acquisition of BEYHE  BEREENRS
property, plant and equipment 7,971 5,463
Pledged bank deposits BHERRITER 23 24,715 17,467
Deferred tax assets FEIEFIBE E 18 9,703 2,792
150,885 68,916
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories T8 19 5,250 1,983
Trade and note receivables B 5 EWGRIA R R E 1% 20 143,874 142,835
Deposits, prepayments and & BARER
other receivables H {th fE YR IR 21 57,120 29,146
Contract assets BREE 22 274,408 176,973
Pledged bank deposits BRI RITFE K 23 28,284 26,445
Bank balances and cash RITEHREES 23 142,206 23,437
651,142 400,819
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables Z SRR 24 119,606 84,074
Other payables and accrued H i JE 5 FRIE R BRI Z
expenses 25 15,264 39,778
Contract liabilities EHEE 22 44,179 72,885
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 2,802 —
Income tax payable FERFTIS T 15,478 3,807
Bank borrowings RITEN 27 26,598 10,000
223,927 210,544
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR R

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 H

PLORE 2018
2019 F 2018 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR TFTT AREFIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 427,215 190,275
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 578,100 259,191
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 3,959 —
Obligation arising from a put option R AHAEEAME(E 28 — 99,901
3,959 99,901
NET ASSETS EEFE 574,141 159,290
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE
Share capital %N 29 55,100 41,413
Reserves (] 461,715 90,657
Equity attributable to owners AATREE ABEES
of the Company 516,815 132,070
Non-controlling interests FEFERR T 57,326 27,220
TOTAL EQUITY AR 574,141 159,290

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 March 2020:

Mr. Cai Zhuhua

BHRERE
Director

EZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

R 2020F 3 A 27 HREESH /& RIXHEERM -

Mr. Dong Honghui
BAELEE
Director

EZE

BEMIP R B S A M MR Z AR D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLARRARE
Share-based Statutory Non-
Share Share payment Other  Revaluation surplus Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
HRfALE HE

B RBEE  WINEE REER EERE BBRE EHWE Nt AR &
RUBOLO  RMBOD  AMBOOO  RWBOMO  RMBGOO  AMBOOO  RWBOM  RMBGOO  AMWBOO  AUBOND
AGETE  ARRTE  ARETE  ARETR ARETE  ARETE ARETT ARETE  ARETE  ARKETR

(Note 29) (Note (a))
(hz2) (Wi ()
At 1 January 2018 H2018F151A —* - - (39,545) 2,084 5,000 67,594 35,133 (436) 34,697
Proft for the year ERiE - - - - - - 49,799 49,799 1612 57411
Other comprehensive expense  FMEKZEHR
for the year, net of income (MBFER)
tax - - - - o74) - - o74) - (o74)
Total comprehensive income for ~ £AZ ElEEE
the year - - - - (974) - 4979 48,82 1,612 56,437
Transferfo statutory suplus~~ ERZAFRS — = - - - 8211 (8211) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares fo MEADREENRER
pre-IPO investors, net of BEaR(RRA
share issue cost (Note (b)) B Wi y) 81 16,281 = = = = = 1712 = 1712
Issue of ordinary shares by loan sﬁfﬂg‘ AR ERR
capitalisation (Note (c)) Witle) 40,572 7302 - - - - - 47874 - 47874

Capital contrbution from a non- 3FP§H§H§?‘EEWE{W

controlling shareholder

(Note (¢) - - S TR - GO0 (66 A% 18608 G4dM
Capital contrbution flom anon- ~ FERERTE i fe)

controlling shareholder

(Note e) - - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Recognition of obligation arising R AERELHE

from a put option (Note (d)) i) - - - (94.444) - - - (94.444) = (94.444)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ EAREEENRAAER

share-based payment W H39)

(Note (39) - - 2160 - - - - 2160 - 2160
Acquistton of additional interest  NEEHBAR S R

of a subsidiary (Note (f)) &) = — — (436) - - - (436) 43 -
At 31 December 2018 HR2018E12A31R 1413 23,583 2,160 (50.425) 1,110 1211 101,518 132,070 21220 159,290
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARLE
Share-based Statutory Non-
Share Share payment Other  Revaluation surplus Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
HRftaER EE
e RAEE HXAEE 0 EBEE 00 EREE  BBER  EHAR Mt FBRES aif
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 1000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB1000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB1000
NRETr  ARETr ARETr ARETr AREFr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr AR
(Note 29) (Note (a))
(Hit29) (Wi (5)
At 31 December 2018 201812831 B 1413 23,583 2,160 (50.425) 1,110 121 101,518 132,070 21220 159,290
Impact on iniial application o~ ERER(EBE KRS

IFRS 16 )z 168z e - - - - - - (32) (32) - (32)
Adjusted balance at 101951 R 1BAERE

1 January 2019 g 1413 23,583 2,160 (50.425) 1,110 1211 101,156 131,708 21220 158,928
Profit for the year EmilE - - - = = = 66,084 6,984 1047 78,031
Other comprehensive income for  FMEM2ERE (I

the year, net of income tax i) - - - - 769 - - 769 577 1346
Total comprehensive income for - M2 ERALE

the year - - - - 769 - 66,984 67,753 11,64 19317
Issue of ordinary shares relating BB RARRERLAR

10 PO (Note (b)) W) 13,667 271% - — = - = 240,882 = 240,882
Transaction costs aftibutable fo - EFHRHELNRFAE

issue of new shares - (13,648) - - - - - (13,648) - (13,648)
Derecognifion of obligation R BT RE

atising from a put opinion Eft(Hi ()

(Note (d)) - - - 99,901 - - - 99,901 - 99,901
Capital contrbution from a non- ~ FEARBREE

controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
Change in ownership interests in - BAFIfA#EREE

subsidiaries without change  (FHEEAE)

of contol (Note () (H) = - - (13699) - - — (1) 1369 -
Partial disposal of interestina ~ BAHER-EHBATN

subsidiary without osing ER(TAREIE)

control (Note 43 (H43) - - - 261 - - - 2611 2989 4900
Recognition of equity-settled  BAREEENRHAER

share-based payment WA HH9)

(Note 39) - - 1,301 - - - - 1,301 - 1,301
Transfer to statutory suplus~~ EREETRE - - - - - 12,905 (12.905) - = =
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 55,100 237,130 3461 38,304 1,879 25,616 165,035 516,81 57,326 574141
* Less than RMB 1,000 * LRAR# 1,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

Note:

(b)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after tax
as per statutory financial statements determined under the PRC
laws and regulations for the statutory surplus reserve fund until the
reserve reach 50% of their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve
must be made before distributing dividends to equity owners of the
subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
previous years’ losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the respective subsidiaries.

On 13 February 2018, the Company has allotted and issued
16,155,353 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to two pre-IPO
investors for a total consideration of HK$16,991,957 (equivalent to
approximately RMB13,706,000).

On 9 April 2018, the Company has allotted and issued 4,708,647
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to another pre-IPO investor for a
total consideration of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,016,000).

On 3 January 2019, 312,471,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.88
per share by way of public offer. On the same date, the shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

On 26 January 2018, Jade Fly Investment Limited (“Jade Fly”) has
agreed to subscribe for 1,499,497,901 shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company at the subscription price in
the sum equivalent to the amount of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent
to approximately RMB14,356,000) which are to be satisfied by
capitalising the loan amount of HK$17,691,182.

On 26 January 2018, WeiGang Technology Limited (“WeiGang
Technology”) has agreed to subscribe for 3,500,495,099 shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at the subscription
price in the sum equivalent to the amount of HK$41,307,518
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,518,000) which are to be
satisfied by capitalising the loan amount of HK$41,307,518.

Bt -

(b)

(c)

BRENFEARKMBE(THEDKRINFAERBR
RIMABBEIZAER - PEKE A RARELEEM
BRPMEBOFRFBOREFEEEEREE)
REBA10% (FREATEBEBFHE  EEMEEEE
& A H) 50% © [A 7% fré B0 88 A\ A B A [ P /S 1 )
R AD KRS ATETT - AERBRFEE A AR
BRARNFEENER  EREAEEXERBAMRE
M A B EVRRSNE K o

R2018F 2R 13H * AARIMAMBERARAEE
A% & & At 3% [ 317 16,155,353 I & AR I {8 0.05
VETCH AR - BE(E A 16,991,957 BT (HE R
#) AR 13,706,000 7T) °

N2018F4 A9H  ARAIAS—BEHAAFREES
AT & & Al 3¢ [ %17 4,708,647 IR F IR E(E 0.05 75
TCR)EBAY - 48 %1(E 45,000,000 BT (HHERLHA
¥ 4,016,000 7T) °

20191 A3H  ARBIBEUNARBEE T LE
}% 0.88 7% JT K {B 1% %% 17 312,471,000 f% & % H &
0.058 T @A - M A + AR EIRGHRBERFTE
R ET o

2018518268 - ARKEBRRAR(ARID
B REREARDRARAF1,499,497,901 IR B iR
EE001 B ITHRY - RIBEERTE R 17,691,182
7S (M & R4 A K % 14,356,000 ) + #5 A #
17,691,182 B TERE AL H AL AT -

R2018F 1268 - BRI AER A A(H B
BB R ZRE A QA R A # 3,500,495,099
BREREEIOIBTHRG REERLEA
41,307,518 (8 & M 4 A K #33,518,000
JL) * ¥ LA 41,307,518 B TTE R A ML T X
fi o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARHRBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

(d) On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang Environmental Protection
Technology Limited (“Guangzhou Weigang”), WEIGANG HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED (“Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong)”),
Jade Road Investment Limited (*Jade Road”), Jade Fly, WeiGang
Technology and Orient Landscape Group Environmental Protection
Co., Ltd (“Orient Landscape”), an independent third party,
entered into investment agreements whereby Orient Landscape
agreed, among others, to subscribe for the registered capital of
RMB40,000,000 in Guangzhou Weigang, for 10% of the equity interest
in Guangzhou Weigang, at a consideration of RMB94,444,444.
Upon completion of the subscription on 11 April 2018, an amount
representing the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the
net assets of Guangzhou Weigang at the date of the completion
of the subscription is transferred to non-controlling interests. The
difference between the capital contribution from the non-controlling
interests, the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-attribution of its statutory
surplus reserve and retained profits is recognised in other reserve.

On the same date, an amount representing the present value
amounting to RMB94,444,444 of the amount that the Group could
be required to pay to Orient Landscape pursuant to the put option
over the 10% equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by
Orient Landscape, with a corresponding debit in other reserve, is
recognised in obligation arising from a put option.

Upon the successful listing of the Company on 3 January 2019, the
put option has been lapsed and all the previously recognised interest
expenses have been reversed through equity without any payment to
Orient Landscape, as disclosed in Note 28.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has made
several capital injections to Guangzhou Weigang for total amount of
RMB136,930,920. Upon the completion of capital injections, there
has been no change in shareholding of Guangzhou Weigang and the
amount representing 10% of the above capital injections has been

transferred to non-controlling interests.

(e) On 15 July 2018, Weierneng Environmental (Suzhou) Limited
(“Weierneng Environmental”) was established by Shenzhen Xinnengji
Technology Limited (“Shenzhen Xinnengji”) and an independent third
party, Party D and a capital injection amounting to RMB1,000,000
and RMB1,000,000 has been paid by the Group and Party D,
respectively.

(f) On 14 September 2018, Guangzhou Weigang acquired the
remaining 27.14% equity interest in Shenzhen Xinnengji from Party
A at consideration of RMB1 and Shenzhen Xinnengji became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Weigang. The amount of
non-controlling interest of approximately RMB436,000 was transferred
to other reserve.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

(d)

(e)

MN2018F4 A48 EMEBRRMEZBER A A
(TEM#ERS D) - B IRIR (B8 ) AR A A ([ #51E
R(BHE)]) « ABEREERAR(ARE] - AR

HARMBRERFEMEBRBRRERRARSE
W RBUE=RH)ARE G - B RAE
MEE (L 815 ) 3208 BN 4 7%8 A KR ¥ 40,000,000
TR M ER(EMEB10%ARE) - HEAA
R ¥ 04,444,444 7T - REER20184F 4 A 11 B =K
% —S2HERTHABE AEGOEMNESEE
FEERENSEEREIFERER - FERER
EE - BIEENEEEEFENREEREN DR

HATFRMHFEERZATEZENZEREMEE
R

AHE - FReBEEASENERAERNR BN T
ﬁ@AE%%mMMMﬂ&%HIMhﬁ%%M
HAB10% KB G EENEEEPER)
Rk E £ MBI HER -

AAFR2019F 1 A3AKI L& - RGHIER
KA MK EE 28 ATt B - BT St AT RE R AU FILE
X BB BRAREE - Hﬂzﬁrﬂiﬁa%ﬁﬁjfﬂﬂ
3K -

HZE2019F 12 A1 HILFE - ARAREHERE

MEEBTE - L2H A AR 136,930,920 7T ° 1

mﬁz&ﬁé FJII%%E@M&EEE A5 - TAEER
T E 10% B2 R C E R IR o

R2018F7 A158 - BRAEIREREEGRM) B R
RA([EBAEIRR ) BRI BRI R AR R A
(DRYIFTREE ) R —BBLE=FT AR &
SEEAT H5HBIZF AR 1,000,000 7T R AR
1,000,000 TLIEAIEE ©

R2018F9 A 148 » BM@BUARKE 1LY
B8 T 75 Ui T ORI 386 &R Tl 64 27.14% ) AR AN 4
= RYIFTEERRE AR MBI 2 BB AR - 3
PR A AR 436,000 TEEB E M -

BEPM BT St Mz AR A M MR Z AR ED D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Kzt AREFT AREFr
Operating activities RETH
Profit before tax B EIEUNE] 91,122 67,970
Adjustments for: ARIER :
Share of results of associates FERE = R EM R 13 —
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FE B A R MERE 9 6 —
Gain on deregistration of investment in i — B ECERE 2
an associate 6 — (97)
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% BERZEBNE
equipment 9 3,559 1,726
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 9 2,051 —
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 9 945 413
Bank interest income RITH S WA 6 (1,504) (375)
Finance costs [EEEDHN 7 1,094 6,031
Impairment loss, net of reversal WEEE(NRED) 9 767 716
Net foreign exchange gains SN M 2 F 5 (2,107) (3,054)
Share-based payment expenses ARG AD A BT B S SR 2 1,301 2,160
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE R R AN KR
and equipment 9 (3) —
Operating cash flows before EEESHDAINEERERNE
movements in working capital 97,244 75,490
Increase in inventories FEE N (3,267) (1,961)
Increase in trade and note receivables & 5 R ZIE I e U Z i 52 10 (1,689) (84,878)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and &% + B 208 & H b R IE
other receivables i (33,375) (1,497)
Increase in contract assets BRIEER M (97,552) (109,679)
Increase in trade payables B S RE S FoEgm 27,561 51,204
(Decrease)/increase in other payables Hib B R BT (L)
and accrued expenses /B0 (4,294) 5,906
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities A% & &), /M (28,706) 5,106
Cash used in operations RERARE (44,078) (60,309)
Income tax paid BERAES (8,718) (9,113)
Net cash used in operating activities & FEFAR S RE (52,796) (69,422)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hiat AR¥FT ARETFT
Investing activities RETEE
Purchase of and deposits paid for BEWE  BEREER
property, plant and equipment Bffké (61,096) (7,443)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTAE (12,727) (4,303)
Investment in associates P B R RIRE (590) —
Interest received B I 8 1,504 375
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BE RS MEEHE
property, plants and equipment 6 =
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREERRTER 27,936 500
Placement of pledged bank deposits FAEERBRITER (37,023) (35,524)
Return of investment upon deregistration 5 #5Et & (> 214 MR & @1}
of an associate - 5,636
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash  WiE—FEH B2 7 GIKREF
paid BE) 41 1,080 —
Proceeds from partial disposal of a o HE—FEME R RMERE
subsidiary without losing control (TREZTIHE) 43 4,900 —
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash HE—FAMBAR(NKRELE
disposed ) 42 (10) —
Net cash used in investing activities = REFEFTARSTE (76,020) (40,759)
Financing activities MEEE
Repayment to shareholders EfESEN - (43,152)
Repayment to related parties [) B B 7 2 5N — (2,433)
Capital element of lease rental paid ENEENAE D (2,024) -
Interest element of lease rental paid BERHASHNFEEHS (270) =
Interest paid EFLE (824) (574)
Issue costs paid EANE:SRIZZ (9,277) (2,335)
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITHER (10,450) —
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE R RIE 27,048 =
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary HXARBEERBETETRR
shares upon IPO FR8 IR 240,882 —
Capital injection from pre-IPO investors ~ BXAFHBEHIREETE - 17,722
Capital contribution from a non- BN 4B I R AR T &
controlling shareholder of Guangzhou
Weigang 28 — 94,444
Capital injection by a non-controlling FEERBRRFE
shareholder 2,500 1,000
Net cash from financing activities METBHRERLTE 247,585 64,672
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBESEMEM (RD)
cash equivalents FE 118,769 (45,509)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUREREELEEN
beginning of the year 23,437 68,946
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERAGRACEEY
of the year, represented by bank RITEBRRES
balances and cash 142,206 23,437
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMI P 3t Bz Shr A Mg R < A EB D ©

financial statements.
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GENERAL

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 18 May 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company are WeiGang Technology Limited
and Weigang Green Technology Limited (“Weigang Green”),
respectively, both of which were incorporated in British Virgin
Island (“BVI") and are wholly owned by Mr. Cai Zhuhua (“Mr.
Cai”), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group, who is
also the chairman and executive director of the Company. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 January 2019.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008 Cayman Islands and the address of
principal place of business of the Company is Unit 3507, 35/F,
AlA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
a “Group”) are principally engaged in hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution provider in China focused on
the research, design, integration and commissioning of solid
waste treatment systems particularly for hazardous waste
incineration. A list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
of 31 December 2019 and their particulars are set out in Note
40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

—REH

HEHIMREBEEREABR QR AR
A )R2017F5 A 18ARIEREHS
ARRERFASHSEMK L AEHR RS
PRAR - NAR R BEEZERA B RRERK
ERRARA DB AEBRIEBRA B R
BHRERNEERAR([#E&E]) W
EOREBER RS ((REERRE
B DMK - WHAS B A SEER
BRREKRELE([SEEEDN2EHRE -
BRBEARBEFERAITES - XA A
BRMDBER2019F1 ASHEFT BB AR
SARAR (BT ERET -

N B B A A = AR ak R Cayman
Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
9008 Cayman lIslands @ MARAIEE
EEIMB R R BB AT RE183
SE R FP &5 3518 3507 BT ©
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standard Board

(“IASB”) for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement

Amendments to |IAS 28 Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

The Group has changed its accounting policies as a result
of adoption “IFRS 16 Leases”. The impact of the adoption of
the standard and the new accounting policies are disclosed
below. The other interpretation and amendments had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior period and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

FE R R R RS R BB B FE 3R o5 2
R (T B B Bt 75 3 o5 2B A1) 1)

AEECERBATHERSTENEES
(BRI EANEREE )RAFEERHE
o #a] RAEIEFTCBRR M B |mEER)

(Bl 5 3R 5 2R HE

£165F
(BBRUBRERBEE  FEHERED
)E 235 RE THEE 1
(BIR BT 5 3R 28] BEEREEY
FIR(BATA) TRATE I

(EpgEHEAl) FHEIERT - RS

F19% (BFTK) ]

(BB gstEd) RELEERAER
F 285 (1B7]K) EhmRIER
Gl s ) (Gl =R )
(BFIA) 2015 E 20174

B FENE

HRAEERACERYBFREEADS
165 ME]] MOEFEEGFTEEK - T
XBRERAZEFERFGARRNT
2 HuRBREXBAREAREKLE
EHMH P BRE BB R LR A
FAMBHRRABENRELEEATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 5 ¥R R MY EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 “Leases” (“IAS 17”) and the
related interpretations.

(a)

(b)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not
apply these standards to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already

existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in IFRS 16

in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019. As at 1 January 2019,
the Group recognised additional lease liabilities and
measured right-of-use assets at the carrying amounts
as if IFRS 16 had been applied since commencement
date, but discounted using the incremental borrowing
rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative

information has not been restated.

2

FE A3 5T R A4S 5T C B PR B s R o5 2
B (T Bk B 75 3 25 22 ) ) (42)

P RCER B B R S RIS 16 55 FAE 1Y

it

RE

BENTERED
BIRAEE BRI SRS

ADEE 16 5% o CEIFR R 75 RS ZERIDEE 16 5%
BACER g ERDF1757EE |([KE

e
(a)

(b)

SERINE 17 5% ) RARRERRRE -
HENESE

AEECERENREBRENT
% Bt B E ACKBER & 5 RID S
17 R MBERMBRERERZES)
FAFREETRHRERERE
A R E 2 & K ACEER R 5 3R
EEADF165 - ML EH LA
ABBAEBREEZANERZE
A At - AEBY BEEHFFHR
BXREABHMAEFEZEA -

FMR2019F 1 A1 B 2B K
BIINEHNME @ ~AEBRTHE
HREBEHERBRE(BER T BE
HAERNE 16 RATE MR EEAHEE
HER °

EREBA

RNEE BB B R B 75 s 4
BIDE 165 - Rt 2N EXERA
H1(2019F 1 A1H) R - 12019
F1A1H AEEEREINEES
& WREEAESSCAEEE -
M E A F A A B R AR
HRERERNE 165 - B BERHE
PR 75 R XERIDEE 16.C8(b) (i) 57 /Y
BEFRAEAEEEENEXER
HEIR I S AR T REER - RE X
FEFA B B ) = Z R B 9] R 5T 7
HERABLBRERTTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BHRRKE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSSs”) (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b) As alessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective

lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as

an alternative of impairment review;

(i)  elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends

within 12 months of the date of initial application;

(iii)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the

right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(iv) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for certain
leases of properties in the PRC and Hong Kong

was determined on a portfolio basis; and

(v) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension

and termination options.

On transition, the Group has made the following

adjustments upon application of IFRS 16:

The Group recognised lease liabilities of approximately
RMB6,382,000, right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB5,958,000 and deferred tax assets of approximately
RMB62,000 as at 1 January 2019.

2

FE R # 5T R ARME ST B BR i I i o5 22
AN (TCEIBRF B HREER)D ) (2)

P RCEBR B B R s 2 RIS 16 55 FAE 1Y
B RENEEREEH(E)

(b) 1EREBEA(E)

A B R B e KRR B 4 5 2 A1)
F165RIA T RE T B T AR
REBRZIEE G EERERRE

(B g EANDE 17RO B REE

HEBRXHAESWAENEER

R TAITTREIDE -

(i) REBEBEB(ERSER)D
FITHEE  HABBRK
REEMFRRBEZFHANE R
ARHMHEHEHERTERIE

(i) BETSAERNERERAH
EEt12AARNERNEE
REREEELRHERR

iy REXEBBHT2FEHEE
EERFHBR AN I8 R AN

(iv) FEBECEREAMBLUERE
MEEMNBLUNGERNEE
AAEAE—BRX - ABM
B ORBERBEEMENET
MEZRRREDRICEREE
E R

(v) BERBEREREHNEER
BARFREEAKEFEL
RRREEEENHEENH
i o
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AEER2019F1 A1EBHERBE
BEMH AR 6,382,000 © 5 AE
AEH AR 5,958,000 7T K& iEEF
HEEHNAREE62,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b)

As a lessee (continued) (b)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied is 4.75%.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2 ERAHITRKET(EBRIEHREZE

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING AN ERE I REERY D) ()

ER(ERMBREER)F 1657 HE 1Y
B RENEEREH(E)

ERABA (E)

RERTADEREEHEZEE
ZHERER  AKBEEEARE
RERBHEREEERNEER
KA K o BT FE A H D0 T 29 AR A
BEERNERA475% °

RMB’000
AREFr
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 720184 12 A31 HEHB 2 L& HE
31 December 2018 ZEi 7,435
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant THEAEERE IS ERF RETIR
incremental borrowing rates (473)
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term B WEREHE — REEE
leases (486)
Lease of low-value assets RKEELEMRS (94)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1AZHEAR 6,382
Analysed as ZEIB N
Current i 1,939
Non-current ERE 4,443
6,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b) As alessee (continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2 FERMTREETC(ERMERE %
RO (T BB Bt 75 3 o5 2B R ) 1) (4)

ER(ERMBREER)F 165 HE 1Y
B RENEEREEH(E)

(b) 1EREBEA(E)

R2019F 1 B1 B E FIEARR
EPHERZSBEEEATAE-
ARBEHERTEZHEE T EBE

R °
Balance
under
Balance at Effect of IFRS 16 at
31 December adoption of 1 January
2018 IFRS 16 2019
R2019 45
Rk 1A1H
(BB Bt 7% (BBt 3%
#2018 F B|EAEE) #|E%EE)
12A31H E165% E16HKE T
P S R Rk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARMFT ARETT

Assets: BE:
Right-of-use assets FREEE — 5,958 5,958
Deferred tax assets EERIEERE 2,792 62 2,854
Liabilities: afE:
Current lease liabilities mEBHEaRE — 1,939 1,939
Non-current lease liabilities FRBDEERE — 4,443 4,443
Reserves: e
Retained profits S vl 101,518 (362) 101,156
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract®

(IR T S 2ERIDEE 17 5% REEH?

Amendments to IFRS 3
SRR B 5 3R 5 42 Bl )28 355 (12 RT 4 )

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
CEIRR B 53R S 22 R DEE 10 5% &
CEIBR R RIS 28 57 (1851 AN)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
CEIRREEHERIE 155 &
CEIR g 2RI 8 5% (2R A)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
CEIBR B 53R &S 2E R DB 9 5%

(R 5 2R DEE 39 57 &

CEIRR B 5 R S 2RI D E 7 5% (1B FTA)

Amendment to IAS 1
CEBRERERIDE 15 (BETA)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Definition of Material’
BEAMNTES'

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

FE A3 5T R A4S 5T C B PR B s R o5 2
A (TCEIBR B | EER)D ) (@)

BB R AE RV H R RS RTCE PR 3%
BEER)

AREE N BT E A AT EB/MERER
AT BRI BB M 75 5 22 R ©

Definition of Business'

EBMmESR'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

REFREBEOES AL CECHANEEHRESTE"
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since
1 January 2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2

“Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

3
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
(i) has power over the investee;

(i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

(iii)  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and

the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 “Income Taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the statements of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified

impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purpose is prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes result in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

EEETBEM

REBERRNRE

BECX/AREHEABEANTE NN
BER - -BAFENR2ERKETUBR
REBFRRZESN X IFEHHHAR
R FHR

BEbXNREAREERABRES S
EHAGEMBRER - KABR A
o B XN BERRRAEAEE]
REEER THRUR S REFERN S
BRmE - RBERE - RBEEENKR
BIa AR AR 4R & B TS AR 3K A FE R
REKARE  URERLAEEEZBEDLE
THREEREREMEEKE BERE
BiEm M EMEEKR@IINEEFEED
TTPAR BREZEFEHSERNAKERN

EENERBHENZBECENNE(E
REMEE LBRAEERNZBEEEDN
REFBRNEMANE) - BIAKER EFER
HFfEmE— PR - EEAEBE R
AREEREEEERRRZBELEE
HARAOBERT - T ERRBEINEE

REBEEHZKAMELEER - HREE
EENRERBEIEAR o RUER B
BRENRER  REXNABBAEKEFRR
EREHRABNEERABEAABEF
BEZEMIBDLERSEE - Lt ARE
ZHREE - ARBEMEAIBNEERAR
REFFERZAABEFEBRBIREKX
RZEMED - RWERE B NEE

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%k

121



122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal

of the associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that

are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group

uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfied a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to customers.

Control of the goods or services may be transferred over
time or at a point of time. Control of the goods or services is

transferred over time if:

° The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;

or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If control of the services transfer over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress toward complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:
i) provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services,

i) provision of pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions

services,
iii) provision of technical upgrading services,

iv)  provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment

services, and
V) provision of maintenance services.

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions
services, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions
services and iii) technical upgrading services

Recognition

Provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services and pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions
services represent the services on design, integration and
commissioning of solid waste treatment systems which
comprise a range of equipment and other components, on a
made-to-order basis pursuant to the technical specification
and requirement of the customers. Provision of technical
upgrading services represent the upgrading services provided
for existing hazardous waste incineration systems and certain
cement production facilities. Since the Group’s performance
creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs, revenue from these services therefore
are recognised over time using input methods, i.e. based
on the stage of completion of the contract, and the stage
of completion of the contract is measured based on the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to

date relative to the estimated total contract costs.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions
services, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions

services and iii) technical upgrading services (continued)
Recognition (continued)

For warranty embedded to the contracts, the customer does
not have the option to purchase a warranty separately, the
Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
unless the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the contracting work complies

with the agreed-upon specifications.
Contract assets/liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade and
note receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the progress payment exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the input method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment

services

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services
represents the services provided for an oil service provider
which has the relevant operating licence, to lease and
provide operation and maintenance services for, an oil sludge
treatment facility designed and commissioned by the Group
in Karamay, Xinjiang, by charging a leasing and operation
fee based on the actual treatment volume of oil sludge for an

initial term of three years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Provision of maintenance services

The Group provides maintenance services, including repair
and maintenance services to customers. Income is recognised
over the contract period when the relevant services are
provided by the Group and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance.
Lease

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in Note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and

conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in Note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in Note 2) (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to lease of office and machineries that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another

systematic basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
— any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its

estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

ERETHHE

HE#E)

EEBEBRBA (RBER M E 2 8918 B FE
P BB R T 3 5 2R DFE 16 3 ) (4)

FHHEREEEEEHE

AEBHAR B MK R12EA%
URABYTEERERERNROERE
HHERARHHERERR R - HIFBE
BEEEEHERMAERM R BHHEEW
HEMNRRERNRESEZLS — Rt
HEERB/HX

RIHEEE
ERREEXRARSE
— HERBENULHESR:

— RABAHIZAELNEAEE
R OREMEWEERSE

— AEEELENEANHERKA
K

— HAKEFRBEMEBHEBEE &
REREEMESHREBRARE
EEHE W GERREEREMR
PREERAEL M HEZEK
AREEFEMES @ Al=ER®

A& E A BT 7 TE B A SRS IS 4E
HEEEMARNEREEEAMRHBAH
HER A FHERYBERTE - £EM
BT - EREEEAERENEMEE
RERRARUAREE KE) AT
Z

FHD*}

U//

SERGAMBIRARTAREREEE
JF%” IR E

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%k

127



128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in

accordance with transition in Note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement

date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EESHEE@®
(continued)
Lease (continued) HEE)
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in Note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

the lease term has changed or there is a change in — HEEMEHNITEREERERD

the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in Note 2) (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases were classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases were classified as

operating leases.

Operating lease payments were recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases were recognised as an

expense in the period in which they were incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial

disposal of the Group’s interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the year in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit

or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in

which they become receivable.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling

them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount

already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-

based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are accessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net

deductible temporary difference.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including facility held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes other than properties
under construction as described below are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of individual, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating units) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are

initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair

value.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model

whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and

collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of IFRS
9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

applies.
A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

At the date of initial application/initial recognition, the
Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI| are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gains and
losses” line item in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade and
note receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) and contract assets which are subject
to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are

assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment

grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking

information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and note receivables,
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence of that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accrued expenses, amounts due to subsidiaries, lease
liabilities, bank borrowings and obligation arising from a put
option) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Obligation arising from a put option on shares of a subsidiary

written to investors

Put option written to investors, which will be settled other
than by exchange of fixed amount of cash for a fixed number
of shares in a subsidiary is treated as derivative and is
recognised at fair value upon initial recognition. Any changes
of fair value in subsequent reporting dates are recognised in

profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares in a subsidiary is established even if the obligation
is conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the subsidiary. The liability for the share
redemption amount is initially recognised and measured at
present value of the estimated repurchase price with the
corresponding debit to the other reserve. In subsequent years,
the remeasurement of the present value of the estimated
gross obligation under the written put option to the investors

is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
at banks and securities brokers, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to

use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREMBHRRKE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any members of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers for

hazardous waste incineration solution services

The Group recognised contract revenue using the input
method and contract costs are recognised on actual incurred
basis. The input method is measured by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the

estimated contract costs.

The estimated contract revenue is determined in accordance

with the terms set out in the relevant contract.

The estimated total contract costs are based on contracted
amount of suppliers’ contracts, and in respect of amounts
not contracted for, management’s estimates for the amounts
to be incurred taking into consideration historical trends for
the amounts incurred and adjusted for any price fluctuation
during the year, where applicable. Significant assumptions
are required in estimating the total contract costs which affect
the contract revenue recognised to date based on the input

method.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers for

hazardous waste incineration solution services (continued)

Management review the contract with customers for
foreseeable losses whenever there is an indication that
the estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
contract costs. The actual outcome in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the

amounts recorded to date.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The management estimates the amount of loss allowance for
ECL on trade receivables that are measured at amortised cost
and contract assets based on the credit risk of the respective
counterparty. The Group uses a lifetime ECL model and
estimates the expected loss rate for the trade receivables and
the contract assets individually based on each customer’s
credit risk characteristics and the historical observed default
rates adjusted by forward-looking estimates. The assessment
of the credit risk of the trade receivables and contract assets
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty as details
in Notes 20, 22 and 32. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss may

arise, accordingly.

As at 31 December 2019, the total carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB393,618,000 (2018: RMB304,077,000), net
of allowance for impairment of approximately RMB7,838,000
(2018: RMB7,071,000).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the provision of comprehensive solid waste
incineration turnkey solutions focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste systems by the
Group to external customers in the PRC. The Group’s revenue
is derived from providing i) hazardous waste incineration
solutions, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions, iii) oil
sludge thermal desorption treatment services, iv) technical
upgrading services, and v) maintenance services in the PRC.
For the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, review the financial
performance of the Group as a whole prepared based on the
same accounting policies. Accordingly, the Group has only
one single operating segment and no further discrete financial
information nor analysis of this single segment is presented.

Revenue from major services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

major services:
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2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARHTFT
Recognised over time BERF R RR
Hazardous waste incineration ERENMRGERERRATR
solutions 452,990 444 771
Pyrolysis solid waste treatment EA SR E LY R B R OR
solutions HE 22,773 4,064
Oil sludge thermal desorption SR E B BT B 3 AR 7%
treatment services 45,436 10,745
Technical upgrading services AT I 4% BR 7 4,119 11,092
Maintenance services HE RS 12,191 9,419
537,509 480,091
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.
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ARMFT ARETFr
Provision of hazardous waste RIEBREYRERE RS R
incineration solutions 432,008 410,874
Provision of pyrolysis solid waste IR EAEE R YR B RRR
treatment solutions R 1,699 23,802
Provision of technical upgrading R R AR
services 5,672 991
Provision of maintenance services 1R M AR TS 2,646 149
Total i 442,025 435,816

Based on the information available to the Group at the end
of reporting period, the directors of the Company expect
the transaction price allocated to the above unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) contracts as of 31 December 2018 and
2019 will be recognised as revenue during the years ended/
ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2021 in respect
of provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions, during
the years ended/ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December
2020 in respect of provision of pyrolysis solid waste treatment
solutions, during the years ended/ending 31 December 2019
to 31 December 2020 in respect of technical upgrading
services and during the years ended/ending 31 December
2019 to 31 December 2020 in respect of provision of

maintenance services.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers (continued)

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services
typically have a 3-year non-cancellable term in which the
Group charges fee based on the actual treatment volume of
oil sludge. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has provided the services. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
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PLORE 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFTT ARMFT

Customer A ZEA 138,391 187,162

Customer B ZFEB 68,977 N/ATNE

Customer C BEC N/A RER* 72,155
* Revenue did not account for 10% or more of the Group’s * WAREERE B EEAEBBASE

revenue during the respective reporting period.
Geographical information

The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially
all of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets, are located in the PRC,
and revenue of the Group is generated from customers
located in the PRC.

10% kA L ©
HEER
AEFETBEPEBENLE  AEELT
2BHERBEE(TE R TENUREE
BMIBEE)AMNTE - BAREEHI AR
BRPRENERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

6 OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6 HMWA-WKWEREE

2019 2018
2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TFTT ARBFor

Bank interest income SRITH BUA 1,504 375

Government grants (Note a) ESEENC LY 8,106 722

Indemnity compensation (Note b) BEBEAZDb) — 3,758

Sundry income HETE UL A 148 —

Other income =N 9,758 4,855

Net foreign exchange gains SN W 2 5 B 2,107 3,158

Gain on deregistration of investment i —RIB A PERE Y

in an associate Iz — 97
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —RWE AR R EE (6) =
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BRE&&E

and equipment, net 2R 3 o
Other gains and losses H b Y25 & B8 2,104 3,255

11,862 8,110

Note: HiatE -

(a)  Government grants represented immediate financial support (a) BEHBAEMBG T O E RS o
granted by the local governments. There were no specific TR - BSERKEIAERIR
conditions attached to the grants and the amounts were SHETIES PR ©
recognised in profit or loss upon the receipt of relevant cash.

(b)  Indemnity compensation represented the compensation paid (b) EBEEBEEEFIFEERE@ARFNOER

T 1E
DRERBEHBAGNEXNNEE  B#
hazardous waste incineration project in Suzhou which was EHEREZE20165F12A31BIEFER
terminated during the year ended 31 December 2016.

by a counterparty for its default of contract in relation to a

& o> &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

7 FINANCE COSTS BER A
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKFr
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIE TS 824 574
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 270 =
Interest on obligation arising from a RO EE R TR
put option A — 5,457
Total aat 1,094 6,031
8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE Fri8Bih X
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFr
The income tax expense comprises: SR BIE :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”): PRI EMSH
([REMRBR) :
— Current tax —BNEA% 18 20,389 12,737
— Over provision in prior year —REFEBERE — (492)
20,389 12,245
Deferred tax RIEFIE (7,298) (1,686)
13,091 10,559

The Company and its subsidiaries, Weigang Environment
Limited, Jade Far Investment Limited and Definite Thrive
Limited, were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and BVI,
respectively. All these entities did not have tax assessable
profit in Cayman Islands, BVI or other jurisdiction in both

years.

ARRREMBARBEREARAR
NEREARABDMEEER AR D IR
RERENRBEBRESEMMAL - 1
ZEFE  MEZEEREHRERS -
BHEARHSAREMAIAEBRRIERE
BiFE

4
)

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

8

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements in both years as the
Group does not have income which arose in, or derived from
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT
Law”) effective on 1 January, 2008, Guangzhou Weigang
Environment Protection Technology Limited (“Guangzhou
Weigang”) obtained a “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(the “HNTE”) since 2016 which Guangzhou Weigang was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021
(2018: 2016 to 2018) and eligible for renewal every three
years.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries of the
Company was 25% (2018: 25%) during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Income tax expense can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

FrBiB X (4)

HRARELESEFTENRA - BER
ZEFE  REAMBHRRPILARERE
ARG ERME -

RIE2008F 1 A1 8 £ERAKDEEHR
ENCRERBRIEY]D)  BNEBRR
BEERAR(EMES]) 52016 F 8
BERE Al B % (=336
%) - BUEBRMNMEBE 2019 F = 2021 F
(20184 : 2016 FE 2018 F ) ZH 15%
MERME  F=FrEH -

REZE2019F12A31BHIEFE - AR
AIHMABEKERRMNERBREAE25%
(2018 4F : 25%) °

PIEBRAX A T ARBGEEERE R
HAth 2 W R B BB B ATH B S

P{ ) 2018
2019 & 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARHTFT
Profit before tax LRl 91,122 67,970
Tax at applicable income tax rate of  LA25% (2018 4F : 25% ) K B
25% (2018: 25%) i Rt E A FiIE 22,781 16,992
Tax effect due to preferential tax rate HAERHREMEENHGHE (8,971) (8,394)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A H1%: B 2 B TR 7% 57 22
for tax purposes 134 6,441
Tax effect of income not taxable for FEMERTUMARN TS 2
tax purpose (69) (789)
Tax effect of share of results of an RGBS XN EENTBTE
associate 3 —
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised  KRIERZFHEBENHIGHE 2,694 28
Ultilisation of tax loss previously not B/ iBERFERHIHIARE
recognised — (148)
Tax effect of super-deduction INEHOBR I 25 5 S MO B i sr 28
on research and development
expenses (3,481) (3,079)
Over-provision in prior year MEFERERE — (492)
Income tax expense s> 13,091 10,559
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

9 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 BATALE
2019 2018
2019 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR TFr
Profit before tax has been arrived kR GEA) TH &A%
at after charging/(crediting): FATFDE
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRAN(BEESEMHE)
emoluments)
Directors’ remuneration =) 3,272 1,527
Other staff: HEMET :
— Salaries and other benefits — HeEEMmER 32,147 23,317
— Bonus — fE4 3,500 2,397
— Contributions to retirement — BRRBEHEFEIE R
benefits scheme 6,340 2,261
— Share-based payment expenses — RO AEROZ AR 1,071 1,954
Total staff costs @8 TR 46,330 31,456
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 Bl %57 A 1,746 1,810
Research and development costs B AN (G AE M)
(included in other expenses)* 21,058 16,799
Listing expenses (included in other R (GEAREMASR)
expenses) — 12,270
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —HHBARKERE 6 =
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BWERERENE
equipment 3,559 1,726
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,051 —
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 945 413
Allowance for impairment of/(reversal & 5 U KIE & fE W = &
of allowance for) trade and note ERE (BEREE)
receivables (included in other (FFAEAMRR)
expenses) 650 (1,174)
Allowance for impairment of contract A #)&EREEE (Gt AHAM
assets (included in other expenses) ) 117 2,073
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERZEHKE
and equipment (3) —
Reversal of impairment loss on J2¢ [o] B8 [ it B 7 1 10 O A K
advance to a supplier BRAR R EEE - (183)
Minimum operating lease payments HELERERNRK 744 2,528

* ZAEREHZE2019F 12 A1 BIEFER
B IR A# AR 8,770,000 7T(2018 F :
AR 7,238,000 78 ) LA R AR B H b 48 RAAK
ANE AR 12,288,000 7T(2018 4F : AR
9,561,0007T) °

Amount included staff costs of approximately RMB8,770,000
(2018: RMB7,238,000), and material and other related costs of
approximately RMB12,288,000 (2018: RMB9,561,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

10

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors
of the Company (including emoluments for services as
employees/directors of the group entities prior to becoming
the directors of the Company) by entities comprising the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Salaries

and other

allowances

HeH

4=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFZ AREFR

10 EERESME
E=

RE E20194F & 2018F 12431 H Ik &
B RBASEBKERSBNEHE
NARREZZHE (BREEXASAREE
EREASEERBNEER " EFMEHER
B A€ ) R BRI

HZE2019F 12 531 AL FE

Retirement
Share-based benefits
payment scheme

Bonus expenses contributions
DRGAER BIER
HXAMAX ot I4R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFZ AREFZ AREFZ AREFZ

Executive directors YTES
Mr. Cai Bk 317 325 26 - 68 736
Mr. Dong Honghui BAE LA

(“Mr. Dong”) (Note i) ([EBRE])HZi) 211 325 20 115 68 739
Mr. Deng Zhaoshan BhkErE

(“Mr. Deng”) (Note i) (I8P (Hrati) 211 328 20 115 68 742
Non-executive directors ~ F¥#HTES
Mr. Ren Jingfeng EREEE

(Note i) (Hiazii) 211 - - - - 211
Mr. Yang Zhiiang (Note iii) #5538 554 (A1 i) 211 - - - - 211
Independent non-executive BV FHITEE

directors
Mr. Yang Zhifeng (Note iv) & ELE (A iv) 211 - - - - 211
Mr. Feng Tao (Note iv) BEEE ) 211 - - - - 211
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (Note iv) HEIR %4 (Hiiv) 21 - - - — 21

1,794 978 66 230 204 3,272
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= g

I 75 8 & MY &

10 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

10 EEREEME©)

Directors (continued) ===y
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BEFE20184F 12531 HILEE
Retirement
Salaries Share-based benefits
and other payment scheme
Fees  allowances Bonus expenses contributions Total
Lo PARR D AR RIKGER
e H 2R L HENRX FTEIfR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Cai BEE — 359 50 — 32 441
Mr. Dong (Note i) EREWE) — 359 50 103 32 544
Mr. Deng (Note i) WREH ) — 357 50 103 32 542
Non-executive HTES

directors
Mr. Ren Jingfeng L REHzEi)

(Note i) - — - — — —
Mr. Yang Zhigiang BEREE(E i)

(Note iii) - - - — — —
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Yang Zhifeng e S (it iv)

(Note iv) — — — — — —
Mr. Feng Tao (Note iv)  &E&&(Hitiv) — — — — — —
Mr. Jiang Guoliang BRREEH )

(Note iv) — = — — _ _

— 1,075 150 206 96 1,527
Note: Hiat -
(i) Appointed as executive directors of the Company on 27 April (i) R2018F 4 A27 BEZEARARARINITE

2018. Prior to being directors, they were employees of the

Group.

(i) Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 27

April 2018.

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 8
November 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director and
member of the audit committee of the Company on 3 January
2019.

As at 31 December 2018, there is no director fee paid since the
Group has been listed on 3 January 2019.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

o AREALEEES -

R2018F 4 A 27 HEZEAA R RIJEHIT
EEo

MN20184 11 A8 HEZ X AR R RIIEFNTT
EE-

R2019F 1 A3 HEZEAREARAIBLIEH
TEERBEREZEGKE -

R2018F12A31H ERAE B E R
2019F1ABR LM MU ELNEFH
ﬁo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

10

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Directors (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management affairs of
the Group.

The bonus payments are determined with reference to the
operating results and individual performance during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Details of share-based payment transaction are set out in
Note 39.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2018: three) directors, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) individuals for
the year ended 31 December 2019, are as follows:

10

EENkEEME @)

E=®)

BT EEMS DRRERAAEEER
=B RS MES -

AT TBELREREZ2019F £ 2018
F12A31HEFENEREEEERME
ARBEMERTE °

LARR 1D B ERER S X SR B M
39 o

(==

HZE2019F 12 A31BILFE  A&EER
EEEHFMA LD R BIE=4(20184F :
—R)EE BEZHMEBEHN EXUEESR
£l o HE2019F 12 A31 B ILFEEE
% (2018 4F : B) AT ZBEmT

2019 2018

roro

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFIT

Salaries and other benefits S B E th 48 F 1,297 1,289

Bonus TE4L 73 60
Retirement benefits scheme RIKE A T2 3K

contributions 45 38

Share-based payment expenses LARR 5 BERA T AR 61 190

1,476 1,577

The number of the five highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within
the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 # T

MENFATEELFEARREENAE
R EHEB AR

2019 2018

2019 % 2018 &

‘ Number of Number of
employees employees

} ES#E } EEHE
| 2 | 2

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals including directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Each of the directors of the
Company did not waive or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

RE E2019F & 2018412 831 H It 4F
B AEEYERARARAARSHFMA
T(BEES)INEAEFH - EH %S
5500 B A& [ Bk hn B 1% A A2 B ok BE B 4
8 R 220194 K20184F 12 A31H
IEFE  ARRSESHENENXRENR
Z(ERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

11

12

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

11

BRER

AREERARIEGERERREER N
AETIER THIBE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFr
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of AUFESRERKES
calculating basic and diluted B RF (KRR FHEE A
earnings per share (profit for the FEAESENFIE)
year attributable to the owners of
the Company) 66,984 49,799
Number of shares RO#E
Number of shares for the purpose FLARHE SRR E A & T §
of calculating basic earnings per BB E
share 1,331,622,830 1,013,854,480
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary HWEET L ARNTE
shares:
Share options i I e 31,830,822 29,274,881
Number of shares for the purpose of AT ESREERFEN
calculating diluted earnings per &=
share 1,363,453,652 1,043,129,361

The computation of diluted earnings per share during the year
ended 31 December 2018 does not assume the exercise of
put option by the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
as the exercise of the put option would result in an increase
of earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The computation of diluted earnings per share during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 has adjusted to reflect

the effect of the exercise of all dilutive share options.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since
its incorporation, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

12

BRITEREHES EEE E20184F
12 A31 BIEEERNGRAFILM - HE
HEZE2018F 12 A1 BIEFEMN TR
BE R (R AR M B A B A FEIE AR AR R
WARITE R EHE - STHEEZE2019F K&
2018F 12 AB1HIEFEMNEREER
ME - BELARUARBRITERG#E
BRENZE -

iz =

AN R) B RE AR L DA PR 18 2R S A Bk S R A%
B BH E20194F k20184 12 431 H
IFFERTEEZZEIREMBKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 % BERKRE

0il sludge Furniture
Leasehold  treatment Motor and Construction
improvements facility ~ Computers vehicles fixtures in progress Total
HEXE HERERE BN Ef GEHETEE  HRIE &3t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFE  AEETr  ARETn  ARETr  AREFr  AREFr ARETZ
(Note) (Note)
(Hi#) (Hi)
cosT A
At 1 January 2018 R2018%51A1H 1,152 — 614 1,088 661 6,812 10,327
Additions AE 124 460 958 368 142 13,587 15,639
Transfer from construction in REERIRNER
progress = 20,399 = = = (20,399) =
At 31 December 2018 and R2018E12 4318 R
1 January 2019 201951818 1,276 20,859 1,572 1,456 803 =5 25,966
Additions HE 974 = 539 357 150 59,076 61,096
Disposals e - - (10) (30) - - (40)
Transfer from construction in REERIRNSER
progress - 6,468 — — - (6,468) —
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 4318 2,250 21,327 2,101 1,783 953 52,608 87,022
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitifE
At 1 January 2018 R2018%51A18 38 = 219 154 298 = 709
Provided for the year ENfE 283 656 352 238 197 = 1,726
At 31 December 2018 and R2018%F12A31A R
1 January 2019 201951418 321 656 571 392 495 = 2,435
Provided for the year ENE 249 2,247 714 158 191 - 3,559
Disposals e - - (8) (29) - - (37)
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12 4318 570 2,903 1,217 521 686 — 5,957
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 4318 1,680 24,424 824 1,262 267 52,608 81,065
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H 955 20,203 1,001 1,064 308 = 23,531

Note: Amount represented the costs incurred for the construction of

a thermal desorption of oil sludge treatment facility, which is

to provide oil sludge thermal desorption treatment service to

customers. The operating income is charged according to the

tons of oil sludge being processed.

Hiet - BRBEREERERMMEEREE R
B R e 2L B BE 32 AR 7 ) T EE AE MY AR
AR o FLE WA TYAR B3 P BR 3T 1 ) e MR BR A ER

2R -

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%k

165



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, after taking into account their
estimated residual value, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following useful life:

13

ME - BERRE#E)

Lamx - BEEREEE (ErIRER
SMEE BRI A RBREERATIIER
FRIZEGENE -

Leasehold improvements 5 years HERE 5%

Oil sludge treatment facility 10 years YRR PR 2% e 104
Computers 3 years ESE 3F
Motor vehicles 3-5 years BE 3E5%F
Furniture and fixtures 3 years REEEEEE 3F

14

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 EBREE

Patents
=R
RMB’000
ARMFT
cosT A
At 1 January 2018 ®2018%1 A1H 150
Additions (Note i & ii) NE (Wi K ii) 17,003
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R20184 12831 B K& 20194F 1 81H 17,153
Additions NE 27
At 31 December 2019 H20194 12 A 31 H 17,180
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION EE f
At 1 January 2018 ®2018%F1A1H 57
Provided for the year FRNEE 413
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 MK20184F 12831 B K& 201941 81H 470
Provided for the year FAEE 945
At 31 December 2019 H20194 12 A 31 H 1,415
CARRYING VALUES IRTEE
At 31 December 2019 H20194 12 A 31 H 15,765
At 31 December 2018 ®20184F 12 A 31 H 16,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

14

15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Note:

(i)

(if)

On 20 July 2018, Guangzhou Weigang entered into an
agreement with Dr. Wang Zhicheng (“Dr. Wang”), a senior
management of the Company, for assigning to Guangzhou
Weigang all its technology knowhow relating to pyrolysis
treatment, a method of a solid waste anaerobic catalytic thermal
cracking at a consideration of RMB1,000,000 with estimated

useful lives of 10 years; and

On 20 July 2018, Guangzhou Weigang entered into an
agreement with a third party for assigning its technology
knowhow to Guangzhou Weigang at a consideration of
RMB16,000,000, including an organic carbon ecological slow
release fertiliser and preparation method, a waste battery
anaerobic catalytic thermal cracking system and method and a
domestic waste fluidised bed anaerobic cracking device with
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

The other intangible assets have finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the licence period.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

14

BREE®)

wfit -

(0]

(if)

R201847 208 « BMBEBEARNF S
REREELEREL([EBL DL —H %
& ARBEMNEBEEAMEEREamm®
BRI (—TEE AR EAE(CRARH RN
BT - R ER AR 1,000,000 7T K&
FTAERAFHAI0F &

201847 A20H - MM B E — LB
E=FFIN— D - AREMNESERE
BT (R EA R ERERER R EEE
HE s —EEEENEAELCRRAMN
TR R — A E N R R ER R
&) KEAARE 16,000,000 7T & Bt A
ERFHAI10EF -

Hih BV EEEABRAERFY - YK
HEHRIAE AR -

15 REELENRE

PLORE] 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFT

Cost of investment in associates PR 1 SR IR E R 594 —
Share of post-acquisition losses FEE W B 12 518 (13) =
581 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 15

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Name of associate

BEhELR

Jiangxi Ruicheng
Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Jiangxi Ruicheng”)

TERIRRIEERAE
AR(IIERE])

Guangzhou Weigang
Hongda Environmental
Company Ltd.*
(“Weigang Hongda”)

BMEBLERZERAR
(THEERE]D)

Principal activities

TEES

Provision of project
management service
for solid and hazardous
waste

REBRAEEMREER
ERRY

Provision of project
management service
for solid and hazardous
waste

HERREZRYRMERR
ERR

REELENRE®)
RBEHRAEBBECENFBHINL T
*:

Place and date of Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting

establishment and interest held by the interest held by the

operation Group at 31 December  Group at 31 December
AEEREMERERNE FRERERAEGE
B SR Bt B B 5 R12A318 R12A318
2019 2018 2019 2018 F
The PRC, 15% — 15% —
11 September 2019 (note (i)
(Hizt (i)
HFE - 201949A 118
The PRC, 21 May 2019 37% — 37% —
(note (ii)
(Frzt (i)

B - 2019458218

* The English names are for identification purpose only.

The above associates are accounted for using equity method

in the consolidated financial statements.

Lot e R ERESEELR A M B RE
NER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

15

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 15 JAEE
Note: Kt -
(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Jiangxi (i)

Ruicheng since it has appointed 1 out of 5 directors of that
company under the Articles of Association of Jiangxi Ruicheng.

(ii) On 21 May 2019, Guangzhou Weigang have made a capital (i)
injection which represents 60% shareholding of Guangzhou
Weigang. On 8 October 2019, the Group and the shareholder of
Weigang Hongda entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group and
the shareholder of Weigang Hongda agreed to dispose of 19%
and 13% equity interests of Weigang Hongda to an independent
third party at consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion of
the disposal, the equity interest held by Guangzhou Weigang
is decreased from 60% to 41%. In result, the Group’s effective
interests in Weigang Hongda has changed from 54% to 37%,
Weigang Hongda became an associate of the Group since then
(see Note 42).

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

The Group’s share of profit NEE G ST

EhENRE®D)

R AEEE BB AR A AKEIZER
RZARSHREENRE1SE - MASKERE
WIARREEEATES -

M2019F 5821 H  BMAEBEEH E
&G E N 45 60% R - 20194 10
A8H  AEBKRMABHLENRRE—EB
VE=FIMEBEWRS  Ft - AEERSE
BAVERNRERE B[R —RBBELE=F S
BARKITHERBLE19% K 13% K
RiEm o R EBETHKE - BMNEBATH
MR RER A 60% P E41% - Bt © &
SEREBENERMESEA4%HA
37% ' HEBFAEB LK AR B E B D3
(RMizE42) ©

WHEREANBELERFTER

The Group’s share of other comprehensive income 7<% @ e H b 2 F R &5

The Group’s share of total comprehensive income — AN&EEEE 2@ KRSEEE

Aggregate earning of the Group’s interests in REERE S D ERER
associates

AR & T

581
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16

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B RABIHIZERERAER A 7

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16 FHAREEE

Leased properties

HEYWE
RMB’000
ARKTFT
As at 1 January 2019 upon adoption of 2019 1 A 1 BN BIFR B 75 3 o5 2%

IFRS 16 A8 1657 1% 5,958
Additions NE 2,403
Depreciation e (2,051)
31 December 2019 20194 12 A31H 6,310
Expense relating to short-term leases and other 7 B %2 HAFH & N 1 B 5 40 ) fE AR C B B2 B

leases with lease terms end within 12 months BmELERNE 1655 H A& 12@ A A4

of the date of initial application of IFRS 16 RE)E ARS8 = 68
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, EBIKEELEHE(TEEESHHEER

excluding short-term leases and lease of low REEEEAE)NRAX

value assets 676
Total cash outflow for lease HERS R B3 3,038




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

17 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI 17 BAARBEFEIFAHEMZENK

Equity instrument at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 comprises:

HHRATA

E20194F N 2018 F 12 AT HWIE A R
BEFETTAEBEEKEABRAT A
B

2019 2018
2019 & 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFIT

Unlisted investment: REMZE :
— Equity securities — RAEFH 4,775 2,980

Unlisted equity investment represents investment in 3% equity
securities issued by a private entity established in the PRC,
which is engaged in oil sludge treatment facility operator. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the long
run. The investment is measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, details of fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 32(c).

Mr. Cai also holds 10% equity interest in the investee
company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

R ETT AR AR & 15 5 B8 72 B A A7 K L
ERE(EBREERE)FEITHI%BRA
BHHERE - ARREFDBRERENIR
AR BEEFEL A M E BRI IRA
TEMZERE RERRERRERZ
ERENBERTHARBENERREE
HAEERAFARSRERRAERE
KB NRREET— - REREHK -
ZREUNRAREETE  AABEEF
BEH BRI 32(c) °

R2019% R20185 12 A31H - kLA
REERFIF A 10% HR AR o
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION 18 EZERIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised TXEHABRE E20194F 20184 12 A
and movements thereon during the years ended 31 December SIALFERRANEZREHBEERH
2019 and 2018: BEER

Allowance for
impairment of
trade and note
receivables
and contract

assets and Changes in Unrealised
impairment fair value profit of
loss on of equity inter-
advance instrument at company Lease
to a supplier Tax loss FVTOCI transaction liabilities Total
BAEUHER
ERRBUR
AHEEN BRAAEE
AEBRER FHEYHA
EmitEmfELN Eft2ENE
L3RR MRAIE  DEEREZ
HEERREEE ek ZAAEERD ARRER HESE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 1000

NEKTT NEKTT NEKTT NEKTT NEKTT NEKTT

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 718 953 523 — — — 1,476
Credit to profit or loss TABR n 1,175 - 434 - 1,686
Charge to other comprehensive  REM2ERENR
income - - (370) - - (370)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12731 1,030 1,698 (370) 434 - 2,192
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 FEREBREER)Z 165
& - - - - 62 62
At 1 January 2019 Ro019%1 418 1,080 1,698 (370) 134 62 2854
Credit to profit or loss TABR 114 206 - 6,976 2 7,298
Charge to other comprehensive  REM2ERENR
income — — (449) — — (449)
At 31 December 2019 Ra019512318 1,144 1,904 (819) 7,410 84 9,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

18

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

BRI E E

Deferred tax assets

I SER IH (4)
REINGEEMBARKRMNE - ERBEET
BXERBEERAE - MM BERE DA
EET BRI

2018

2018 &

RMB’000 RMB’'000

NRHF T AT
! 9,703 ! 2,792

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profit earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB149,449,000 (2018: RMB135,504,000)
as at 31 December 2019 as the Group is able to control the
timing of reversal of temporary difference and it is probable
that temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB11,601,000 (2018: RMB6,915,000)
available for offset against future profits for the consecutive
five years and will expire on 2022 and 2023. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB7,616,000 (2018: RMB6,796,000) of such losses as at 31
December 2019. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax losses of nil due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

BAR A BB EMEHIE) - B2008F 1 A
1B - 3P B A R A FEm = R
Bk BESMTER o HHRE2019F 12
A31B&£84A A A R 149,449,000 7T
(20184 : AR¥ 135,504,000 7T ) Hy A
MBRRMEFE s GRERE - WELL
EMBHRERPELEERBENEE  RE
RN 52 (B B 4 1 o) I 2 KA ) 1 (B AR A
MAZEAERNERZEREEI TS
B[ o

R2019F 12 31 A » ANEE A EHAD
RIEEELO A AR 11,601,000 7C(2018
F: AR¥6,9150007T ) AJEE R F
88 R 2R FOB - # R 2022 F 20234
fEim e R2019F 12 A31H Bz F 4
A R #7,616,0007T(20184F : A R
6,796,000 7T ) B R FERBIETI B & £ ©
20194 & 2018F 12 A31H + AR K
AR A - MR ATAFE
BBEBBEREERIEAE -
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19 INVENTORIES 19

2018
2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Spare parts and other materials 1 R E A 5,250 1,983

20 TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES 20 ESERFERERERE
2019 2018
2019 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Trade receivables & 5 I WkE 123,008 130,252
Less: allowance for impairment R RER (3,798) (3,148)
119,210 127,104
Note receivables e E & 24,664 15,731
Total trade and note receivables B SR FRIE RN R A% 143,874 142 835

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from within

AEE-RRAEBSHEFETI0HAN(2018
F 90 HA)MEEH -

TXEABE S ERGIBCRERIEA £ pTl
NREZEERNSHREPRKNBEZAHZ

90 days (2018: within 90 days) to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of

allowance for impairment at the end of the reporting period

174

presented based on payment schedule or invoice date stated B MR DT -
in the contracts.

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTT ABR®FT
0 - 90 days 0ZE90H 75,109 96,892
91 - 180 days 912180 H 24,944 19,213
181 - 365 days 181 £ 365 H 16,413 6,759
Over 365 days 365 B £ 2,744 4,240
119,210 127,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

20

TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note receivables are bank acceptance notes and the average
aging is within 90 days (2018: within 90 days) based on
the issuance date, which management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary as there is no significant
change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the
amounts of note receivable were endorsed to settle trade
payables and not derecognised until the maturity date of the

notes.

The management of the Group considers the note receivables
are issued by the banks with high credit rating and the

probability of default is low.

Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade

20

BEZRUBRERERRE

BURRERBITELER  BERETH
B S 9 BR Bk 590 H (20184 : 90 H
A BEEREA AR EREEEERY
B RS AR R AT BRI - N
DIEHRERE - R2019F K 2018 F 12
A31H  BEEEMARKEENFIBELL
BESEMNFIE  BEEZERIHAT AR
LEFERR ©

AEBERERS  RERUEEAESE
=5 EF R MR T M BIEAIIRTT T IA
AT o

BHRUGREREREZES

receivables:
PLORE 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMFT
Balance at the beginning of the year  F & & 3,148 4,322
Impairment losses recognised EERREEIE 2,171 2,506
Impairment losses reversed B OUR EE1E (1,521) (3,680)
Balance at the end of the year FRER 3,798 3,148

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been assessed individually based on each customer’s credit
risk characteristics and the historical observed default rates
adjusted by forward-looking estimates. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore estimated
the expected loss rates for the trade receivables and the

contract assets on the same basis.

AREBRACEBR M B REELDEIRE
EAAHERREEEE  ZOARAE
EFEREREEERER - BZRYGK
HERBEEP & ANEERBR ML
UG RARNELBRENRETEL
HhE - ANBESRAERERETR
HEAXNBLMERNE ZREFKEEEF K
BHARM AR R - Bt - AREERF
—EEHEFHRUFBARANEEMTE
HiE IR K o
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Rk MR

20

21

TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The expected loss rates, which ranged from 0.1% to 21.0%
(2018: 0.1% to 19.5%) for those not credit-impaired trade
receivables and contract assets and was 100% for those
credit-impaired trade receivables and contract assets, are
estimated based on the exposure to default of each customer,
payment history of the customer, the existing relationship with
the customer and study on corporate default and recovery
data from international credit-rating agencies including
Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for
forward-looking information (for example, the macroeconomic
factors affecting the industry and the impact that may result
in customer ability to make payments) that is available without
undue cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL mode for trade receivables over 90 days past due based
on the good repayment records for those customers and
continuous business with the Group.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

20

21

BEZRUREAREBRRRE @)

EHEERCREREERENE S ER
HEREHNEENGFTBEENT01%
£21.0% (2018 : 0.1% £19.5%) * i
BEBERENESZBREFBRENEEN
HEHEEER/100%) TEREEPELNR
B EEELMNRCLHE HEFNBEEH
REREREEFTREE (REBmRIEEYT
B ) A AE 40 K B I B B9 B TR 1T 1
st WRERMTETKRERNKANSE Him
AEMATEEER (fln - FETERTE
BENBRENNZBIEERR)ETAE -
N6 B I B F A a% AT IE M B R SR ET A 3R
& AR A E AT R EL TR [ o AN
EERZEREFNRTERTHERELRE
ERSEEEEOEREEHEEEXTE
SEWRIBA 90 B LA _EHE K HEE

BE > ENRERAEMERRE

PLRE 2018

2019 2018 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT ARBFor

Advance to suppliers e) 4k JE 7 1 HH RO B R 25,664 18,965

Deferred issue costs RIEEITRR AR — 6,321

Deposits for tender bidding g v 11,319 1,000

Other deposits Hfviz e 1,830 871

Value-added tax receivables FEU I (E TR 10,563 504

Staff advances BT #K 1,034 715

Prepayment for acquisition of a U B — FEI BT B 8 Al O TR SR IE 5,500 —
subsidiary*

Others Hiptb 1,210 770

57,120 29,146

*

Represented the partial payment for the acquisition of 73%
equity interest of a subsidiary the transaction was completed on
16 January 2020. (see Note 45)

* FEWE—EHBAT3%BE  XFER
20204 1 A 16 B3Rk ° (RHizE45)
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B Rk M

22 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 22 AHEE B

2019 2018
2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Contract assets ABHEE 274,408 176,973
Contract liabilities AHAaE 44,179 72,885

As at 31 December 2019, contract assets included retention
receivables of approximately RMB25,737,000 (2018:
RMB9,209,000), set out below. The Group generally provides
their customers with one to two years warranty period. Upon
the expiration of retention period, if the relevant hazardous
wastage processing plant has met the requirements in the
contract, the customers provides a final inspection and
acceptance certificate and pay the retention within the term

specified in the contract.

As at 31 December 2019, the allowance for impairment of
contract assets was approximately RMB4,040,000 (2018:
RMB3,923,000).

The changes in contract assets and liabilities were due to i)
adjustments arising from changes in the measure of progress
of contracting work, or ii) reclassification to trade receivables

when the Group has unconditional right to the consideration.

R2019F 12 A31H ' BREFFAMNANEA
E(BRFEEWRRE S AR 25,737,000
JL(20184F : A R 9,209,0007T )) & 7]
AT o AEE-—RAEEFRHE—EMF
WRIER - RRBEIERmZ R - AR
BREVMREREMESHMINER B
HETRERRBITIRERKERESE B
REXHBRENER AL (FREBSR °

R20194F 12 A31 8 - AN EERMBEEE
# A AR 14,040,000 T(20184F : AR
#3,023,0007T) °
EHEERBENEFHTAR)IBEHT
RESHNEETEEHMELENARE K
NAEBHEEEFRGFURERENSESE
B S IEWFIE ©

2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%k

177



178
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B B SRR MY R

22 CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 22

All the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as

revenue in the following year.

The contract assets are subject to ECL assessment same as

the trade and note receivables as detailed in Note 20.

Contract assets

Arising from performance under EXBBESEMRIEREBRATR
hazardous waste incineration AR - S Y7 [E] BE BE W BR IR iR
solutions services, pyrolysis solid R RIRTE R BT R RIS MR
waste treatments solutions services I

and technical upgrading services

BHEE &BfE#w)
HHFEANEEER T —EERRAK
Ao

EHEEXRBEEBRNGEARR - &
BYaE 20 FTFF LY & 5 FE WK IR R B R 1%
_ﬁ ®

BREE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT AEBTT
274,408 176,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

22

CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) ERNEE EfE#@)
Contract liabilities ABHER

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFIT
Hazardous waste incineration solutions 7 2 &%) 6 Bz 32 il R 7 22 43,881 72,645
Technical upgrading services BT A A% BR 7% 298 240
44179 72,885

Contract liabilities represent the progress payment exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the input method and
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs its
obligations under the contracts.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as

revenue in the following year.

The following table shows amount of the revenue recognised
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities
in prior periods.

ENAERERENFBRAE SRE A LME
BHIWA » YR AEEBEITEREHET
M B ERERRKA

BHMERNEBERR T —FEERRK
A o
TRIVRAAF E R RA BB EHRE
BITHENEERIEREZE -

Hazardous waste
incineration solutions

CREVREEERRLR
2019 2018
20196 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT | ARETT
Revenue recognised that st AEHIA KB ELEHHN
was included in the BHERBA
contract liability balance
at the beginning of the
year 59,441 49,383

Technical
upgrading services

R R

Maintenance services

R

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT |ARETT |AREFRT |ARETT
240 509 - 39

The contract assets are subject to ECL assessment same as
the trade and note receivables as detailed in Note 20.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the lifetime ECL
allowance for contract assets amounting to approximately
RMB117,000 (2018: RMB2,073,000) was recognised in profit

or loss.

EHNEEXBHEEBERTGEMAR - &
M 3E 20 Tt ) B 5 e kI8 I fE IR
—F o

HZE2019F12A31BILEE HARK
117,00070(20184F : A R #2,073,000
MG HNEEEEGEHEMREEEER
HERBEPER -
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23

24

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank balances
held by the Group with maturity of three months or less and
carry interest at market rate of 0.01% to 1.35% (2018: 0.01%
to 1.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

Pledged bank deposits represents the bank guarantee with
several customers for performance obligation fulfilment. The
pledged bank deposits will be released when the performance
obligation is met, the customer cancelled the requirement for
the bank guarantee or the bank guarantee is due. Pledged
bank deposits of the Group carrying interest at market rate of
0.35% to 2.415% (2018: 0.35% to 2.415%) per annum as at 31
December 2019.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables B SR HIE

23

24

RITERRRS NS EFRTER

R2019F 128318 - RITEH KR
BEASERENHRT®ER=EA I A
F0.01%E1.35% (20184 : 0.01% =
1.35%) By 35 F 5 S IR & FIR1T 45
ﬁ%o

EEBBRITERRRRITER  EhES
FTREEFBITBAOET - BHEMIBITERE
FRITREAZEY  BERFEUBRITIEREK
SRERTT IR BARS AR B - IR 20194F 12 A
318 AEEMEEBRITEIIZT S
REFF0.35% & 2.415%(20184F : 0.35%
E2.415%)5t 8 °

EZENRE
2018
20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREF 5 ARHF T
! 119,606 ‘ 84,074

The table below sets forth, as at the end of reporting periods
indicated, the aging analysis of the trade payables, based on
the date of invoice:

TREFINARRENRIZEZ B HE D
E 5 RN RIBRER DO

2019 2018
2019 £ 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFr

0 - 90 days 0ZE90H 98,797 80,692
91 - 180 days 91 & 180 H 15,707 952
181 - 365 days 1812365 H 4,576 2,271
Over 365 days 365 A E 526 159
119,606 84,074

There is no specific credit period granted on purchase of
goods and services. All of the trade payables are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

R ) S R B S BRSO TR E
MWIEEH - HHMAEZENFRERR—
FRENRERBRARBIREREE -
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25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

25 HtENREAREFMAX

2019 2018

2019 % 2018 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARHTFr

Other tax payables H Ath B IR 5,126 3,127

Accrued staff costs FEET B TR 5,625 4,250

Accrued listing expenses JEEt ETfX 603 5,852

Accrued issue costs JEET BT — 1,950

Accrued audit fees EErEZEA 1,000 1,700
Payables for construction of oil sludge 32 /B Bz F2 3% e #) & 15 7RI

treatment facility 406 9,108

Payables for acquiring of intangible Wt B 4 12 8 B O B 3R

assets — 12,700

Provision for legal claims RERRREE 1,250 —

Others EAh 1,254 1,091

15,264 39,778
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a Bk M

26 LEASE LIABILITIES 26 HEEME
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRETARBHEBERNARERRR
of the Company’s lease liabilities at the end of the current BAEREHARIANBE S EBE RS
and previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to AN 165 B HAR R T A& HEIHH -
IFRS 16:

31 December 2019 1 January 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12A31H 201951A1H 2018F 12 A31H
Present Present Present
value of Total value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum the minimum LTSS the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
BEHE BEHE BEHE BEHE =EHE REHE
NFREE BE¢:E NRAEE eSS TRBE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR¥FT ARMTT AR¥FT ARBFT AREFT

Within 1 year 1ER 2,802 3,063 1,939 2,121 = =
After 1 year but 1 FREMER
within 2 years 2,684 2,811 2,026 2,199 — —
After 2 years but MERESFRN
within 5 years 1,275 1,296 2,417 2,535 — —
6,761 7,170 6,382 6,855 — —

Total future interest ARFIEHL B
expenses (409) (473) —

Present value of lease HE&ABHE
liabilities 6,761 6,382 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

27

28

BANK BORROWINGS 27 RITER
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFor
Secured bank borrowings carried LUZ BN AR 5T BB B HERRTT
interest at variable rate & 12,550 —
Unsecured bank borrowing carried LA F| &= 5+ B A A 4R AR 1T
interest at fixed rate B 14,048 10,000
Carrying amounts repayable within ER—FANERNREE
one year 26,598 10,000
The effective interest rates of bank borrowings are ranging R2019F 12 A31H ' RITERNERF
from 5.170% to 6.180% (2018: 6.175%) per annum as at 31 A & A F5170% £ 6.180% (2018 4F :
December 2019. 6.175%) °
As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings of R2019F 12 A31 H @ RITERHARE
approximately RMB12,550,000 (2018: Nil) were secured by the 12,550,000 (2018 4F : £ ) LA E H iR
pledged bank deposits and the personal guarantee provided TR MBS A (2018 4F « A M AR
by a Mr. Cai (2018: Mr. Cai and his spouse, Ms. Huang Ying). ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁi)kﬁﬁ'ﬂ“/\%ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ o
All of the borrowings are denominated in RMB which is the FrBEFEIUARE (BIEREEREENI
same as the functional currency of the corresponding group REE®)FHE ©
entities.
OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION 28 FRULHIEELMNER

On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang increased its registered
capital from RMB10,000,000 to RMB400,000,000.

On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang, Weigang Holdings
(Hong Kong), Jade Road, Jade Fly, WeiGang Technology and
Orient Landscape, an independent third party, entered into
investment agreements whereby Orient Landscape agreed,
among others, to subscribe for the registered capital of
RMB40,000,000 in Guangzhou Weigang, representing 10% of
the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang, at a consideration
of RMB94,444,444. On 11 April 2018, the consideration was
fully settled.

R2018F4 48 @ EMESEE M
EARH ARA10,000,000 T E A RE
400,000,000 7T, ©

M2018F4 A48 - EM#ES - #EZER
(BA)  AB AR #BRERBYE
=ARFEMFI IR EBZE - BURAE
MEE(EFEE)AARKE 94,444,444 7T
Y %08 RIS B M 4 78 A R 5 40,000,000 7T
BWEMER - BEREMNES10%H K
o M2018F4 118 ZYEE B

8 o
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28

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION

(continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the investment agreement, the
following special rights were granted to Orient Landscape, all
of which have automatically terminated immediately upon the
Listing of the Company on 3 January 2019 save for the Profit
Compensation Right as mentioned below:

Information Right

Guangzhou Weigang shall provide Orient Landscape with
audited annual reports and unaudited monthly financial
statements of Guangzhou Weigang and the Company within
90 days (in the case of annual report) or 21 days (in the case
of monthly financial statements) after the end of the relevant

reporting period.
Tag-along Right

If Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong) and/or Jade Road intends
sell their equity interests in Guangzhou Weigang to any third
party, Orient Landscape is entitled to participate in such sale

to such third party under the same terms and conditions.
Liquidation Right

Orient Landscape shall be entitled to receive not less than
an amount equal to 120% of the Subscription Price plus
any declared but unpaid dividends in preference to other
shareholders of Guangzhou Weigang in the event of any

liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Guangzhou Weigang.
Put Option

If the Listing does not take place on or before 3 April 2020,
Orient Landscape is entitled to require Weigang Holdings
(Hong Kong) and Jade Road to purchase all of the equity
interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient Landscape at
a price equal to the sum of (i) the Subscription Price plus an
interest of 8% per annum and (ii) any declared but unpaid
dividends.

28
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28 OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION 28 RLHIEELENEEE)
(continued)
Director Nomination Right EERERE
Orient Landscape is entitled, within 28 days of the investment R BEMERENIRE =r)28 B NIREE
agreement, to nominate a director of Guangzhou Weigang INMEBN— B ESETEMNEBSNEIES
as deputy chairman of the board of directors of Guangzhou & EHAE=FIRFBENTHEEMNE
Weigang for a term of three years or such shorter period IR 2 B & L8R BRR o 4] A E AR
ending on the date on which Orient Landscape ceases to % BRI AR N RER T B
be a shareholder of Guangzhou Weigang. After the initial HEXBEMNESES - AIIRER T EM
term, WeiGang Technology shall use reasonable endeavours REMBRSES —BERERNESE
to procure an Orient Landscape’s nominee to become a FEMEENESH -

director of Guangzhou Weigang provided at any time, Orient
Landscape shall only have one director nominated by it

holding directorship at Guangzhou Weigang.

Profit Compensation Right FlEmEE

WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly undertake with Orient HERRE RARRR T EMEE -
Landscape if the net profit of Guangzhou Weigang for the PN 4 78 E = 2018 4F X 2019F 12 A 31 H
years ending 31 December 2018 and 2019 in aggregate IEF E & F & H£([2018 F 20194
(“Profit for 2018 & 2019”) is less than RMB200 million (“Target FEDLRARK2008 & (B ZF
Profit”), Orient Landscape is entitled to either (i) require E1) - BIRGEMBHE () EREESRRE R
WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly to transfer such number of ARASHEEZEREBUT AR GFENZ
shares of the Company calculated under the following formula ZHEMARTRD ¢

at nil consideration:

Number of shares = 10% x (Target profit — Profit for 2018 & 2019)

RMBO0.85
g - 0% x (BIRAE — 20184 & 2019 FFIH)
AR®0.857T
or (i) require WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly to pay a sum (i) ERMEB R RAREZARBEUAT A
calculated under the following formula: Nt EMNEHE

Sum = 10% x (Target Profit — Profit for 2018 & 2019)
©8 = 10% x (B ZEFHE — 2018 F % 2019 FFIH)

Subject to compliance with any applicable Listing Rules and £ 38 57 AR 38 A T 33 A1 D) X2 7T B (R Bk A2
undertakings restricting share transfer which may be given FIT B A ] /B2 85 78 1 1 B0 PR Il A 10 88 i i 7
to the Stock Exchange and any underwriters, the above IERT - EatFEAE ETR s E M4
compensation shall be completed within 30 days after the B9 FEMKRERFERETIZEAEH
Listing or the date of issue of the audited annual report of (ABIEE A% )1% 30 HRZEA °

Guangzhou Weigang for 2019, whichever is later.
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28

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION

(continued)
Profit Compensation Right (continued)

Upon completion of the subscription on 11 April 2018, an
amount representing the proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang at the
date of the completion of the subscription is transferred
to non-controlling interests. The difference between the
capital contribution from the non-controlling interests, the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-attribution of its statutory
surplus reserve and retained profits is recognised in other
reserve. On the same date, an amount representing the
present value amounting to RMB94,444 444 of the amount
that the Group could be required to pay to Orient Landscape
pursuant to the put option over the 10% equity interest in
Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient Landscape, with a
corresponding debit in equity, is recognised as obligation
arising from a put option under non-current liabilities, and
the corresponding interest of 8% per annum during the year
amounting to approximately RMB5,457,000 is recognised in

obligation arising from a put option and profit or loss.

Upon the successful listing of the Company on 3 January
2019, the put option has been lapsed and all the previously
recognised interest expenses have been reversed through

equity without any payment to Orient Landscape.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the target profit of Guangzhou Weigang can be achieved and
the fair values of the profit compensation right at the date of
completion of the subscription and as at 31 December 2019

and 2018 are considered as insignificant.

28
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29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 KA

AARBRABEBNFHBIT

Details of the movement of share capital of the Company are

as follows:
Number  Nominal value
of shares per share Share capital Share capital
R #E SREE B& BR&
HK$ HK$ RMB'000
BT BT ABEFT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 38,000,000 0.01 380,000 335
— Increase in authorised share capital  — JAERAZM( ML)

(Note ii) 19,962,000,000 0.01 199,620,000 168,285
— Share consolidation (Note ii) — ROEHHEN) (16,000,000,000) 0.04 = =
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 #2018 12 8318 »

and 31 December 2019 2019F1 18K

201912 A31H 4,000,000,000 0.05 200,000,000 168,620
Issued and fully paid BRITRMZ
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A 1H 7,000 0.01 70 —
Issued during the year FRET
— Capitalisation of loan (Note i) — BREX(HE) 4,999,993,000 0.01 49,999,930 40,572
— Share consolidation (Note i) — BIAEH(HFi) (4,000,000,000) 0.04 = =
— Pre-IPO investors (Note iii) — BEADREENRESR

(Hiziii) 20,864,000 0.05 1,043,200 841
At 31 December 2018 and 2018512 A31 B R

1 January 2019 2019F1A1H 1,020,864,000 0.05 51,043,200 41,413
— Issuance of new shares upon IPO — BRARBERET

(Note iv) MRG (B i) 312,471,000 0.05 15,623,550 13,687
At 31 December 2019 #2019% 12 A31A 1,333,335,000 0.05 66,666,750 55,100

* Less than RMB 1,000

* TEAE# 1,000
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29 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(0

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

On 26 January 2018, Jade Fly has agreed to subscribe for
1,499,497,901 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company at the subscription price in the sum equivalent
to the amount of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,356,000) which are to be satisfied by capitalising the
loan amount of HK$17,691,182.

On 26 January 2018, WeiGang Technology has agreed to
subscribe for 3,500,495,099 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at the subscription price in the
sum equivalent to the amount of HK$41,307,518 (equivalent
to approximately RMB33,518,000) which are to be satisfied by
capitalising the loan amount of HK$41,307,518.

On 26 January 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company has been increased to HK$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each, and on
the same date, the Company consolidate every five shares of
a par value of HK$0.01 each in the authorised (whether issued
or unissued) share capital of the Company into one share
of a par value of HK$0.05 each. Immediately after the share
consolidation, (i) WeiGang Technology held 700,100,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.05 each; (ii) Jade Fly held 299,900,000
Shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each; and (iii) the number
of authorised shares had been changed from 20,000,000,000
shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each to 4,000,000,000 shares
of a par value of HK$0.05 each.

On 18 February 2018, the Company has allotted and issued
16,155,353 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to two pre-IPO
investors for a total consideration of HK$16,991,957 (equivalent
to approximately RMB13,706,000).

On 9 April 2018, the Company has allotted and issued 4,708,647
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to another pre-IPO investor
for a total consideration of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,016,000).

On 3 January 2019, 312,471,000 ordinary shares with a par
value of HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued at a price
of HK$0.88 per share by way of public offer. On the same date,
the shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

29 RA(

Hit -
(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

M2018F1H26H ARE R B U R
BEREA QA KA 1,499,497,901
REREHEOIBTHRG <« %A
H MN17,691,182/8 T B R4 A R ¥
14,356,0007C) ' #5:&E Bi§E K 17,691,182
PBITENMEMEITEN

R2018F 1268 #BREERE MU
B B R AN D A & 7N F1.3,500,495,099
B REBECOIB TG € EHE
B 141,307,518 T(HH & RO AR ¥
33,518,0007T) - # 3% B # E 5 41,307,518
BILENMEmETES -

M2018%F1H268 - & A 7 W & &
f& AN # fn Z=200,000,000% 7T H A
20,000,000,000 fi& & A% [ {8 0.01 7 7T &9 iR
% RB RARBARARDNEERAE(EHR
BEAKAET)FEAREREEO.O
BITHRME R —REREEC.0SHE T
MkH - BEERGE HHE - () EBR R
75 700,100,000 i & A& H f80.05 7% 7T #) ik
5 (i) 78 7R 5 A 299,900,000 % & % [ B
0.05 B TCHIBR(D + R (i) A ERASE B #)
20,000,000,000 A% % A% T 8 0.01 7 7T A9 i%
1% 5 8 /5 4,000,000,000 A% & B% 1 {50.05 7
TCHIRRD ©

201828138+ & A & K 2 %
816,991,957 (i & R & A R ¥
13,706,000 7T) MM & B R AR EE AR E
% Fid B & %17 16,155,353 B% &5 A% @ (5 0.05
BITHEEAR o

MR2018F 4890 AN A A U 2 % &
5,000,000 7T (F & R £ A R # 4,016,000
TIRAR—ZE X AREEMREERER
174,708,647 REREE0.05 B TH LA
B%

R20194 1 A3H A2 7F]312,471,000 f%
FREE0.05 BT EBRDAAFBEN
AREER0.88BITHERETT - AH - &
RERAD BB R A AR L7 o
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30

31

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualify employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
as determined by respective local government authority to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions under the

scheme.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect
of the retirement benefits scheme for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are disclosed in Notes 9 and 10.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of business. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, obligation arising from a put option, net of bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the issue of

new shares and raising of new debts.

30

31
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32 &@mTH
(a) Categorises of financial instruments (a) E£@mITAmER
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFr
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHKANFEN S BHEE 340,289 211,207
Equity instrument at FVTOCI AR BEFELT AR
PEHWEORATE 4,775 2,980
345,064 214,187
Financial liabilities SREE
Liabilities measured at amortised 1R AT 2
cost EON=RE 157,478 226,376
Financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December R 20194F & 20184 12 A 31 B iz
2019 and 2018 respectively are as follows: HATEZERMEEDRITAT ¢
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFT
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 142,206 23,437
Pledged bank deposits BB RITER 52,999 43,912
Trade and note receivables B 5 WSk IE & e R K 143,874 142,835
Other receivables E th fE W R IE 1,210 1,023
340,289 211,207
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and note receivables, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, equity instrument
at FVTOCI,

borrowings and obligation arising from a put option.

trade payables, other payables, bank

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings and obligation
arising from a put option. The Group currently does
not have any fair value interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market rate, the benchmark
lending rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China on
variable-rate bank balances and pledged bank deposits
in Note 283.

32
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(b)
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32 £RIA#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHEREEBEZRBEGE)
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) F = E g (42)
The following table details the Group’s interest-bearing TRAMAKNEB N HREEHRIZFH
financial assets and liabilities at variable rates as at the MEGFENEHREEREBENERER
reporting date: & :
PLORE] 2018
2019 F 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARKFr
Variable rate financial assets/ SPEHIREMEE (BE)
(liabilties)
Pledge bank deposits SRR ITER 52,999 43,912
Bank balances IRITREER 142,188 23,145
Bank borrowings RITIE K (12,550) —
Net exposure BB FEE 182,637 67,057
Sensitivity analysis B E T

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and variable
rate bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period
and assumed that the amount of liabilities outstanding
at the end of each reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. 100 basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB1,370,000 (2018: RMB503,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its bank balances and pledged bank deposits and

partially offset by the impact from bank borrowings.

TXHGURE ST T ERNIRITA

kBRE - BERBRITEREATEF
KRITIEFR SRS B R F R R
BRET  UHRINSBEHRNR
EREABESERNEEFEHRE
EomMEEEEABRNIERME
[ B B - ER A9 100 2 B A IR - (R
REBEBEHNENGE A BB E
AT o

fisd | =& 3 o0 7 2 100 % B+
FTEEMESERTE  BAE
B & =2019F12A318 1t £ E
MR EFEEEMORDHAR
#1,370,00070(2018F : A R #&
503,00070) * EXr ERBEANRAEH
WRTAEMRREERRITHFREER
MERE - WD HWRITERA R
LAY o
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32 SRIA#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHEREEBEZRBEGE)
(continued)

Currency risk

The Group’s bank balances and cash, other receivables
and other payables, are denominated in US$ and HKS,
which exposed the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting date is as below:

BB

AEBRBITERRIAS  HifE
W SR IE LA B E At FE S FRIE Y9 AZE T
LB E EFEASBEEERINE
[ fg o

R 5k - AR E LM SHE M
W AEREE A RN EEERY
mF -

2019 2018
2019 & 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AEREFT
Assets BE
uss$ E7T 56,103 =
HK$ BT 2,021 2,453
Liabilities =L
Us$ o — =
HK$ T 1,617 8,234
+ Less than RMB1,000 5 TRARY1,0007T

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates and
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusted their transaction at year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes bank balances and cash,
other receivables and other payables. A 5% increase
or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in foreign currency rates.

T X H) BURE 5 A7 T9 B R N fE &
REfRERE - BEBENINEFHER
HAXNERIAR - I IA5% HIMNE
EXREBEHNFEREIHHE - BUX
ELoHBRRITEHREES  Hi
JRE W TR IR A e EL At AN FRIR o [
EEIE A B AR EE RO TE X L
B R 5% IR KREEEY
S O R 0 & 3 T BE A B (F H VAT
fli o
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If 5% weakening/strengthening of US$ and HK$
against RMB, the Group’s post tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB2,119,000 (2018: increase/
decrease by approximately RMB216,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to foreign
currencies rates of US$ and HK$ on its bank balances
and cash, other receivables and other payables as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and note receivables, contract assets, bank balances

and pledged bank deposits.

The carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets and contract assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position best

represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the directors of the Company review the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting periods to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are limited because the counterparties are

reputable financial institutions in the PRC.

32 ERMIAM

(b)
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s concentration by geographical locations is
mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all of the trade
and note receivables as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 36%
(2018: 54%) of the total trade and note receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer as at 31
December 2019.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 90%
(2018: 67%) of the total trade and note receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
December 2019.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECL prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for trade and note
receivables and contract assets, disclosed in Notes 20

and 22, respectively.

The management of the Group considers pledged bank
deposits and bank balances that are deposited with
state-owned banks or financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating
issuers during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

32

SRITEE)

(b)

BERBREERBERBRE)

= BB R R AT (E)

AEERWEE S 2 EFEERR
FEMRFEERN R2019F &
2018 12 A31 B Hh B 5 1A
REWEEHZE -

M2019F12A31H & &
B RERWHIERERERRBETE
36% (2018 4F : 54% ) JiE /A A &= B &
ABEXAMEEEESETRERE

M2019F12A31H K &
BHRWFIERERZRAERE
90% (20184F : 67%)[EMRASEE A
ABEEZAMEEGREES+TRERE

7N 52 B FE A R 1k 77 U PR 4R A B B B
M EAERIDE SR FTAR E M TEHA{E
BEEE ZEARTERE SRR
HERERZEAREGHNEENE
BAFEREREREE 1595
R FE20 K 2215 ©

AEEERERE  THRAEAR
TRERTARENSEREENE
HKFRTERRBTERBEEE
EREHBEE - EREZ2019F &
2018F 12 A31HIEFEmEEF
WEATAN ARREZRBENN
B BEMET] 2B o
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

A BB 1S A REAR

Group A

Group C

Group E

Description

N

E

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

HFHHRDRRBEMN - B EEMRETIR

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle in full

BB AR RN BB ER

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or externally

EERR B E BRSNS IRE L E F R
BB AR IEIE HO

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

BTREEASERRENER

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect

BTREBARRBREYBRENER  BAKE
3 48 B U 130 £ 7T

32

TR T A

(b) MBEBREEBERBERGE)

= BB R R EF 1 (E)
AR BB R RS B R AT AR A R
BREATER

Trade receivables/
contract assets
g5 ERE,
AREE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEREREE
iR - WEEE
B

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEREREE
B8 - WEEE
BIE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEREHEE
B1R - SWEEER
=1

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEREREE

B8 - WEEER
(=}

Amount is written
off

HIRE M

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B INRZRIFHIZEREFAER A 3

Other financial
assets/other items
HthemEE
Hitbm B

12-month ECL

12 @ AMFEHEE
gl

12-month ECL

12@AMTEREE
&8

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

REFERESER
B8 - WEEER
(=1

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

REFEDRBESEER

B - WEEER
=]

Amount is written
off

FOBE 8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the

Group’s trade and note receivables and contract assets,

bank balances, pledged bank deposits and other

receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

Trade receivables
B 5 W RIA

Note receivables

e

Contract assets

BREE

Bank balances
RITHEER

Pledged bank
deposits
BIEIRRITIE R

Other receivables
H i fE R IE

Notes

Hiaz

20

20

22

23

External
credit
rating
IhER
FETR

N/A
NiE

Low risk

KRR

N/A
ANiE A

Low risk
1K & B2

Low risk
K& B2

N/A
@A

Internal
credit
rating
AR

(Note 2)
(Hiat2)

N/A
N jiE A

(Note 2)
(Kist2)

N/A

N/A
iE

(Note 1)
(Hrat 1)

32 TRMTIAM%

(b) MBEBREEBERBERGE)

= BB R R AT (E)

TERFINAKEE 5 8 WFIAKE
WEBNUERAKNEE RITHEH
B IR R 17 17 50 R L At R MR IR
HWEERR  AXBHEEEE

R

BB HA A B2 BT R

12-month or
lifetime ECL
12 AR EEFE
HMEMEEEE

Lifetime ECL
BEFEMEREE
&’

12-month ECL
1228 ANTESREE
&

Lifetime ECL
BEGEPESHEE
=]

12-month ECL
128 ANTESREE
518

12-month ECL
122 AMFEHREER
&8

12-month ECL
128 ANTEMEE
&8

Gross carrying amount

HEREE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
123,008 130,252
24,664 15,731
278,448 180,896
142,184 23,145
52,999 43,912
1,210 1,023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32 SWMIA®@
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERKBREEEZRBEE)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) 15 B8 B R B 515 (F)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

BB A B2 M T A(H)

Note: Kz -

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 1. RABEERREENBENMES
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit AEBEFERBHENTHEERR
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. REBYRERE—EARELEF -
As at 31 December 2019, the other receivables with MN20196F 128318 ¥ & @ &
no fixed payment terms amounting to approximately NHRENEMERKRENARAR
RMB1,210,000 (2018: RMB1,023,000). #1,210,0007C(20184E : A R %

1,023,000 7T) °
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has 2. RESEBFBERENEEMS ' 1R

applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the ECL on these items based on internal credit rating on
individual assessment of each customer.

B(EBRM RS EADE W - A%
Bl B L AR BB AT ENRD
FEBBNERRE  AREREE
P& BB AR R RHE BT AR EE

ZERBMBEREREE -

ERAKSEEERREREN — &
D ARERETFPREZERM
AEEEFR - TRIEHBEBRIE
EEFEDRBEEER(BEER
B8) AR BHE R A B 5 B IKE0R
MEERBRER -

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers in
relation to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision

matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

2019

2019 &
Average Gross Net
Internal credit rate ABIEETR loss rate amount ECL Amount
T EEE BE EHEEEB b=k
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AR%Tn
Group A HEA 0.11% 259,077 287 258,790
Group B #HEB 2.10% 115,417 2,423 112,994
Group C #HEC 6.23% 21,042 1,310 19,732
Group D #H45D 21.03% 2,662 560 2,102
Group E HEE 100.00% 3,258 3,258 —
401,456 7,838 393,618
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32 T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHEREEBEZRBEGE)
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EE R BRI EFFE(E)
Financial assets at amortised costs (continued) A G E R 2 T A ()
2018
2018 4
Average Gross Net
Internal credit rate AEBEE TR loss rate amount ECL Amount
T E 1 R Wz TEHEEEE R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT AREFT AREETT
Group A HEA 0.11% 246,262 255 246,007
Group B HAB 2.21% 40,794 902 39,892
Group C #HEC 6.51% 10,865 708 10,157
Group D BAD 19.54% 9,969 1,048 8,021
Group E BAE 100.00% 3,258 3,258 .
311,148 7,071 304,077

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is

updated.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period which
have been past due over 90 days are not considered as
in default based on good repayment records for those

customers and continuous business with the Group.

BRI TIREEHSAREYRE
BHRANBECEREORME
Wt T BER AN ALAERF
MAEEERHFL AR - EEEE
HRNEESE  UEREEHNA
B EBESAREREER -

ARRIEZRR REEHRER
HiR890 A 2 & 5 YW AR B Z
ERPZRIFERTHERFERR
KEETCEBBTIRRRELD °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32 £RMIAM
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERKBREEEZRBEE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk TSR B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects

of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Group can be required to pay. The tables include

EEERB R - ANEEEE
REREEERREARNEEN
KRERHESHRESRASEEDY
K- WRERSRERBNTZE -

TRFLARBZEERGR  IF
EeRmBENRTANIHFS-
% FRABRIB AR B A B R A
EREEARURRSRENKEA
HWEHREREBRER - TRET
MERASHSRE -

both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than 6 months to More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2years  cash flows amount
i REXY 6f8A AERRS
THRE  3EANRA E1f 25N L ik 13 K
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARBFT  AREFr  AREFLT  AREFL  ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2019 #2019512f31R
Trade payables BREMTA - 119,606 - - - - 119,606 119,606
Other payables At MR - 4,513 - - - - 4,513 4513
Bank borrowings RIER 5.49% 2,558 14,257 10,522 - - 21,331 26,598
Lease liabilities HERfR 4.75% 753 766 1,545 2,811 1,296 711 6,761
127,430 15,023 12,067 2,811 1,296 158,627 157,478
At 31 December 2018 R2018%128318
Trade payables BHEMFE - 84,074 = — - = 84,074 84,074
Other payables At EMZE = 32,401 = = = = 32,401 32,401
Obligation arising from #AHRELHERE
a put option 8% — — — — 110,160 110,160 99,901
Bank borrowings  HfI(E 6.175% 10,113 - - - - 10,113 10,000
126,588 = = = 110,160 236,748 226,376

200 WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B RABIHIZERERAER A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B35 R M EE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of its financial asset, which is

measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques

and inputs to the model.

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that is

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Group owns 3% equity interest in a PRC private
company that is classified as an equity investment
at FVTOCI and is measured at fair value at the end
of reporting period. The fair value of the investment
as at 31 December 2019 amounts to approximately
RMB4,775,000 (2018: RMB2,980,000), measured using
a valuation technique with significant unobservable
inputs and hence was classified as Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy under IFRS 13.

32

SRITEE)

(c)

TEHIANAAEBERE

A ERHABAEE M EEH
EREEZAAEBENESR  TIA
MBEE2HMBE R AR EEFE -

et AR EER  NEEERAA
MG BREE - HE - RBAK
BAAR AEEEZRBEFE=18
BERAEMETHRE - EXERS
BERMINEHEMZEEAE " BlF]A
A E R MR AR

BEEMHEEUAABETEZE
REEEHEEN R EE

AEBMRFBHELERAIHESEMH3I%
BRARSEDEREAREBEE
Wit AEMEEKEHRATE -
WRREARAARBETEZ - B
2019%F 12A31H » LEM AR E
B4 B AR 47750007 (2018
F: AR 2980,0007T) @ A
BERMETE  ERPREAELS
e ABIE - F UL AR R B B 7% R
HREANE AR EAR R BESZRH
=M o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that

is measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair

value of the Group’s financial asset is determined.

Financial assets

SREE

Private equity investment
classified as equity
instrument at FVTOCI
-3% equity investment in
a PRC private company
engaged in hazardous
waste incineration
project

RERERENEREAAE
B BUA AR ER
RRRATE -3% HikiE
RENEEERENGS
BEFONFELEAR

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during

Fair value as at
A5 B M

ArfEE

RMBA4,775,000 (2018:
RMB2,980,000)

AR# 47750007
(2018% : AR®
2,980,0007)

Fair value
hierarchy
RAER

ER

Level 3

F=R

the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

32 E@IAM®E)
(c) EMIBENAIABETEE)

BEREMEELURA R EETEZAL
REEHBEE RS EE(F)

TREHBHENNEEASE R

BEZAREENER -

Valuation technique(s)
and key inputs
EERM K
BREABE

Market approach — The fair value
is primarily affected by market
multiples. Market multiples
is determined based on the
enterprise value to earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation of the comparable
companies.

ik — AR BEFEXMEREY
g mERBRIRECEEERSR
MALBARRAFEH  FERE
HAMNE HER ©

L5 E -
AR

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIREBAHE
BAREENEE

If the market multiples increased/
decreased by 10% with all other
variable held constant, other
comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2019
would have been approximately
RMB399,000 (2018: RMB257,000)
higher and lower, respectively.

EMARMESRFETENERT  mE
EEEm/H D 10% @ HE2019%
12 B31 R FREMED 2 EMER
AR R THEAARS 399,000
(20185 : AR%257,0007T) °

REZE2019F % 2018F 12 A 31 H

1
#i5 o

E_BRE=H

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B IR Bl IZ R EH A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 5 ¥R R MY EE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are

disclosed above.

32

EMITE#E)

(c)

ERMIANAAEETEE)

RAEBETBAGEERE

ARRNEEREARRES BN
ERMER AR BEFENBABUER

EfA-—BEENAAEBEE A
SEERTAMS A BEBUE - 4
F-—RBABEBETITR AEEE
ERE=-NAEBRMGEMETH
B EEERABERIIEGEME
ZEE BRI aEGERMTERRA
BWARE EEERARAESS
BEAMER UWBEEQAE
BERBHREA -

EHRBAREESEEAABEMNMG
B K ¥ A BUR R B R0 | SO

5= o
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

32 ERMIAM

(c)

TRHIANAIABEREAE)

AR EET BN EBRE(E)

FE=RAA EBEFEHK

Equity investment

at FVTOCI

RAAREETE

Wrt AE M EmE

W3 1 B A IR E

RMB’000

AREFIT

1 January 2018 20181 H1H 3,684
Total losses EiE 4R %R

— in other comprehensive expense (Note) — REMEEAZ (HZE) (604)

31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 201812 A31HK 20191 A1H 2,980
Total gains et otl

— in other comprehensive income (Note) — REMmEEmKRE(IZE) 1,795

31 December 2019 2019412831 H 4,775

Note: Included in other comprehensive expense are the
amounts of approximately RMB1,795,000 gain relating
to unlisted equity securities classified as an equity
instrument at FVTOCI held at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB604,000 losses).

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

The management estimates the fair values of its financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using discounted cash flows analysis. Management
of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their respective fair value.

M AR EERE 2 REHARE
1,795,000 7T * &M 20194 12 A 31
HREAEZIF ETRAEF WD ERIR
AR EBEFEWFT ARMEEKED
RAT A(20184F : AR¥ 604,000
TUER) °

REBREBEEZMEEFTUALE

Bl BN EHEEREHBEBH AL

AEE

EEERAMBRARESRENNMAF
HIZBERAFENSREERS
BMEBAABE AEEEEER
R EZREEREREBEENEAM
TEER R A S5 AR A BR B Rk (B 2R
HEAMAABEMAS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

33 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METBHEEEE YK

TRAJBMEETHELENAEEEEE
P BREASTIFERSEE - RELDE
ENEBERERASRECSKARKRES
MEREEARERARERERTHE
BERRERSMELZRSRENEE -

The table below details changes in the Group’ liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount due Amounts Obligation
Bank  toarelated Accrued dueto arising from Lease
borrowings party  issue costs  shareholders  a put option liabilities Total
Fft FEft e
BTER BERE  ESRARA RRFE EENEE i At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  AREFr  AREF1 AREFr ARETT ARETx
(Note 27) (Note 25) (Note 28) (Note 26)
(Hit2r) (Wit 2s) (it 28) (Wit 26)
At 1 January 2018 R2018E17A 1A 11,000 2,524 — 93,994 — — 107,518
Financing cash flows BERLTE (574) (2,433) (2,335) (43,152) - - (48,494)
Interest expenses FIERR 574 - - - 5,457 = 6,031
Non-cash transactions e
— Loans assignment, —E¥ER FAR
novation and BMe(HiE38)
capitalisation (Note 38) — — — (47,874) — — (47,874)
— Initial recognition of — iR e
obligation arising from a EENER
put option (Note 28) (Hi28) = = = = 94,444 — 94,444
— Set off with discounted — BHEARENEE
note receivable (1,000) — — — — — (1,000)
— Deferred issue costs — BREAIHA - - 4,285 = - - 4,285
Net foreign exchange gains ~ SNEREFE — (91) - (2,968) — - (3,059)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 128318 10,000 - 1,950 - 99,901 — 111,851
Impact on adoption of IFRS16 AW B HERE &)
(Note 2) Z165NTEWi2) - - - - - 6,382 6,382
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1818 10,000 — 1,950 — 99,901 6,382 118,233
Financing cash flows BERERE 15,774 - (9,277) - - (2,294) 4,203
Interest expenses HER% 824 = = = = 270 1,004
Non-cash transactions R
— Recogpnition of lease —BRHERR
liabilities — — — — - 2,403 2,403
— Deferred issue costs — BREARA - - 7,821 — - = 7327
— Derecognition of — R
obligation arising from a EENER
put option (Note 28) H#28) - - - - (99,901) = (99,901)
At 31 December 2019 Ro019% 12318 26,598 - - - - 6761 33,359
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34

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

The Group has commitments for future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as

34

Keds
REEEREEA

RERERR - AEBENAHHLEHE
EEHTHARRREREFAEDBER

follows: R
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARETFr
Within one year —FA 79 2,576
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFERF(BEEEMST) 31 4,859
110 7,435

Operating leases payments represent rentals payables by the
Group for certain of its office premises. As at 31 December

2018, leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years.

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain of its office
premises held under leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17. On transition, the Group
has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases (see
Note 2). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments
are recognised as lease liabilities, except for short-term
leases or leases of low-value, in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 3, and the details regarding the Group’s future

lease payments are disclosed in Note 26.

CEHENFIEAEEREE THASE
FEMEIFEE - R20185E 128310 ' & &
NEERRRE—ZMF o

REBARBBENEAMBEB(ER A
ADE17 R EAKCEEEETMENE
T AR EEA c RIBER - ANEE
BB R HE P BB B 75 S 5 2 Bl DVEE 16 55%
FREETEYE - w2019 1A1H
HHNEREL AR UEREBZSHE
WEEAERWE2) - 5201941 A 1
A RRAEMNFIBREMFIMBNE
AHBERGEMBERAIEZERAEESR
& AEAEEKARREERNHHFBER
MFE26 45 -
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35

36

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35 BAREE

2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR Fr
i) Commitments in respect of the i) BUEETE
acquisition of property, plant and = K & e
equipment B HEHE
— contracted for but not provided — BETHERTE
in the consolidated financial T E B EER R
statements e B E 12,950 4,557
ii) Commitments in respect of the i) BEUEE — IR B A A R AR
acquisition of a subsidiary
— contracted for but not provided — BEHEREREVHRE
in the consolidated financial HRE I R
statements 1,500 —
iii) Commitments in respect of the i) BLEs (b R R YRR
interests in associates
— contracted for but not provided — BRIRERESZ A B MRE
in the consolidated financial HR YR B A
statements 11,900 —
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36 EEER

The Group did not pledge any assets other than the pledged

bank deposits disclosed in Note 23 as at 31 December 2019

and 2018.

B B 5E 23 3 B2 B9 2 20194 K 20185 12

A31 BB EMIRITFRIN

EREMEE -
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(i) Guarantees in support of the bank borrowing

Details of guarantees in support of the bank borrowing
of the Group provided by a director (2018: a director
and a related party) are set out in Note 27.

(i) Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details of their
emoluments are disclosed in Note 10. The emoluments
of the directors of the Company are determined
with regard to individual’'s performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark

in the industry and prevailing market condition.
(iii) Purchase of patents

Details of patents purchased from a related party, Dr.
Wang during the year ended 31 December 2018 and set

out in Note 14.

38 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 26 January 2018, a deed of loan assignment and novation
and loan capitalisation has been entered amongst Mr. Cai,
WeiGang Technology, Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong),
Mr. Ren Yunan (“Mr. Ren”), Jade Fly, Jade Road and the
Company. The details are as follows:

(@)  Mr. Cai has assigned a loan amounting to approximately
HK$45,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB36,734,000) due from Weigang Holdings (Hong
Kong) to his wholly owned entity, namely, WeiGang
Technology.

(b) The Company has agreed to undertake the loan
amounting to approximately HK$45,270,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB36,734,000) due to WeiGang
Technology from Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong).

38

BB LIRS R

(i) SRITEFRER
—HREE(2018F : —HEER—F
BT )AL BRITERIRE 2B
REFBHAHFE27 -

(i) FEEEAEHH
AEBFEEBABBEARAZ
BHTES  FENHSFBER
isE10 - AR AIESME 2 RE
AR - KEBERIE KR EF 4
TEFMNEERBITTMRETE °

(iii) BEEA
BBEE2018F 12 A1 B ILFE
M TELTEEREINFEH
RHIEE14 -

BEARFEBEERS

R20184F 1 A26H @ £ % £ %5 #
B @adER(ES)  EEBEEE(EE
A1) ARR - RBEEARRRFILEREE
BT RE AN o FHBEWT

(a)

BELEBRMEEREGEBESR
Bl WA SRR (BB ) B R AY
45,270,000 (B E RN A R
36,734,0007T) °

RNRABIERBREREBZERES)
JE A 478 B B9 B 5K 49 45,270,000
BT (FHE R4 A R # 36,734,000
JL) °
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e

By 75 ¥ AR B &

38 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(9)

WeiGang Technology has assigned part of the loan
due from the Company amounting to HK$3,962,482 to
Jade Fly. After such assignment, the loan owed by the
Company to WeiGang Technology was HK$41,307,518
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,518,000).

WeiGang Technology has agreed to subscribe for
3,500,495,099 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company at the subscription price in
the sum equivalent to the amount of HK$41,307,518
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,518,000)
which was satisfied by capitalising the loan amount
of HK$41,307,518 (equivalent to approximately
RMB33,518,000).

Mr. Ren has assigned a loan amounting to
HK$13,728,700 (equivalent to approximately
RMB11,140,000) due from Jade Road to his wholly

owned entity, namely, Jade Fly.

The Company has agreed to undertake the loan
amounting to HK$13,728,700 (equivalent to
approximately RMB11,140,000) due to Jade Fly from
Jade Road. Following the assignment of the loan to
Jade Fly in (c) above, the total amount owed by the
Company to Jade Fly is HK$17,691,182 (equivalent to
approximately RMB14,356,000).

Jade Fly has agreed to subscribe for 1,499,497,901
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company at the subscription price in the sum
equivalent to the amount of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent
to approximately RMB14,356,000) which was satisfied
by capitalising the loan amount of HK$17,691,182
(equivalent to approximately RMB14,356,000).

38 ERFREXRHZ#H)

(c)

HHER B K EBRARRER
3,962,482 B T HEE T ARR o EiE T
K& ARBFIR#EARRHER
741,307,518 BT (HHE RN AR
33,518,000 7T) °

HEBRBERERABERER
41,307,518 (B E RO AR
33,518,0007T ) ) R EAR A AR AN
3,500,495,099 f% & A% M 50.017%
THRD - ZREEEBBAEANE
B541,307, 518 B L (HBERHAR
33,518,000 7T ) B 45 °

FEEERNHEZEHE ERARE
EREUNISE 13,728,700 78 7T (48
ERHARE 11,140,000 7T) °

RRAREREFRERNEELARD
313,728,700 B (MEERHAR
# 11,140,000 7T ) ° # £ 3 (c) B PR
MEARREEERE  NRAAR
ANRA B FRIE 517,691,182 7% 7T (18
ERH AR 14,356,0007T) ©

AREREZIABERE A
17,691,182 B L(MEE RN AR
14,356,0007C ) ) REEAR A & R A
1,499,497,901 f% & 8 ® 1H0.01 %
THRD - ZREEEBBREEANL
B517,691,182 B L (MEERHOAR
# 14,356,000 7T ) ER1S ©
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B AR M

39

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

On 30 April 2017, the shareholders of Guangzhou Weigang
have passed the shareholders resolution to implement an
employee incentive scheme to grant share options to the
employees of Guangzhou Weigang. On the same date, share
options are granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou Weigang.
The number of shares awarded shall equal to 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing.
If the Listing does not complete by 31 December 2018,
Guangzhou Weigang or the Company is entitled to amend,
terminate or cancel the employee incentive scheme. The total
exercise price of the share options was fixed at approximately
RMB8,750,000.

On 10 December 2018, the principal terms of the pre initial
public offering share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) were adopted by the Company, and the
share options granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou
Weigang on 30 April 2017 had been approved by the board
of directors of the Company as the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. Upon the adoption of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, a total of 46,666,725 share options were offered for

acceptance by the Company to the 35 employees.

Details of share options granted during the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Number of
Date of grant options Adoption date
RHBH BREHE KRB
30.4.2017 46,666,725 10.12.2018

201744 H30H 20184 12 H10H

The share options granted on 30 April 2017 shall be
exercisable unless and until the Listing and be exercisable in

the following three batches:

(i) the first batch being exercisable after the second

anniversary of the date of the Listing;

(i)  the second batch being exercisable after the third

anniversary of the date of the Listing; and

(iii)  the last batch is being exercisable after the fourth

anniversary of the date of the Listing.

Vesting date

BEAY

30.4.2017

201744 H30H

URGOBERNZARS

R2017F 48308 @ EMESHBRRE
BT ETEEMBEREMNESEER
EEREORFRAZER - BB - MEMNE
735 %1E B I IEARIE - REIRMMEE
JERART ETIEIRGNBEHR)3.5% ° fii Lk
MM 20184 12 A 31 HAISEA @ AIE
MAEB AR R R RER - RIEHEVERE
BREE 8 - BRI RITEBEEN A
AER# 8 750,0007T °

M20184F 12 108 * AR RIERMNE X
AHABEAERESTE([ B A AREEA
BB E DO EZER  MARRES
e E#ER 201744 B30 B [ B 475
BEREERLNBREERERAREE
ATREARIERT B - RN E R ARZEERTRE
gt 8% - AARIERZISZEERSE
& 3£ 46,666,725 1D BB ARBELAHEEE 4 o

HE2019F R2018F 12 A31H It FE
EROREREFEET ¢

Exercise
Exercisable period price
TEAE THEE
3.1.2021 to 29.4.2027 HK$0.23
202151 H3RAZE 0.23% 7T

2027 F 4 A 29 H

R2017F 4 A30 B R E M BERERIER

BEE LWATHAIETE YA AE0T=

MITfE

(i) F—MMRETHABHFEF_RFEAIT
i

(i) FZHRLETBEBHE=ZRFEAIT
&

(i) HE—HRLETWBEBENAFREA
j’— o

SN

=\
o
bais
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B Rk M

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 39 URGAEBRNIZFARZ )
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEREBEAQNAEELAEBEEFRER
share options held by directors of the Company and NEBRENEE)

employees of the Group:

Granted Lapsed Exercised
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2019 the year the year the year at 31/12/2019
R2019 5 120195
1818 12A318
k& RiBH WATE  ERERE  ERBAR FRERE AT
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
1 T4 1 T4 T4
Directors
2
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 - - - 3,933
Wik 0.23%7 2017545300
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 - - - 3,933
B4 0.23%7 2017545308
Employees HK$0.23 30.4.2017 36,587 - - - 36,587
&8 0.2378 7 20174730
Total 44,453 - - - 44,453
&3t
Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
FERTITHE &
Weighted average
exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MEFATTERE & & & & &
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Rk MR

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 39 LURNAEBRNZINRS (@)
(continued)
Granted Lapsed Exercised
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2018 the year the year the year at 31/12/2018
R2018 5 R2018 5
1A18 12A31A
e BB HATE  ERERE  FRABAN  FREBAE AT
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
78 78 78 78 78
(Note a)
(Hita)
Directors
Ez
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,938 = — — 3,938
BEsE 0.23TT 2017F4A30H
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 = — — 3,938
BEE 0.23 7T 2017F4A30H
Employees (Note a) HK$0.23 30.4.2017 38,800 — (2,213) — 36,587
BR(Mi a) 0.23%87 20174 A30R
Total 46,666 = (2,213) - 44,453
@t

Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
ERATTE &

Weighted average

exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MEFTER i & & & &
Note: Hiat -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, two employees of (a) RBE2018F 12 A31 HILFE - AREH
the Group left and the corresponding share options granted MEEERE  ERLNARBRESEE
were lapsed accordingly. KR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

39

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

The estimated fair values of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
granted on 30 April 2017 were approximately RMB6,305,000.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The major inputs into the model were as

follows:

Granted date

it A
Exercise price*
TEE
Expected volatility
TAEDR I8
Expected life

TR HA4F H)
Risk-free rate
L A =
Expected dividend yield
FRHARR B &

*

The exercise price was fixed at approximately RMB8,750,000
for 3.5% of the total number of shares of the Company upon the
Listing.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the comparable companies’ share price over the
previous 10 years. The expected life used in the model has
been stated in the option scheme. The risk-free rate was
referred to the China sovereign bond yield with the term close

to the option life as at the grant date.

The Group recognised a total expense of approximately
RMB1,301,000 (2018: RMB2,160,000) in relation to share
options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the enlarged issued share capital

of the Company as at the Listing date.

RGO BERNIZNARS (&)

MR2017F 4 A30H @ B R AR EERE
REAZHERENGEF2AABENAAR
# 6,305,000 T °

D EEE =B R AT
Bt o HEXHEBHABBNT :

30 April 2017
201744 A30H
0.23

60.4%

10 years

104
3.5%

0.0%

* TEERARR EWMERMDEE3.5%Mm
T ITEEREEL R AR 8,750,000 7T °

HHREDRIBEATE LB ARRERBE
10FMESERIRERE - ZRAMERNTE
HE BN ERER S - BRR N X2
EhEIEERRER  BEHREON
BT BHONERES -

H Z2019F 128318 L FE & &
B 5t A A AR B X A B A IS AR
AR EREERAAEOARE
1,301,00070(20184F + A R# 2,160,000
JT) e
BRAMERIER XA SR ERESE
REHERENROBETSBRAR AR
ETHBSERNEBITRA30% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk MR

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATHME D BFE

COMPANY
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RIEER  NARREESRERE ZH
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below. BARFBHNTX °

Proportion of ownership
interest

FERES 2B
Group’s effective interest

214

Place of

as at 31 December

Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER12A31H2
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/registered BERES Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form capital 2019 2018  activities
AR/ Bk 4 B BRTRAR
WELREH EMEY/RIBH  REEER Bx/ERER 2019% 2018F  FEEH
% %
Directly held:
BERE -
WeiGang Environment 11 May 2017 British Virgin Islands, 1 ordinary share of US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited limited liability each
company
BEEREBRAR 2017E5A 118 RRERREE - 1REREE 1 X REER
BRART LB
Jade Far Investment 16 May 2017 British Virgin Islands, ~ US$1,001 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Limited limited liability
company
NEREBRAH 2017557168 KERRAREE - 1,001 %7 REER
BRR7A
Definite Thrive Limited 19 March 2019* British Virgin Islands,  US$50,000 100.00 N/A~ Investment holding
limited liability
company
HERRAA 201953 A 198~ RRERRES - 50,000%7T TER  REER
BRAF
Indlirectly held:
HERE
Weigang Holdings (Hong 19 September 2016 Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Kong) liability company of HK$10,000
BEZR(FE) 2016597 19H BB BRAA 10,000 10,000 AT A1 & RERR
BIR
Jade Road 28 October 2015 Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
liability company of HK$10,000
oS 2015610 A 28 B BB ARAR 10,0003 10,000 7 #1 & REER
BR
Weigang Development 24 April 2019* Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares 100.00 N/A~ Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited liability company of HK$10,000
EERR(BE)ERAT 201964248 B HERAA 10,000 % 10,000 %7 & TR REERK
biil})
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEAREE

Guangzhou Weigang

BEM#&E

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

MR/ KA

15 July 2009

20096 7A 150

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
MR/ B L5
RAEEER

PRC, sino-foreign
equity joint venture

HE - PHRALE

40 A FRIHIE A R RS

Proportion of ownership
interest
FERREZEDL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December

Issued and fully paid AEER12A3182
share capital/registered ERER Principal
capital 2019 2018  activities
BRITRAZ
BA&/ERER 20195 2018F  TEEH
% %
Issued and fully paid 90.00 90.00  Providing solutions

up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB186,930,920
(2018:
RMB50,000,000)

R2019612A31HE#
TRARKRAE : AR¥
186,930,920 7£.(2018
%+ AR#¥50,000,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB400,000,000
(2018:
RMB400,000,000)

2019412 A31H
MEMER : AR
# 400,000,000 7T
(2018 « ARK
400,000,0007%)

for solid waste
treatment

REBERENRER
RIR
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Rk MR

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)
COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of ownership

interest
FrERRE At
Group’s effective interest
Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER1283182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/registered ERER Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ L5 BETRER
HEAR R EMAL/KIAY  RAEER RA/EmEAR 20194 20184  IEEH
% %

Xinjiang Wosen 17 November 2011 PRC, sino-foreign Issued and fully paid 45.90 90.00  Providing
Environmental equity joint venture up capital as at 31 research and
Protection Technology December 2019: development of
Limited ( “Xinjiang RMB10,000,000 environmental
Wosen”) (Notes d & (2018: protection
e) RMB5,000,000) technologies

and facilities

HEARRRMRERE 2011F11 7178 HEC RARELE R2019F12831BEE RERRE RRGE
ERRHBAZR]) TRBRBRA : AR bt
(HiitdRe) 10,000,00072(2018

& : AR¥%5,000,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB10,000,000
(2018:
RMB5,000,000)

R20195 12 431 A
EMER : AR%
10,000,0007£(2018
& AR%5,000,000
)
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B Rk M

40

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Name of
subsidiaries

WEAREE

Shenzhen Xinnengji
(Note a)

R (Hata)

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

MR/ KA

24 November 2016

2016511 A 24 R

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
MR/ B L5
RAEEER

PRC, Corporate-owned
limited liability
company

E - CEEEERARF

40 A FRIHIE A R RS

Proportion of ownership

interest
FERESEZEDL

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December

Issued and fully paid AEER12A3182

share capital/registered ERED

capital 2019 2018

BRTRAR

RE/EMEAR 20195 20185
% %

Issued and fully paid 90.00 90.00

up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB20,980,000
(2018:
RMB14,400,000)

R2019512 331 AEEH
TRERRA : ARE
20,980,0007C(2018
 : A\E¥ 14,400,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB28,000,000
(2018:
RMB28,000,000)

2019512 A31 A
HMER : ARE
28,000,0007c(2018
& AR% 28,000,000
)
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Rk MR

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZAATMME D RFE#E)
COMPANY (continued)

Proportion of ownership

interest
FEREEZE L
Group’s effective interest
Place of as at 31 December
Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid AEER1283182
Name of incorporation/ establishment share capital/registered ERER Principal
subsidiaries establishment and legal form capital 2019 2018  activities
TR/ B L5 BETRER
WEAREE HMAY/RYAY  REERR BA&/ZRER 20194 2018  TEEH
% %
Guangdong Lvhuan 28 August 2017 PRC, sino-foreign Issued and fully paid 45.90 4590  Inactive
Taian Environmental equity joint venture up capital as at 31
Protection Limited December 2019:
(“Guangdong RMB60,000 (2018:
Lvhuan”) (Note e) RMB60,000)
ERERRLTREREBD 201758A28H HE - RNRERE R2019F 12 A31 BEE K&
al ([ EREIR ) s+ TRERRA : ARH
e) 60,000 75(2018 F : A
R¥%60,0007)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB10,000,000
(2018:
RMB10,000,000)

R2019F 12 A31 A
HfER : AR
10,000,0007%(2018
& AK¥10,000,000
)
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B B SRR MY R

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Date of

Name of incorporation/
subsidiaries establishment
WEAR AR AL/ R AH
Weierneng 25 July 2018

Environmental

(Notes b & e)
BBERR(MEbRe) 2018F7A25H
Shenzhen Kaipu 29 May 2007

Lansheng Energy
Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd
(“Shenzhen Kaipu")
(Note ¢)

FIFALELERRRE 2007658290
BRAR(RIAE])
(Hfztc)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
MR/ B L5
RAEEER

PRC, Natural person
investment or
holding limited
liability company

E - AAARETIER
BRAA

PRC, limited liability
company

HE - ARAT

40 =

Issued and fully paid

share capital/registered

capital
BRITRAZ
BA&/ERER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:

RMB7,376,000 (2018:

RMB2,000,000)

R2019F 12 A31 BE %
TRARBAE : AR
#7,376,0007C(2018
& AR% 2,000,000
)

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB20,000,000
(2018:
RMB20,000,000)

2019512 A 31 A
FMER : AR%K
20,000,0007c(2018

&+ AR 20,000,000

)

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB8,987,070

R2019F 12331 AEH
TRBRRA : ARE
8,987,070

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB8,987,070

2019612 A31 Al
HMER : ARE
8,987,070 7T

AT B A T E )

Proportion of ownership
interest
FERREZEDL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
AEER12A3182

BER
2019

Principal

2018 activities
2019 % 20184
% %

TEED

45.90 4590  Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

RREMRIR BT R R 1
b

90.00 N/A
TEH

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

AR R
HOf
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B B SRR MY R

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Date of
Name of incorporation/
subsidiaries establishment
WEAR AR AL/ R AH

Qingchuan Kaipu 23 March 2018
Environmental
Construction Co., Ltd

(Note ¢)

BIREREIRERD
a(fzec)

201853 A 23H

Debo Environmental
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd

22 May 2019*

EERE(BMNARAR 2019557228

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
MR/ L5
RAEEER

PRC, limited liability
company

HE - BRAA

B3

PRC, wholly foreign-
owned enterprise

RE - NEBELE

40 ARATFWKEARFE @)

Proportion of ownership
interest
FERREZEDL

Group’s effective interest
as at 31 December
Issued and fully paid AEER1283182
share capital/registered ERES
capital 2019 2018
BETRER
Rx/ERER 2019% 2018%
% %

81.00 N/A
TER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB600,000

2019612331 HE%
TRERRA : AR%
600,0007C

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB10,000,000

2019512 A31 B
EMEA : ARK
10,000,000 7T

100.00 N/A
Tam

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB30,174,787

R2019512 31 AER
IRERRA : AR
30,174,787

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB50,000,000

R 2019612 A31 A
EMER : ARK
50,000,000 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

40

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Date of
Name of incorporation/
subsidiaries establishment
KEAR &R EMEKL/FY A
Akesu Debo 27 June 2019*
Environmental Co.,
Ltd

MmaEEREER AR 201966 A 27"

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and legal form
MR/ F L5
RAEERR

PRC, limited liability
company

E - BRAT

Guangdong Qizhou 8 July 2019* PRC, wholly foreign-
Weigang Co., Ltd owned enterprise

EXREMEERRBRA 2019F7R8H" hENEBELE
al

* These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year.

40 ADATHHEA DB

Issued and fully paid

share capital/registered

capital
BRTRAR
BA/ERER

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB10,000,000

R2019F 12 A31HE%
TRBRKRA : AR
10,000,000 7C

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB10,000,000

12019F 12 A31 B
FMER : AR%
10,000,000 7T

Issued and fully paid
up capital as at 31
December 2019:
RMB30,000,000

R2019F 12 A31 BE%
TREREA - AR%
30,000,000 7T

Registered capital as at
31 December 2019:
RMB50,000,000

R2019512 A31 AH
FHER : ARE
50,000,000 ¢

Proportion of ownership

interest
FERESE 2B

Group’s effective interest

as at 31 December
AEERN12A3182

ERES Principal
2019 2018 activities
2019 F 2018 F TEEH
% %
70.00 N/A  Inactive
TEH
100% N/A~ Providing
NEH research and

development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

REIR R R &
HOT 3

ZEMB R RN FREMAKL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BHRRKE

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a) On 14 September 2018, Guangzhou Weigang acquired the
remaining 27.14% equity interest in Shenzhen Xinnengji from
Party A at consideration of RMB1.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an amount of
RMB6,580,300 (2018: RMB14,400,000) had been paid to
Shenzhen Xinnengji as capital injection by the Group. As at
31 December 2019, the outstanding amount of RMB7,019,700
(2018: RMB13,600,000) has not yet been paid by the Group.

(b) Weierneng Environmental was established as a limited liability
company under the laws of the PRC on 25 July 2018 and an
indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which
is owned as to 51% by Shenzhen Xinnengji and 49% by an
independent third party, Party D. According to the articles of
association of Weierneng Environmental, the capital injection of
the shareholders should be paid to Weierneng Environmental no
later than 31 August 2037.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
paid for RMB2,876,000 (2018: RMB1,000,000) and Party D has
paid for RMB2,500,000 (2018: RMB1,000,000) respectively.
As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding amount of
RMB6,324,000 (2018: RMB9,200,000) and RMB6,300,000 (2018:
RMB8,800,000) has not been paid by the Group and Party D,
respectively. In 2019, it commenced the operation as providing
research development of environmental protection technologies
and facilities.

(c) On 9 May 2019, a subsidiary of the Group, Guangzhou Weigang,
has acquired 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Kaipu from an
independent third party at consideration of RMB1 as disclosed
in Note 41.

(d) On 5 August 2019, the Group has partial disposed of 49%
equity interests of Xinjiang Wosen to an independent third party
as disclosed in Note 43.

(e) The Group has 45.90% effective equity interests in Xinjiang
Wosen, Guangdong Lvhuan and Weierneng Environmental. The
Group controls the composition of the Board of directors of
these subsidiaries and has control over them. Therefore, they
are considered as the subsidiaries of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

40 ERATFHMEDRFSE)

HiaE -
(a)

(b)

(d)

R2018F9A 148 BEMBEBAARE
1T S (B B R U 7% I3 88 1% 6%
27.14% K IR AN HE 2w ©

HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE - AEEEM
7 I 88 % 2 4 A R % 6,580,300 7T.(2018
4 AR 14,400,0007C) fERBIEE - I
201912 A31H - A&EE A RBERK
B A AR7,019,7007T(20184F : AR
13,600,000 7T) ©

BRAEIRIRN 2018 F 7 A 25 B IR IEH B X
BRUB/—RBERDA » RARABNBEE
2EMBAR - BRYVIFTEBIMBLE=
THDRIBEE51% R 49% Mz - RIEE
M RROABERMA - RETEER
2037 8 A 31 BRI AN FERALIRIR -

H Z2019F12A31B EF E A&
ETHE DB X AR 28760007t
(20184 : AR ¥ 1,000,0007%) K AR
2,500,0007L(20184 : A R # 1,000,000
JL) ° R2019F 12A318  AEERT &
5 5l i R S AT AR E B € 58 A R ¥ 6,324,000
(20184 : AR 9,200,00070) R ARKE
6,300,000 C(20184 : A R #8,800,000
JT) ° R 2019 F + HEAAE BIR B R M
KRR MR &5 -

BN FE41FT B BE - R 20194F 5 A9R -
AEEWBRAREMEEEE —EBYE=
T LA B AR 1 T U R I B X 100% A%
T o

WA FEA3FTH T - R2019F 8 A58 ¢
ANEBEER—BBUE=HBHHEHBERX
FRA9% AHE -

AEBERFBMBAR  BERERRED
BEIRIR 45.90% E IR AR #E - NEERHIZ S
MEBAREEGAK - WHEAEZEHRE -
It REESERAEENREAT -

BEMB AR RFRETEMNELES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

40

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40 ZFRATHMEABFEA)

COMPANY (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

BEEAFERBEZNEZENB LR

material non-controlling interests 15
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary T &R #H 5K 20194F K 2018F 12 A31 H
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests as at AEEEEERNEEREZNIEZEH B
31 December 2019 and 2018: NCIPA=S
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting rights Profit allocated to Accumulated
and principal held by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
place of interests interests interests
Name of subsidiary business 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/12/2019  31/12/2018  31/12/2019 31/12/2018
SEMAR ISR FERER I PETEER
WEARBE TEEEHY FERERAERRER R HFE R FERER
2019 F 2018 & 2019 % 2018 & 2019 % 2018
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 128311 12831 H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Guangzhou Weigang The PRC 10% 10% 12,904 8,490 53,730 27,037
BN 475 HE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AT BT & A 7 2019 4F X% 20184 12 A 31
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests as at 31 BAEEHEAEENFIERESNHBAR
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below. The summarised ZBEE S E R o THB B i E R 25
financial information below represents amounts before SERNEIERI 2S5 o

intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R MY R

40 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

40 AR THIKIE D RFE )

Guangzhou Weigang BN 47
2019 2018
2019 2018 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR Fr
Current assets MEEE 631,098 392,878
Non-current assets EmBEE 134,286 97,644
Current liabilities REBEE 225,864 200,663
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,221 19,485
Equity attributable to owners of the AAREA AEGERE
Company 483,569 243,337
Non-controlling interests of Guangzhou BE/MN#EE FFE Ktz
Weigang 53,730 27,037
PLORE] 2018
2019 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR Fr
Revenue A 606,594 475,632
Expenses i3 (477,550) (393,518)
Profit and total comprehensive income F AT & 2 H K &= 258
for the year 129,044 82,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

40

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Guangzhou Weigang (continued)

EMAEE (&)

40 A TEHIKE D RFE )

2018
2018 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFr
Dividends paid to non-controlling B BN A
interests of Guangzhou Weigang FEIERERRE — —
Net cash outflow from operating KETHEENR SR L IFR
activities (50,251) (50,843)
Net cash outflow from investing REEBEENR SR L IFE
activities (39,373) (45,092)
Net cash inflow financing activities BEEHEENE S RAFE 151,649 92,870
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA/ O )58 62,025 (8,065)

2019 ANNUAL REPORT %R

225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

41 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

41 WE—FEMELQE

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a sales and purchase MR2019F5 A9H  AEBE—FBHBIE
agreement with Ms Zhang LiQin, an independent third party, =ARNMELR LTIV EERZ - Bl A
pursuant to which a subsidiary of the Group, Guangzhou SEBARIEMESEREEARKA
Weigang, has acquired 100% equity interest in Shenzhen T EE P R IINFE 3 A9 100% ki - IiE =
Kaipu at a consideration of RMB1. The acquisition has been HERERTAK - FYIFRER PR EIE
completed during the year. Shenzhen Kaipu is engaged in the HEEEYRIE o

provision of solid waste treatment in the PRC.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the date AHAMNEERGERKERHN AL EE
of acquisition is as follows: (1N
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITAER 1,080
Other receivables E th fE W5k IE 920
Other payables A & 5 5RIE (2,000)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB BANEEFE —*
Net cash inflow on acquisition of Shenzhen Kaipu Wi RIS w938 2 A F 58
RMB’000
AR T
Consideration satisfied by: ATRF) A N AARAE -
Cash paid BftiRe —*
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BRIER e RRSEEY 1,080
Net cash inflows included in investing activities FFARERSNESRANERE 1,080

* less than RMB1,000

* LR AREE1,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

42 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 42 HE—REMEQF

On 21 May 2019, Guangzhou Weigang have made a capital
injection which represents 60% shareholding of Guangzhou

Weigang.

On 8 October 2019, the Group and the shareholder of
Weigang Hongda entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group and
the shareholder of Weigang Hongda agreed to sell 19% and
13% equity interests of Weigang Hongda to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion
of disposal, the equity interest held by Guangzhou Weigang is
decreased from 60% to 41%. In result, the Group’s effective
interests in shareholding of Weigang Hongda has changed
from 54% to 37%, Weigang Hongda became the associate of
the Group since then.

The net assets of Weigang Hongda at the date of disposal

were as follows:

R2019F5 218 ' EMAEEE TE
EREMEE60% BIENSEE -

R2019F 10 A8 H » ALK B &4k iE
R R E — BB L =55 LR R
Z Bl AEBERESLENRRERE
M—E2BIE=FUEHBARBI1TEE
B BLEA9% R 13% M BR R A - R
EFETKE - BINEBSFTFOREER
H60% M E41% o Bt - NEERKES
BAER R B S D R 54% A 37% -
HEABLE B IR RN R BB E B o

HENERHERHRNEEFENT

RMB’000
ARBFT
Net assets disposal of: EHEEESHE
Cash and bank balances He RIRITAER 10
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 10
RMB’000
ARMFr
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BHEARNER :
Consideration received B RE =7
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (10)
Investment in associates retained RERBEDENRE 4
Loss on disposal & SEAEE (6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

42 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 42 HE—HBHBAT @)
RMB’000
ARBFT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEEENESREFE

Cash consideration ReRE =7
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITEBKAS (10)
(10)

* Less than RMB1,000 * DI ARYA1,0007T

43 TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS — PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT LOSING CONTROL

On 5 August 2019, Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu Xin
Wei (“Mr. Zhu”), an independent third party entered into
capital injection for the increase of Xinjiang Wosen registered
capital from RMB5,000,000 to RMB10,000,000 in which,
Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu injected RMB100,000 and
RMB4,900,000 into Xingjiang Wosen, respectively. After the
above capital injection, Guangzhou Weigang and Mr. Zhu own
51% and 49% equity interest in Xinjiang Wosen respectively,

and Xinjiang Wosen is still the subsidiary of the Group.

43

EIZRESNRG—HIHE—
21 B B 2 B (S R B3 #E)

R2019F8AGH + E M # 8 8 — &
B E=FRIMEE(TREE]DITL
HE BHEBEARNTMERBARE
5,000,0007T # i & A K # 10,000,000
T HA o ENEBREREESRIEH
BARITE AR®A100,0007T K AR
4,900,000 7T ° 7£ L 38 & TR & - BN
HEAERKREEDREEFEARRSI% K
49% KR #E - BETEBARMA RN EEHK
MEBAF -

RMB’000
ARMFT
Carrying amount of net assets transferred to non- EREFERERNEETFEN
controlling interests AREE (2,289)
Consideration received from non-controlling B IEE R = WA R (B
interests 4,900
Gains on partial disposal of equity interest o B ' S N 8 AR
recognised within equity 2,611

228 WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED #E KRR IR ER G R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R MR

44

45

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group have initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies

are disclosed in Note 2.

In addition, certain comparative figures have been reclassified

to conform to the current year’s presentation.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 September 2019, Debo Environment (Guangzhou) Co.,
Ltd. (“Debo Environment”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party Mr. Jin Tao, pursuant to
which, both parties agreed to transfer 73% of equity interest
of Qingyang Qingyi Petroleum Engineering Company
Limited* (“Qingyi”) at a consideration of RMB7,000,000. The
consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties with reference to the prospects of
the business of Qingyi, and will be paid in cash by Debo
Environment. On 16 January 2020, the transaction has been

completed.

At 27 December 2019, Debo Environment has entered into
a capital increase and subscription agreement with Xinjiang
Tiansheng Xinhong Environmental Protection Technology Co.,
Ltd* (“Tiansheng”) and two independent third parties, Xinjiang
Hongtong Industry and Trade Co., Ltd.* (“Hongtong”)and Mr.
Tian Yixin. Pursuant to the agreement, the Debo Environment
shall subscribe for the increased registered capital of
Tiansheng of RMB30,000,000 in cash. Upon the completion
of the transaction, Tiansheng will be held as to 60% by the
Group and 40% by Hongtong, and Tiansheng will become a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The completion
is expected to take place by the end of April 2020 because
of the COVID-19 outbreak. For the details, please refer to the

Company’s announcement dated 27 December 2019.

The English names are for identification purpose only.

44

45

e E T

AEBER2019F 1 A1 H & X FERCE R
B 75 R & A B ) 5B 16 5% B I B 12 B
E o RFTEERNBE L X - LEARRE
EER o BEGHBRED 2B R BRI
2o

o - BETHRBFEREHROE - ALK
BARFEREZZ2HTH -

BEMEEM

MR2019F9H9R  EIERFE(EM)A
BRAB(EERE]  ARRNEEEZE
MEBAR)E— BB E=F ST ER]
VEEWRE B EHHREUARE
7,000,000 TH ¥ EEEEGER AMB L
BERAR([EZE])73% KAk - HE
THSET R IS Z RERNEB A= BETT
AEHEEE - BHESHEERENUR
&3 - XHER 202041 A 16 B °

R2019F 12 A27H - EiFREHEFE
REFRBREREHERBERAB(TRE]) KM
EBNE=FNERBIERRAR(R
BORBEMEETIIEERERE - 1B
Bz RERREUReRBERERN
i k& A A R #5 30,000,000 7T © RATE
K& REBDBASEEERZBIFE
60% K% 40% + MAEHK RN EEHNIEE
EWBLTF - ARFETRASEBNE
% RHSTRTBEARE R 2020 6 4 A KAIE
B BHAHBELHARTN20195F 12
Ro7 BELHAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

46 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

46 AR EMBERRERHEE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R BRARRKE 3,813 2,168
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R — 56
Right-of-use assets EREEE 756 —
4,569 2,224
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e  ENRER
receivables A fE SR IE 243 6,580
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B8 A RIFRIB 226,699 54,205
Bank balances and cash RITEHREES 56,783 1,275
283,725 62,060
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses H b JE {8 K TR 8,362 8,028
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE e 352 5,386
Lease liabilities HEARE 546 —
9,260 13,414
Net current assets REBEEFE 274,465 48,646
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEAZERABAER 279,034 50,870
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 235 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 278,799 50,870
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital f& AN 55,100 41,413
Reserves G 223,699 9,457
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 278,799 50,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M

46 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46 AERATMBMRRKRRFEE)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves EATREES
Share-
based
Share payment Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
N5 A ER
R E M A E Hith e 2R &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

At 1 January 2018 R2018% 1518 I _ 8 (6,144) (6,136)
Loss and total comprehensive ERERE K

expense for the year 2EAZAE — — — (10,150) (10,150)
Issue of ordinary shares to AERAREEIRES

pre-IPO investors, net of ETEBR

share issue cost (R ARID BT AR) 16,281 — — — 16,281
Issue of ordinary shares by  BBEREMMLETLER

loan capitalisation 7,302 — — — 7,302
Recognition of equity- settled  HERRRRIELE & LA (D

share based payment BERHZ R — 2,160 — — 2,160
At 31 December 2018 ®20184F12A31H 23,583 2,160 8 (16,294) 9,457
Impact of adoption IFRS16 A BB BB IREHE])

F16RNTE — — — (12) (12)

At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1A 18 23,583 2,160 8 (16,306) 9,445
Loss and total comprehensive EREE N2 EHXEE

expense for the year — — — (594) (594)
Issue of ordinary shares REAAREERTLTER

relating to IPO 227,195 — — — 227,195
Transaction costs attributable  E{THRRMDELNR HKA

to issue of new share (13.648) — — — (13,648)
Recognition of equity- settled RREEE AR BERE

share based payment oL p) — 1,301 — — 1,301
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318 237,130 3,461 8 (16,900) 223,699
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BHREE

Extracts from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HiEaGeEsREMmzEEER
other comprehensive income
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr
Revenue 'ON 537,509 480,091 189,407 88,971 74,883
Cost of services FRFE AR A (393,273) (355,428) (127,303) (60,131) (48,170)
Gross profit EF 144,236 124,663 62,104 28,840 26,713
Other income, gains and HAWRA ~ e R
losses 18 11,862 8,110 2,372 786 113
Administrative expense TERAX (39,764) (27,854) (11,743) (3,713) (2,342)
Distribution and selling DEREERT
expenses (2,280) (951) — — —
Other expenses Hinfx (21,825) (29,967) (15,241) (5,700) (4,207)
Share of results of IR ERENER
associates (13) — (675) 2,667 443
Finance costs BB R A (1,094) (6,031) (438) — —
Profit before tax FAIFE 91,122 67,970 36,379 22,880 20,720
Income tax expense FIB#EX (13,091) (10,559) (6,620) (3,357) (5,105)
Profit for the year FRFE 78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523 15,615
Profit attributable to: UTEH SRS
Owners of the Company VN/NGIETFEUN 66,984 49,799 30,195 19,523 15,615
Non-controlling interests FEE R 11,047 7,612 (436) — —
78,031 57,411 29,759 19,523 15,615
Extracts from the consolidated statement of financial position BB ReBERAR
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 F 2018 F 2017 F 2016 F 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT ARETFT ARETFT ARBEFT
Total assets BEBE 802,027 469,735 253,053 90,842 63,904
Total liabilities BELE 227,886 310,445 218,356 38,443 31,028
Non-controlling interests IR A 57,326 27,220 (436) — —
Equity attributable to the RARHER AEMR
owners of the Company B 516,815 132,070 35,133 52,399 32,876
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GLOSSARY
Bx

“AGM”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“CG Code”

“China” or “PRC”

“Company” or “we”

“DHW Holdings”

“Director(s)”

“Global Offering”

“Group”

the forthcoming annual general meeting for
the year 2019 of the Company

the audit committee under the Board

board of directors of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code as set out

in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

the People’s Republic of China, but for
the purposes of this annual report and
for geographical reference only (unless
otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan,

Macau and Hong Kong

an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 18
May 2017 under the names of “Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group
Limited” and “#HEINRBZIEREAETR LR
Fl”, and registered as a non-Hong Kong
company under Part 16 of the Companies

Ordinance

DHW Holdings Limited,
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability

a company

on 30 January 2018, which is wholly owned
by Mr. ZHANG

director(s) of the Company

the offer of the Company’s Shares for
subscription as described in the section
headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in

the Prospectus

the Company and its subsidiaries and

operating entities
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GLOSSARY
Bx

“HKSCC”
“HK$” or “HKD”
“Hong Kong”

“IFRS”

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“Latest Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Memorandum
and Articles of

Association”

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for
the time being of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the International Financial Reporting
Standards, which include standards
and interpretations promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and the International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC)

any entity or person who is not a connected
person of the Company within the meaning

ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

23 April 2020, being the latest practicable
date for the purpose of ascertaining certain
information contained in this annual report

prior to its publication

3 January 2019 on which the Shares were

listed on the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited, as amended from time to time

the amended and restated memorandum
of articles of association and articles of
association of our Company, conditionally
adopted on 20 May 2018 with effect from
the Listing Date, and as amended from time

to time
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GLOSSARY

R

“Model Code”

“Nomination

Committee”
“Period”
“PBOC”

“Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme”

“Prospectus”

“Remuneration

Committee”

“RMB” or

“Renminbi”

“Reorganisation”

“SFO”

“SFC”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

the nomination committee under the Board

the year ended 31 December 2019

People’s Bank of China

the pre-IPO share option scheme of our
Company as approved by the Board on 10
December 2018 with effective immediately
prior to the completion of the Global

Offering

the prospectus of the Company dated 19
December 2018 in connection with the Hong
Kong public offering of the Company

the remuneration committee under the Board

the lawful currency of the PRC

the reorganisation of the Group in
preparation for Listing as set out in
the subsection headed “History and
Reorganisation and Group Structure -

Reorganisation” in the Prospectus

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as amended, supplemented or otherwise

modified from time to time

the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong
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GLOSSARY
BE

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shares”

“Stock Exchange”

“Weigang Green”

“WeiGang
Technology”

woy

holder(s) of the Shares

shares in the share capital of the Company,
with a nominal value of HK$0.05 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Weigang Green Technology Limited, a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 8 June 2017, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Cai and is a Controlling
Shareholder

WeiGang Technology Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
on 3 January 2017, formerly known as “First
Jump Inc.”, which is indirectly wholly owned
by Mr. Cai through Weigang Green and is a
Controlling Shareholder

per cent.
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